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ABOUT HEALTHSPRING, INC.

HealthSpring, headquartered in Nashville, Tennessee, is one of the country’s largest coordinated
care plans with a primary focus on the Medicare Advantage market. HealthSpring currently
owns and operates Medicare Advantage plans in Alabama, Florida, Hlinois, Mississippi, Tennessee,
and Texas and also offers a national stand-alone Medicare prescription drug plan. For more
information, visit www.healithspring.com.




Chairman’s Letter

Fellow Stockholders: 2007 was a year of challenges and also one of
enormous accomplishments for HealthSpring. Many of these accomplishments are
described in more detail throughout this Annual Report. Our actions in 2007 have
also, we believe, positioned HealthSpring as a leader in using a managed care model
that is focused on building meaningful and mutually beneficial relationships with

both our Medicare members and our physician providers. Our new slogan - “More

from Medicare. More from Life.” ~ exemplifies this commitment to delivering superior

Herbert A, Fritch

healthcare to a i is growing in size and livi : Chairman, President and
ealt population thatis g gin d living longer. Chaieman, Presiden 2

With 94% of our revenue in 2007 from Medicare premiums, we are clearly focused on the Medicare
program and the Medicare-eligible. And, like the people you see in the pictures in this Annual

Report, our Medicare beneficiaries expect a higher quality of living.
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MEDICARE ADVANTAGE As you will also see in the pages accompanying this letter,

MEMBERSHIP . . o
(AT YEAR END) several of our key financial and operating metrics in 2007,

including membership, revenue, and earnings, were the

153,197

highest in our history. | encourage you to review the more

detailed financial and operating results, and management’s

‘115J32

discussion and analysis of those results, in the Form 10-K

101,281

accompanying this Annual Report. I'll limit this letter to

| sharing with you what | believe are the highlights.

NATIONAL EXPANSION OF
OUR PART D PROGRAM

Medicare’s Part D prescription drug program has, in

2005
2006
2007

our opinion, been a resounding success for Medicare
beneficiaries and for HealthSpring. As we previewed in last

year's Annual Report, 2007 started with the expansion of

our stand-alone PDP program to offer Medicare prescription

STAND-ALONE PDP drug benefits on a national basis. As a result, we had over

MEMBERSHIP
(AT YEAR END] 139,000 PDP members as of December 31, 2007, compared

with fewer than 89,000 members as of December 31, 2006.

139,212

m Substantially all of our PDP membership results from
E automatic assignments of members by the Centers for
B Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, in regions where
our bids are below relevant benchmarks. Accordingly,

our sales and marketing efforts and, correspondingly,

our sales and marketing expenses are relatively small for

2006
2007

this product.
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“The Leons have a
healthy appetite for
growing their business,

and we look forward

to growing with them.’

As of January 1, 2008, our PDP membership increased to
approximately 254,000 members because our bids were
beiow relevant benchmarks in two new regions that include
California and New York. This line of business, even with the
reduced premiums resulting from competitive bidding by

drug plans, continues to perform better

LEON ACQUISITION - A GREAT
PARTNERSHIP BEGINS

Leon Medical Centers Health Plans in
Miami, Florida, became the newest
member of the HealthSpring family
in 2007,

The Florida plan brings many positive
additions, including its superior
understanding of and commitment
to the Hispanic community in Miami,
exceptional customer service, strong
member retention and enroliment
growth, and a commitment to keeping

members healthy.

Leon plan members receive much of their
care at the Leon Medical Centers, which
continue to be owned and operated by

the leons and former

shareholders of  the

than our expectations. It also continues to r]'_,E:()N health plan. Not only is

grow in importance as a contributor to our o MEDICAL the healthcare provided

revenue and earnings.

CENTERS through these centers

HEALTH PLANS of the highest quality

by @ HEALTHSPRING  gnd  ronvenience, but

ACQUISITION OF

LEON MEDICAL CENTERS HEALTH PLANS
Perhaps the best news for 2007 came on October 1, when we
completed the acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health
Plans. The acquisition gave us an immediate presence of
more than 25,000 Medicare members in the important

South Florida market. In addition, and just as important,
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members are attracted to
the comfort of the surroundings and the
exceptional services available to them.
Extra features of the centers include free
transportation toandfromappointments,
on-site pharmacy, lab, radiology, dental,
vision, and hearing services, and many

other helpful services and amenities.






“The addition of the
South Florida market to
our operations further
reduces our vulnerability
to short-term adverse
medical cost trends in
any one market.”

we entered into a long-term agreement with the Leon
family and their five world-class medical centers in Miami-
Dade County for the provision of clinical medical services to

our members.

The addition of the South Florida market to our operations
further reduces our vulnerability to short-term adverse
medical cost trends in any one market. Moreover, we are

improving our business daily as we learn more about

OPTIMACARE™ - PLANNING
FOR 2008 LAUNCH

in 2007, HealthSpring began preparations
for the 2008 launch of an exciting
new Special Needs Plan (SNP) called

OptimaCare™

OptimaCare is a Medicare Advantage
SNP specifically designed for people with
high cholesterol, high blood pressure, or
diabetes. Medicare beneficiaries who have
been diagnosed with one or more of these
conditions may be eligible to enroll at
any time, including outside of Medicare’s
annual enrollment period, making the
plan a key aspect of HealthSpring’s year-

long marketing strategy.

OptimaCare is also a key component of
HealthSpring’s commitment to keeping
members healthy. The plan provides
members with special low copays for
many of the brand name drugs used to

treat high cholesterol, high blood pressure,

the Leons’ emphasis on the importance of consistent OPTIM C RE
customer service to quality of care and member 1&- l&

retentiocn. The integration of the Florida operations
has been smooth. The Leons have a healthy appetite
for growing their business, and we look forward to growing

with them.
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and diabetes. Other benefits include a
personal Health Coach. The Health Coach
is available to the member to answer
questions about his or her condition and
treatment plan and to help the member
define and work toward specific heaith

goals as recommended by the doctor.



TOT*?:NLMII‘LE‘X‘ENUE STRATEGIC INITIATIVES TO IMPROVE
MEDICAL MANAGEMENT
In last year's Annual Report, we heralded the late 2006

$1,575

opening of our first LivingWell Health Center in Middle

l $1,309

Tennessee. Each LivingWell Health Center is designed

exclusively for our Medicare plan members, with amenities

$857

and services that members are unlikely to find in other

provider settings.
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“Each LivingWell Health
Center is designed
exclusively for
our Medicare
plan members.”

With over a year of LivingWell operations in Tennessee,
the results have exceeded our expectations on several
fronts, including improving the quality of care and the
satisfaction of our membership, as evidenced by reduced
member turnover. We also believe that the systems we have
deployed in the clinic are leading to more accurate diagnoses
and coding more reflective of the health risk for our

LivingWell members.

In light of the positive results we have seen thus far, we
opened our second LivingWell Health Center in Mobile,
Alabama in 2007 and are working
toward the opening of a third clinic

in Houston, Texas, during 2008.
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LIVINGWELL™ CENTERS -
INNOVATION EXPANDS
TO ANOTHER MARKET

HealthSpring’s LivingWell centers are
another example of HealthSpring’s
innovation in providing for the health
and wellness of our members. Our first
LivingWell Health Center opened in
Gallatin, Tennessee, in 2006. In 2007, we
opened the LivingWell Health Center by
HealthSpring in Mobile, Alabama. A third
LivingWell center in Houston, Texas, is in

the planning stages.

The LivingWell centers are an important
part of HealthSpring’s commitment fo
well-coordinated care with a strong
focus on prevention. Members have
access to high quality medical care from
excellent doctors and staff in a relaxed
and comfortable setting. The convenience
of radiology, lab, and other services
help members get the full range of care

they need.

In addition, the LivingWell cerrters provide
on-site nutritionists, chronic care nurses,
and a full calendar of

activities and classes

LiVingwell to help members

Health Center y @ HEALTHSPRING five fuller. healthier

lives. Qur LivingWell
centers are designed to foster a sense
of community that aids the members’
overall well-being and, we believe, makes
getting medical care an easier and more

pleasant experience.,






Our Partnership for Quality (P4Q) program also continues to
show encouraging results. What began as a pilot program
with a single physician practice in Tennessee has expanded
to cover more than 20,000 of our members and include

19 physician groups in Tennessee, Alabama, and Texas.

By providing in-office and other supplemental resources to
our physician partners, we have seen dramaticimprovements
in adherence to recognized quality of care metrics, which
have translated, in turn, into better health for our members
and thus lower utilization of costly medical services. Our
goal is to replicate these promising results with further
expansions of the program to more than 40,000 members

by the end of 2008.

We continue to emphasize physician engagement as a
key competitive differentiator. By organizing physicians
and further engaging them as our partners in serving

the healthcare needs of ou

MORE FROM MEDICARE.
MORE FROM LIFE.™
HealthSpring’s new  positioning
statement — "More from Medicare. More
from life ™ — carried throughout our
marketing materials and advertisements,
embodies our commitment to helping

members live every day to the fullest.

The vibrant theme captures moments in
the lives of seniors as they enjoy the things
that matter to them: gardening, baking
with a grandchild, exercising with a loved
one. The intimate vignettes illustrate the
benefits of a plan that helps members
stay healthy and free from worries over

their healthcare coverage.

Each of HealthSpring’s product lines has
its own unique color palette that fits
with the vibrancy of this positioning.
Qur marketing materials are designed

to consistently

r
membership base, we see significant @ HEALTHSPRING communicate

More from Medicare. More from life.

long-term  potential for  better

managing medical costs.

Our relationship with Renaissance Physician Organization in
Texas continues to be the model that we strive to replicate
across our markets. In Tennessee, we dedicated our efforts
during 2007 to developing the infrastructure necessary to

further organize and engage physicians.

To accelerate this initiative, in early 2008 we made the
decision to switch to a tiered provider network benefit

structure for our Medicare Advantage products in the Middle
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the new theme,
reinforcing the
ideas and branding elements for

members and potential members.
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Tennessee region. We expect that this change will provide
further incentive for our members to select primary care
physicians in our network that have engaged more fully with

HealthSpring.

We put our balance sheet to work in 2007 with the use of
cash and indebtedness to fund the Leon Medical Centers
Health Plans acquisition. Our cash position remains strong,
however, and gives us flexibility even in the current tough

credit markets.

Finally, we were active on the political front in Washington,
D.C. in 2007, as | indicated we would be in my letter to
you last year. | believe these efforts have been effective in
distinguishing our coordinated care model, which is highly
focused on intense medical management and physician
engagement, from the less tightly managed private-fee-for-
service plans. in the long run, we believe our gatekeeper
model is the best way to deliver high-quality care to the
Medicare population in a cost-effective manner. Although
the political pressures will undoubtedly continue, we
are confident that our efforts on this front in 2007 have

positioned us well for 2008 and beyond.

Once again, | wish to thank our members, providers,
employees, and stockholders for your continued
contributions and support. | look forward to sharing with you

the good news of 2008 as the year unfolds.

YA N il

Herbert A. Fritch
Chairman, President, and Chief Executive Officer
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EARLY HEALTHSPRING PARTNERSHIP
FOR QUALITY SNAPSHOT:

PERCENTAGE INCREASE IN PREVENTIVE SCREENINGS

Colon CA D 27%

Pneumonia E:‘ 65%

Mammography 68%

Diabetic Eye Exam 93%

Influenza 192%

Diabetic Foot Exam 378%

Preventive Increase in Use by Physicians
Screening

HEALTHSPRING’S P4Q MODEL RAPIDLY EXPANDING

19
Practices
40
286
Physicians
20,000
Members

40,000

| 2007 [ ] projectea 2008 [}

DECLINING MEDICAL COSTS

% Reduction | Utilization by Members

7% ER visits per 1,000

8% Medical Cost Ratio

H

11% Hospital admissions per 1,000
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PARTNERSHIP FOR QUALITY-
POSITIVE 2007

PRELIMINARY NUMBERS
Pay-for-performance healthcare models
have received a lot of recent press.
HealthSpring is proud to have been
on the leading edge in developing
our unique Partnership for Quality

pilot program.

Our Partnership for Quality pilot
structures physician reimbursements
to encourage more extensive use of
preventive care. We believe this focus
on preventing complications and
catching problems before they become
serious is a win for everyone: the doctor
is rewarded for providing quality care,
the member stays healthier and has
a better quality of life, and the cost of

delivering healthcare is reduced.

HealthSpring has carefully tracked
the results of our Partnership for
Quality pilot. Our numbers for 2007
are preliminary, but the results

are encouraging.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are not historical fact are forward-looking
statements that the company intends to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Statements that are predictive in nature, that
depend on or refer to future events or conditions, or that include words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “could,”
“estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would,” and
similar expressions are forward-looking statements. The company cautions that forward-looking statements involve
known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors, including those described in “ltem 1 A. Risk Factors,”
that may cause our actual results, performance, or achicvements to, be materially different from any future results,
petformance, or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements
reflect our current views with respect to future events and are based on assumptions and subject to risks and
uncertainties. Given these uncertainties, you should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.
We undertake no obligation beyond that required by law to update publicly any forward-looking statements for any
reason, even if new information becomes available or other events occur in the future. You should read this report
and the documents that we reference in this report and have filed as exhibits to this report completely and with the
understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect.
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Item 1. Business

Overview

HealthSpring, Inc. is a managed care organization operating in the United States whose primary focus is
Medicare, the federal government-sponsered health insurance program for United States citizens aged 65 and older,
qualifying disabled persons, and persons suffering from end-stage renal disease. Pursuant to the Medicare program,
Medicare-eligible beneficiaries may receive healtheare benefits, including prescription drugs, through a managed
care health plan. Our concentration on Medicare, and the Medicare Advantage program in particular, provides us
with opportunities to understand the complexities of the Medicare program, design competitive products, manage
medical costs, and offer high quality healthcare benefits to Medicare beneficiaries in our service-areas. Our
Medicare Advantage experience also allows us to build collaborative and mutually beneficial relationships with
healthcare providers, including comprehensive networks of hospitals and physicians, that are expertenced in
managing the healthcare needs of Medicare populations. For the year ended December 31, 2007, Medicare
premiums accounted for approximately 94% of our total revenue.

On October 1, 2007, we acquired Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. (“LMC Health Plans™), a Miami,
Florida-based Medicare Advantage health maintenance organization, or HMO, with approximately 25,800 members.
As part of this transaction, we also entered into an exclusive long-term provider contract with Leon Medical Centers,
Inc. (“LMC”), an operator of five Medicare-only medical clinics located throughout Miami-Dade County with a ten-
year history of providing medical care and services primarily to the Hispanic Medicare-cligible community in South
Florida. We paid the former stockholders of LMC Health Plans $355.0 million in cash and issued and deposited
2,666,667 shares of our common stock in escrow, which shares will be released to the former stockholders of LMC
Health Plans in the event LMC completes construction of two additional medical centers in accordance with an
agreed time schedule. The LMC medical services agreement is for an initial term of ten years with a five-year
renewal option.

We presently operate Medicare Advantage plans in Alabama, Florida, Illinois, Mississippi, Tennessee and
Texas. As of December 31, 2007, our Medicare Advantage plans had over 153,000 members.

In 2006, we began offering prescription drug benefits in accordance with Medicare Part D to our Medicare
Advantage plan members, in addition to continuing to provide other medical benefits, which we sometimes refer to
as our “MA-PD” plans. We also began offering prescription drug benefits on a stand-alone basis in accordance with
Medicare Part D in each of our markets. We refer to our stand-alone prescription drug plan as “stand-alone PDP” or
“PDP.” We expanded our stand-alone PDP program on a national basis in 2007. As of December 31, 2007, our PDP
had over 139,000 members, substantially all of which had been automatically assigned to us by the Centers for
Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, in connection with the CMS annual premium bid process. As of January
1, 2008, our PDP membership increased to approximately 254,000 as a result of additional auto—aSSlgnmems by
CMS, primarily of members in the California and New York CMS regions.

We also utilize our infrastructure and provider networks in Alabama and Tennessee to offer commerctal health
plans to employer groups.

Qur corporate headquarters are located at 9009 Carothers Parkway, Suite 501, Franklin, TN 37067, and our
telephone number is (615) 291-7000. Our corporate website address is www.healthspring.com. Information
contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this report and we do not intend for the information
on or linked to our website to constitute part of this report. We make available our annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports on our website,
free of charge,to individuals interested in obtaining such reports, The reports can be accessed at our website as soon
as reasonably practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. The public may also read and copy these materials at the SEC’s public reference room located
at 100 F. Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 or on their website at http://www.sec.gov. Questions regarding the
operation of the public reference room may be directed to the SEC at 1-800-732-0330. References to
“HealthSpring,” “the company,” “we,” “our,” and “us” refer to HealthSpring, [nc. together with our subsidiaries and
our predecessor entities, unless the context suggests otherwise.



The Medicare Program and Medicare Advantage

Medicare is the health insurance program for United States citizens aged 65 and older, qualifying disabled
persons, and persons suftering from end-stage renal disease. Medicare is funded by the federa! government and
administered by CMS.

The Medicare program, created in 19653, offers both hospital insurance, known as Medicare Part A, and medicai
insurance, known as Medicare Part B, In general, Medicare Part A covers hospital care and some nursing home,
hospice, and home care. Aithough there is no monthly premium for Medicare Part A, beneficiaries are responsible
for paying deductibles and co-payments. All United States citizens eligible for Medicare are automatically enrolled
in Medicare Part A when they turn 65. Enrollment in Medicare Part B is voluntary. In general, Medicare Part B
covers outpatient hospital care, physician services, laboratory services, durable medical equipment, and some other
preventive tests and services. Beneficiaries that enroll in Medicare Part B pay a monthly premium, which was
$93.50 in 2007, that is usually withheld from their Social Security checks. Medicare Part B generally pays 80% of
the cost of services and beneficiaries pay the remaining 20% after the beneficiary has satisfied a deductible, which
was $131.00 in 2007. To fiil the gaps in traditional fee-for-service Medicare coverage, individuals often purchase
Medicare supplement products, commonly known as “Medigap,” to cover deductibles, copayments, and
coinsurance.

Initially, Medicare was offered only on a fee-for-service basis. Under the Medicare fee-for-service payment
system, an individual can choose any licensed physician accepting Medicare patients and use the services of any
hospital, healthcare provider, or facility certified by Medicare. CMS reimburses providers if Medicare covers the
service and CMS considers it “medically necessary.” There is currently no fee-for-service coverage for certain
preventive services, including annual physicals and weliness visits, transportation, eyeglasses, and hearing aids.

As an alternative to the traditional fee-for-service Medicare program, in geographic areas where a managed care
plan has contracted with CMS pursuant to the Medicare Advantage program, Medicare beneficiaries may choose to
receive benefits from a managed care plan. The current Medicare managed care program was established in 1997
when Congress created Medicare Part C, formerly known as Medicare+Choice and now known as Medicare
Advantage. Pursuant to Medicare Part C (and, as of January 1, 2006, Medicare Part D), Medicare Advantage plans
contract with CMS to provide benefits at least comparable to those offered under the traditional fee-for-service
Medicare program in exchange for a fixed monthly premium payment per member from CMS. The monthly
premium varies based on the county in which the member resides, as adjusted to reflect the plan members’
demographics and the plans’ risk scores as more fully described below. Individuals who elect to participate in the
Medicare Advantage program typically receive greater benefits than traditional fee-for-service Medicare
beneficiaries including, as in our Medicare Advantage plans, additional preventive services and vision benefits.
Medicare Advantage plans typically have lower deductibles and co-payments than traditional fee-for-service
Medicare, and plan members generally do not need to purchase supplemental Medigap policies. In exchange for
these enhanced benefits, members are generally required to use only the services and provider network provided by
the Medicare Advantage plan. Many Medicare Advantage plans have no additional monthly premiums. In some
geographic areas, however, and for plans with more open access to providers, members may be required to pay a
monthly premium,

Prior to 1997, CMS reimbursed health plans participating in the Medicare program primarily on the basis of the
demographic data of the plans’ members, One of CMS's primary directives in establishing the Medicare+Choice
program was to make it more attractive to managed care plans to enroll members with higher intensity illnesses. To
accomplish this, CMS implemented a risk adjustment payment system for Medicare health plans in 1997 pursuant to
the Balanced Budget Act of 1997, or BBA. This payment system was further modified pursuant to the Medicare,
Medicaid, and SCHIP Benefits Improvement and Protection Act of 2000, or BIPA. To implement the risk
adjustment payment system, CMS requires that all managed care companies caplure, collect, and report the
necessary diagnosis code information to CMS on a regular basis. As of 2007, CMS had fully phased in this risk
adjustment payment methodology with a model that bases the total CMS reimbursement payments on various
clinical and demographic factors, including hospital inpatient diagnoses, additional diagnosis data from ambulatory
treatment settings, hospital outpatient department and physician visits, gender, age, and eligibility status.




The 2003 Medicare Modernization Act

Overview. In December 2003, Congress passed the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act, which is known as the Medicare Modemization Act, or MMA. The MMA increased the
amounts payable to Medicare Advantage plans such as ours, expanded Medicare beneficiary healthcare options by,
among other things, creating a transitional temporary prescription drug discount card program for 2004 and 2005,
and added a Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit beginning in 2006, as further described below.

One of the goals of the MMA was to reduce the costs of the Medicare program by increasing participaticn in the
Medicare Advantage program. According to published studies, enrollment in Medicare Advantage pians has
increased by 63% since 2005, reaching approximately 8.8 million members in January 2008. Under the MMA,
Medicare Advantage plans are required to use increased payments to improve the healthcare benefits that are
offered, to reduce premiums, or to strengthen provider networks. We believe the reforms started by the MMA,
including in particular the increased reimbursement rates to Medicare Advantage plans, have allowed and will
continue to allow Medicare Advantage plans to offer more comprehensive and attractive benefits, including better
preventive care benefits, while also reducing out-of-pocket expenses for beneficiaries.

Prescription Drug Benefit, As part of the MMA, effective January |, 2006, every Medicare recipient was able to
select a prescription drug plan through Medicare Part D. The Medicare Part D prescription drug benefit is subsidized
by the federal government and is additionally supported by risk-sharing with the federal government through risk
corridors designed to limit the losses and any gains of the drug plans and reinsurance for catastrophic drug costs.
The government subsidy is based on the national weighted average monthly bid for this coverage, adjusted for
member demographics and risk factor payments. Additional subsidies are provided for dual-eligible beneficiaries
and specified low-income beneficiaries. .

The Medicare Part D benefits are available to Medicare Advantage plan enroilees as well as Medicare fee-for-
service enrollees. Medicare Advantage plan enrollees can elect to participate in either our combined medical and
drug products, or MA-PD, or our stand alone prescription drug plan, or PDP, while fee-for-service beneficiaries are
able to purchase a PDP from a list of CMS-approved PDPs available in their area, including our PDP. Our Medicare
Advantage members were automatically enrolled in our MA-PD plans as of January 1, 2006 unless they chose
another provider’s prescription drug coverage or one of our other plan options without drug coverage. Any Medicare
Advantage member enrolling in a stand-alone PDP, however, is automatically disenrelled from the Medicare
Advantage plan altogether, thereby resuming traditional fee-for-service Medicare. Certain dual-eligible beneficiaries
are automatically enrolled with approved PDPs in their region, including our PDP, as described below.

Under the standard Part D drug coverage for 2008, beneficiaries pay a $275 annual deductible, co-insurance
payments equal to 25% of the drug costs between $275 and the annual coverage limit of $2,510, and all drug costs
between $2,510 and $3,726.25, which is commonly referred to as the Part D “gap.” After the beneficiary has
incurred $4,050 in out-of-pocket drug expenses, 95% of the beneficiaries’ remaining out-of-pocket drug costs for
that year are covered by the plan or the federal government. MA-PDs are not required 1o mirror these limits, but are
required to provide, at a minimum, coverage that is actuarially equivalent o the standard drug coverage delineated
in the MMA. The deductible, co-pay, and coverage amounts are adjusted by CMS on an annual basis. As additional
incentive to enroll in a Part D prescription drug plan, CMS imposes a cumulative penalty added to a beneficiary’s
monthly Part D plan premium in an amount equal to 1% of the applicable premium for each month between the date
of a beneficiary’s enrollment deadline and the beneficiary’s actual enrollment. This penalty amount is passed
through the plan to the government. Each Medicare Advantage organization is required to offer at least one Part D
drug prescription plan as part of its benefits. We currently offer prescription drug benefits through our national PDP
and through our MA-PD plans in each of our markets.

Dual-Eligible Beneficiaries. A “dual-eligible” beneficiary is a person who is eligible for both Medicare, because
of age or other qualifying status, and Medicaid, because of economic status. Health plans that serve dual-eligible
beneficiaries receive higher premiums from CMS for dual-eligible members, generally because a dual-eligible
member has a higher risk score corresponding to his or her higher medical costs. By managing utilization and
implementing disease management programs, many Medicare Advantage plans can profitably care for dual-eligible
members, Pursuant to the MMA, as of January 1, 2006, dual-eligible individuals receive their drug coverage from
the Medicare program rather than the Medicaid program. The MMA provides Part D subsidies and reduced or




eliminated deductibles for certain low-income beneficiaries, including dual-eligible individuals. Companies offering
stand-alone PDPs with bids at or below the CMS low income subsidy premium benchmark receive a pro-rata
allocation and auto-enrollment of the dual-eligible beneficiaries within the applicable region. Substantially all of our
stand-alone PDP members result from CMS’s auto-assignment of dual-eligibles. For 2008, our PDP bid was below
the relevant benchmarks in 31 of the 34 CMS regions.

Bidding Process. Although Medicare Advantage plans continue to be paid on a capitated, or per member per
month, or PMPM, basis, since January 1, 2006, CMS has used a rate calculation system for Medicare Advantage
plans based on a competitive bidding process that allows the federal government to share in any cost savings
achteved by Medicare Advantage plans. In general, the statutory payment rate for each county, which is primarily
based on CMS’s estimated per beneficiary fee-for-service expenses, is known as the “benchmark”™ amount, and local
Medicare Advantage plans annually submit bids that reflect the costs they expect to incur in providing the base
Medicare Part A and Part B benefits in their applicable service areas. If the bid is less than the benchmark for that
year, Medicare will pay the plan its bid amount, adjusted based on county of residence and members’ risk scores,
plus a rebate equal to 75% of the amount by which the benchmark exceeds the bid, resulting in an annual adjustment
in reimbursement rates. Plans are required to use the rebate to provide beneficiaries with extra benefits, reduced cost
sharing, or reduced premiums, including premiums for MA-PD and other supplemental benefits and CMS has the
right to audit the use of these proceeds. The remaining 25% of the excess amount is retained in the statutory
Medicare trust fund. If a Medicare Advantage plan’s bid is greater than the benchmark, the plan is required to charge
a premium to enrollees equal to the difference between the bid amount and the benchmark, which has made such
plans charging premiums less attractive to potential members.

Annual Enrollment and Lock-in. Prior to the MMA, Medicare beneficiaries were permitted to enroll in a
Medicare managed care plan or change plans at any point during the year. As of January 1, 2006, Medicare
beneficiaries have defined enrollment periods, similar to commercial plans, in which they can select a Medicare
Advantage plan, stand-alone PDP, or traditional fee-for-service Medicare. The annual enrollment period for a PDP
is now from November 15 through December 31 of each year, and enrollment in Medicare Advantage plans occurs
from November 15 through March 31 of the subsequent year. Enrollment on or prior to December 31 will be
effective as of January 1 of the following year and enroliment on or after January 1 and within the enrollment period
will be effective as of the first day of the month following the date on which the enrollment occurred. Afier these
defined enrollment periods end, generally only persons turning 65 during the year, Medicare beneficiaries who
permanently relocate to another service area, dual-eligible and institutional beneficiaries and others who qualify for
special needs plans, and employer group retirees will be permitted to enroll in or change health plans during that
plan vear. Eligible beneficiaries who fail to timely enroll in a Part D plan are subject to the penalties described above
if they later decide to enroli in a Part D plan.

Products and Services

We currently offer Medicare health plans, including MA-only and MA-PD, in local services areas in six states.
We also offer a national stand-alone PDP plan.

Medicare Advantage Plans. Our Medicare Advantage plans cover Medicare eligible members with benefits that
are at least comparable to those offered under traditional Medicare fee-for-service plans. Through our plans, we
have the flexibility to offer benefits not covered under traditional fee-for-service Medicare. Our plans are designed
to be attractive to seniors and offer a broad range of benefits that vary across our markets and service areas but may
include, for example, mental health benefits, vision and hearing benefits, transportation services, preventive health
services such as health and fitness programs, routine physicals, various health screenings, immunizations,
chiropractic services, and mammograms. On January 1, 2006, we began offering prescription drug benefits in
accordance with Medicare Part D to our Medicare Advantage plan members, in addition to continuing to provide
other medical benefits.

Most of our Medicare Advantage members pay no monthly premium but are subject in some cases to co-payments
and deductibles, depending upon the market and benefit. Our Medicare Advantage members are required to use a
primary care physician within our network of providers, except in limited cases, including emergencies, and generally
must receive referrals from their primary care physician in order to see a specialist or other ancillary provider. In




addition to our typical Medicare Advantage benefits, we offer several different types of special needs zero premium,
zero co-payment plans, or SNPs, to dual-eligible individuals, institutions, and a chronic care plan targeting individuals
with chronic conditions such as diabetes, hypertension, and hyperlipidemia in each of our markets.

The amount of premiums we receive for each Medicare Advantage member is established by contract, although
it varies according to various demographic factors, including the member’s geographic location, age, gender, and
eligibility status, and is further adjusted based on the member’s risk score. During the month of December 2007, our
Medicare Advantage PMPM premiums (including MA-PD) across our service areas ranged from approximately
$765 to approximately $1,044. In addition to the premiums payable to us, our contracts with CMS regulate, among
other matters, benefits provided, quality assurance procedures, and marketing and advertising for our Medicare
Advantage and PDP products.

National Part D Plan. In January 1, 2006, we also began offering prescription drug benefits on a stand-alone
basis in accordance with Medicare Part D in each of our markets, which we expanded nationally in 2007. Under our
national PDP program, members pay a monthly premium depending upon their residence in the relevant CMS
region. The plan offers national in-network prescription drug coverage that is subject to limitations in certain
circumstances. Our PDP uses a specific prescription drug formulary. Different out-of-pocket costs, in the form of
federal subsidiaries, may apply for specified low income beneficiaries. For PDP members who do not qualify for a
federal subsidy, the PDP has a $275 in-network deductible, after which the member pays 25% of the costs of
prescription drugs until total drug costs reach $2,510. After exceeding this amount, the member must pay 100% of
the cost of prescription drugs until out-of-pocket costs reach $4,050, at which point benefits resume and the member
must again make copayments per prescription (which vary based upon the type of drug prescribed). For 2008, our
national PDP bid was below the benchmark in 31 of the 34 CMS regions. Of our January 1, 2008 PDP membership
of 254,000, approximately 40% reside in the five regions where we offer Medicare Advantage plans and 20% reside
in California. Substantially all of our stand-alone PDP members result from CMS’s assignment of dual-eligibles.

Commercial Products. In addition to our Medicare Advantage and stand-alone PDP products, we offer
commercial managed care products and services in certain of our markets. Our commercial plans cover employer
groups with medical coverage and benefits that differ from plan to plan for a set monthly premium.

We also offer management services to independent physician associations in our Alabama, Tennessee, and Texas
markets, including claims processing, provider relations, credentialing, reporting, and other general business office

services. g

Our Health Plans

We operate Medicare and commercial health plans through HMO subsidiaries. Each of the HMO subsidiaries is
regulated by the department of insurance, and in some cases the department of health, in each state in which it
operates. In addition, we own and operate non-regulated management company subsidiaries that provide
administrative and management services to the HMO subsidiaries in exchange for a percentage of the HMO
subsidiaries’ revenue pursuant to management agreements and administrative services agreements. Management
services provided to the HMOs include:

* negotiation, monitoring, and quality assurance of contracts with third party healthcare providers;

s medical management, credentialing, marketing, and product promotion;

= support services and administration;

= financial services; and

= claims processing and other general business office services.




The following table summarizes our Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD), stand-alone PDP, and
commercial plan membership as of the dates indicated:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Medicare Advantage Membershtp
Tennessee.. 50,510 46,261 42,509
KA cnteceee s certresine s eerrresre s e e s s e e et st na e ae s be s baesareaas © 36,661 34,638 29,706
L F: 1o 1o - USRS 30,600 27,307 24,531
Florida (1) 25,946 —_— —
ITHRO0IS 1. cviis et cr e e e e e e e s ae s te s sr b na e me s a e e e enans 8,639 6,284 4,166
MISSISBIPPH 1rvvrereuereruernscoreeermecrercimsmeresenesssseeseseeresassessresessasesesnre 841 642 369
TOtAl .ot e e e 133,197 115,132 101,281
Medicare Stand-Alone PDP Membership............ ereareraenrenrenn e stasrenns 139,212 88,753 —
Commercial Membership (2)
TEINESSEE .....eoeeeeecsee s e srasrrsassebbee b e ms e teeesr e ns e snessrseesarsnnnessnas 11,046 29,341 29,859
AlADAMA .oovieciities e e et rne e 755 2,629 11,910
Total (3) ] 1,80} 31,970 . 41,769

(1) The company acquired LMC Health Plans on October 1, 2007. As of the acquisition date, the health plan
had approximately 25,800 members.

(2) Does not include members of commercial PPOs owned and operated by unrelated third parties that pay us
a network rental fee for access to our contracted provider network.

\
(3) Commercial membership has declined since 2005 as a result of the non-renewal by employees in
Tennessee and Alabama. This decling has continued into 2008 as total membership as of January 1, 2008
was 3,418.

Tennessee .

We began operations in Tennessee in September 2000 when we purchased a 50% interest in an HMO in the
Nashville, Tennessee area that offered commercial and Medicare products. When we purchased the plan, it had
approximately 8,000 Medicare Advantage members in five counties and 22,000 commercial members in 27
counties. We purchased an additional 35% interest in the HMO in 2003 and purchased the remaining 15% interest in
March 2005. Our Tennessee market is primarily divided into three major service areas including Nashville/Middle
Tennessee, the three-county greater Memphis area, and the seven-county greater Chattanooga area.

As of December 31, 2007, our Tennessee HMO, known as HealthSpring of Tennessee, had approximately
61,500 members in 31 counties, including approximately 50,500 Medicare Advantage members, and 11,000
commercial members. For 2008, in selected middle-Tennessee counties, we began offering tiered network products
providing Medicare Advantage members the option of joining a “preferred” network of highly organized primary
care physicians and offering enhanced benefits or a “non-preferred” network with reduced benefits and a monthly
premium. This network tiering has resulted in a slight, but expected, reduction in our Medicare Advantage
membership in Tennessee.

As aresult of non-renewals by several large employers, total commercial membership as of January 1, 2008 was
2,341, In addition, through Signature Health Alliance, our wholly-owned PPO network subsidiary, we provided
access to our provider networks for approximately 51,000 members as of December 31, 2007, throughout the 20-
county area of Middle Tennessee.

Based upon the number of members, we believe we operate the largest Medicare Advantage health plan in the
State of Tennessee. We believe the primary competing Medicare Advantage plans in our service areas in Tennessee
are Windsor Health Group, Humana, Inc., UnitedHealth Group, and Blue Cross Blue Shield of Tennessee,




Texas

We began operations in Texas in November 2000 as an independent physician association management
company. We began operating an HMO in Texas in November 2002 when we acqulred approximately 7,800
Medicare lives from a managed care plan in state receivership.

As of December 31, 2007, our Texas HMO, known as Texas HealthSpring, had approximately 36,600 Medicare
Advantage members in 25 counties. Our Texas market is primarily divided into three major service areas, including
the 14-county greater Houston area, an eight-county arca northeast of Houston, and a three-county area in the Rio
Grande Valley.

Our primary competitors in our Texas service areas include traditional Medicare Advantage and private fee-for-
service, or PFFS, plans operated by Humana, Inc., Universal American Financial Corp., UnitedHealth Group,
Universal Health Care, Inc., and XL Health. '

Alabama

We began operations in Alabama in November 2002 when we purchased an HMO with approximately 23,000
commercial members and approximately 2,800 Medicare members in two counties. As of December 31, 2007, our
Alabama HMO, known as HealthSpring of Alabama, served over 31,000 members, including approximately 30,600
Medicare Advantage members and 755 commercial members in 33 counties. We reduced our Medicare Advantage
service areas in Alabama to 21 counties as of January 1, 2008, which resulted in a slight decline in Medicare
Advantage membership. As we generally operate statewide, we do not have distinct primary service areas in
Alabama.

We discontinued offering commercial benefits to new individuals and small group employers in Alabama in
2006 and as of January 1, 2008, there were approximately 1,100 commercial members participating in our individua}
and small employer group plans in Alabama. Pursuant to Alabama and federal law, as a result of our decision to exit
the individual and small group commercial markets, we may not reenter the individual and small group employer
commercial markets in Alabama until late 2010.

Based upon the number of members, we believe we operate the second largest Medicare Advantage health plan
in Alabama as of December 2007, Our primary competitors are UnitedHealth Group, Viva Health, a member of the
University of Alabama at Birmingham Health System, Blue Cross Blue Shield of Alabama, and Humana, Inc.

Florida

On October 1, 2007, we completed our acquisition of LMC Health Plans. As of December 31, 2007, LMC
Health Plans had approximately 26,000 members. As part of the transaction, we entered into an exclusive long-term
provider contract with LMC, which operates five Medicare-only medical clinics located in Miami-Dade County and
has a ten-year history of providing medical care and customer service to the Hispanic community of South Florida.
Services offered in the medical clinics include primary care, specialty-care, dental, vision, radiology, and pharmacy
services as well as transportation for members to and from the clinics.

LMC Health Plans’ primary competitors in Miami-Dade County include Humana, Inc., Care Plus, Inc. (an
affiliate of Humana), Preferred Care Partners, Inc., Medica Health Plans, Inc. and Avmed, Inc.

HHinois

We began operations in illinois in December 2004 and, as of December 31, 2007, our Medicare Advantage plan
in Nllinois, known as Hea]thSprmg of 1ilinois, served approximately 8,600 members in five counties in the Chicago
area. We believe our primary competitors in this area are Humana, Inc., Wellcare Health Plans Inc., Aetna, Inc. and
UnitedHealth Group.




Mississippi

We commenced our enrollment efforts in July 2005 for our Medicare Advantage plan, known as HealthSpring of
Mississippi, in two counties in Northern Mississippi located near Memphis, Tennessee. We entered these service
areas consistent with our growth strategy to leverage existing operations to expand to new service areas located near
or contiguous to our existing service areas. In 2006, we expanded our operations in our Mississippi market to
include six counties in Southern Mississippi located near Mobile, Alabama. Effective January 1, 2008, we expanded
our operations into three additional counties in Southern Mississippi. Currently, we believe Humana, Inc. is the only
other managed care company offering a competing Medicare Advantage plan in the State of Mississippi.

Medical Health Services Management and Provider Networks

One of our primary goals is to arrange for high quality healthcare for our members. To achieve our goal of
ensuring high quality, cost-effective healthcare, we have established various quality management programs. Qur
health services quality management programs integrate disease management and utilization management programs
into one overall program to better coordinate the care of Medicare populations.

We have implemented case management programs to provide more efficient and effective use of healthcare
services by our members. These programs are designed to improve outcomes for members with chronic conditions
through standardization, active medical management, coordinating fragmented healthcare systems to reduce
healthcare duplication, providing “gate-keeping™ services and improving coltaboration with physicians, We utilize
on-site critical care intensivists, hospitalists, and concurrent review nurses, who manage the transitions to outpatient
care, hospitalization, rehabilitation, or home care. We have personnel that menitor hospitalizations, coordinate care,
and ensure timely discharge from the hospital. Our chronic care program focuses on care management and treatment
of our members with specific high risk or chronic conditions such as coronary artery disease, congestive heart
failure, end stage renal disease, diabetes, asthma related conditions, and certain other conditions. We also offer
prenatal case management programs as part of our commercial plans.

We have information technology systems that support our quality improvement and management activities by
allowing us to identify opportunities Lo improve care and track the outcomes of the services provided to achieve

those improvements. We utilize this information as part of our monthly analytical reviews and to enhance our
preventive care and disease and case management programs where appropriate.

-

Additionally, we internally monitor and evaluate, and seek to enhance, the performance of our providers. Qur
related programs include:

= revigw of utilization of preventive measures and disease/case management resources and refated outcomes;
* member satisfaction surveys;

« patient safety initiatives;

= inlegration with pharmacy services;

* review of grievances and appeals by members and providers;

« orientation visits Lo, and site audits of, select providers;

* ongoing provider and member education programs; and

* medical record audits.

As more fully described below under “— Provider Arrangements and Payment Methods,” our reimbursement

methods are also designed to encourage providers to utilize preventive care and our other disease and case
management services in an effort to improve clinical outcomes.




We believe strong provider relationships are essential to increasing our membership and improving the quality of
care to our members on a cost efficient basis. We have established comprehensive networks of providers in each of
the areas we serve. We seek providers who have experience in managing the Medicare population, including
through a risk-sharing or other relationship with a Medicare Advantage plan. Qur goal is to create mutually
beneficial and collaborative arrangements with our providers. We believe provider incentive arrangements should
not only help us attract providers, but also help align their interests with our objective of providing high-quality,
cost-effective healthcare and ultimately encourage providers to deliver a level of care that promotes member
wellness, reduces avoidable catastrophic outcomes, and improves clinical results.

In some markets, we have entered into semi-exclusive arrangements with provider organizations or networks.
For example, in Texas we have partnered with Renaissance Physician Organization, or RP(, a large group of 13
independent physician associations with over 1,200 physicians, including approximately 500 primary care
physicians, or PCPs, and approximately 28,400 enrolled members {ocated primarily in seven counties in the State of
Texas. In Florida, pursuant to our exclusive arrangement with LMC, LMC provides primary care services {including
preventive and wellness care, dental, and vision) at its five medical centers and arranges for specialty and in-patient
care for all of our 25,000+ members in Miami-Dade County.

We strive to be the preferred Medicare Advantage partner for providers in each market we serve. in addition to
risk-sharing and other incentive-based financial arrangements, we seck to promote a provider-friendly relationship
by paying claims promptly, providing periodic performance and efficiency evaluations, providing convenient, web-
based access to eligibility data and other information, and encouraging provider input on plan benefits. We also
emphasize quality assurance and compliance by periodically reviewing our networks and providers. By fostering a
collaborative, interactive relationship with our providers, we are better able to gather data relevant to improving the
level of preventive healthcare available under our plans, menitor the utilization of medical treatment and the
accuracy of patient encounter data, risk coding and the risk scores of our plans, and otherwise ensure our contracted
providers are providing high-quality and timely medical care.

The following table shows the number of physicians, specialists, and other providers participating in our
Medicare Advantage networks as of December 31, 2007:

Specialists

Primary Care and Other

Market Physicians Hospitals _ Providers
' 1,219 57 3,460
916 58 1,752
725 b 2,390
THNOTS 1ot e 410 20 1,463
Mississippi.....cooveenees 99 2 204
Florida .....covvvvevnreneees 47 _6 312
TOUAL ..ottt rn e e e s s p e nrs e 3,416 194 9,581

In our efforts to improve the quality and cost-effectiveness of healthcare for our members, we continue to refine
and develop new methods of medical management and physician engagement. Two such initiatives are currently
underway. We have had encouraging preliminary results from the initial pilot of our “pay-for-quality” initiative,
which provides quality and outcomes-based financial incentives to physicians. The program includes an in-office
practice coordinator, usually a nurse, in the physician practice that is dedicated to serving our members. We also
provide a dedicated call center resource for disease management support. The program currently includes 27 sites,
348 physicians, and 25,000 members with plans in place to expand to a total of 35-40 sites, more than 400
physicians, and more than 40,000 members by the end of the year.

In December 2006, we opened our first LivingWell Health Center clinic in Middle Tennessee dedicated to our
Medicare plan members and contracted with a medical group in Tennessee that experienced encouraging pay-for-
quality results as discussed above. The clinic was designed with the Medicare member in mind, with amenities
designed to minimize barriers to patient access such as single floors (no elevators or stairs); adjacent parking or valet
service, and, in some cases, pick up and return services; open reception areas; on-site nutritionists, dieticians, and
nurse educators; wide corridors and doors; handicapped-accessible facilities; and electronic medical records. We
believe our clinics improve member satisfaction, service levels, and clinical outcomes and provide for a more
satisfying and cost-efficient manner for the physician to deliver care. The results of the first full year of operations




of our first center support this belief, demonstrating comparative improvements in each of those areas. Based on this
preliminary success, we opened our second LivingWell Health Center in Mobile in October 2007. We continue to
believe and see evidence that the unique solution and experience created through LivingWell Health Centers will
give us an advantage over our competitors not offering clinics, creating a more attractive network for our members.

Generally, we contract for pharmacy services through an unrelated pharmacy benefits manager, or PBM, who is
reimbursed at a discount to the “average wholesale price” for the provision of covered outpatient drugs. Our HMOs
are entitled to share in drug manufacturers’ rebates based on pharmacy utilization relating to certain qualifying
medications. We also contract with a third party behavioral health vendor whe provides mental health and substance
abuse services for our members. '

Provider Arrangements and Payment Methods

We attempt to structure our provider arrangements and payment methods in a manner that encourages the
medical provider to deliver high quality medical care to our members. We also attempt to structure our provider
contracts in a way that mitigates some or all of our medical risk either through capitation or other risk-sharing
arrangements. In general, there are two types of medical risk -— professional and institutional, Professional risk
primarily relates to physician and other outpatient services. Institutional risk primarily relates to hospitalization and
other inpatient or institutionally-based services. We believe our incentive and risk-sharing arrangements help to
align the interests of the physician with us and cur members and improve both clinical and financial outcomes.

We generally pay our providers under one of three payment methods:

» fee-for-service, based on a negotiated fixed-fee schedule where we are fully responsible for managing
institutional and professional risk;

* capitation, based on a PMPM payment, where physicians generaliy assume the professional risk, or on a
case-rate or per diem basis, where a hospital or health system generally assumes the institutional or
professiconal risk, or both; and

+ risk-sharing arrangements, typically with a physician group, where we advance, on a PMPM basis, amounts
designed to cover the anticipated professional risk and then adjust payments, on a monthly basis, between us
and the physician group based on actual experience measured against pre-determined sharing ratios.

Under any of these payment methods, we may also supplement provider payments with incentive arrangements
based, in general, on the quality of healthcare delivery. For example, as an incentive to encourage our providers to
deliver high quality care for their patients and assist us with our quality assurance and medical management
programs, we ofien seek to implement incentive arrangements whereby we compensate our providers for “quality
performance,” including increased fee-for-service rates for specified preventive health services and additional
payments for providing specified encounter data on a timely basis. We also seek to implement financial incentives
relating to other operational matters where appropriate.

In connection with the recently completed acquisition of LMC Health Plans, LMC Health Plans and LMC, our
exclusive clinic model provider in South Florida, entered into a long-lerm medical services agreement under which
we agree to pay LMC in advance for medical services at agreed-upon rates for each service multiplied by the
number of plan members as of the first day of each month. There is also a risk-sharing arrangement with LMC,
whereby we annually adjust such payments based on our annual institutional and professional medical loss ratio, or
MLR, for LMC Health Plan members. We have agreed to share equally with LMC any surplus or deficit of up to 5%
with regard to agreed-upon MLR benchmarks, which are initially set at 80.0% and increase to 81.0% during the term
of this agreement.

In a limited number of cases, we may be at risk for medical expenses above and beyond a negotiated amount (a
so-called “stop loss™ provision), which amount is typically calculated by reference 10 a percentage of billed charges,
in some cases back to the first dollar of medical expense. When our members receive services for which we are
responsible from a provider with whom we have not contracted, such as in the case of emergency room services
from non-contracted hospitals, we generally attempt to negotiate a rate with that provider. In the case of a Medicare




patient who is admitted to a non-contracting hospital, we are only obligated to pay the amount that the hospital
would have received from CMS under traditional fee-for-service Medicare. In non-Medicare cases, we may be
obligated to pay the full rate billed by the provider.

Sales and Marketing Programs

Medicare Advantage enrollment is generally a decision made individually by the member. Accordingly, our
sales agents and representatives focus their efforts on in-person contacts with potential enrollees as well as
telephonic and group selling venues. To date, we have not actively marketed our PDP and have relied primarily on
auto-assignments of dual-eligibles by CMS. As of December 31, 2007, our sales force consisted of approximately
600 appointed third party agents and 100 internal licensed sales employees (including in-house telemarketing
personnel), Our third party agents are compensated on a commission basis.

In addition to traditional marketing methods including direct mail, telemarketing, radio, television, internet and
other mass media, and cooperative advertising with participating hospitals and medical groups to generate leads, we
also conduct community outreach programs in churches and community centers and in coordination with
government agencies. We regularly participate in local community health fairs and events, and seek to become
involved with local senior citizen organizations to promote our products and the benefits of preventive care.

Qur sales and marketing programs include an integrated multimedia advertising campaign featuring Major
League Baseball Hall of Fame member Willie Mays, our national spokespersen. Campaigns are tailored to each of
our local service areas and are designed with the goal of educating, attracting, and retaining members and providers.
In addition, we seek to create ethnically and culturally competent marketing programs where appropriate that reflect
the diversity of the areas that we serve,

Our marketing and sales activities are regulated by CMS and other governmental agencies. In testimony before
Congress, CMS$ has stated that it is considering a range of options to further regulate the marketing of Medicare
Advantage plans. In 2007, legislation was proposed in both the United States House of Representatives and Senate
that would standardize marketing requirements for Medicare Advantage plans and PDPs, CMS has oversight over
all, and in some cases has imposed advance approval requirements with respect to, marketing materials used by our
Medicare Advantage plans, and our sales activities are limited to activities such as conveying information regarding
benefits, describing the operations of managed care plans, and providing information about eligibility requirements.
The activities of our third-party brokers and agents are also heavily regulated. We maintain active and ongoing
training and oversight of all employed and contracted sales representatives, agents, and brokers.

Medicare beneficiaries have a limited annual enrollment period during which they can choose between a
Medicare Advantage plan and traditional fee-for-service Medicare. After this annual enrollment period ends,
generally only seniors turning 65 during the year, dual-eligible and institutional beneficiaries and others who qualify
for special needs plans, Medicare beneficiaries permanently relocating to another service area, and employer group
retirees will be permitted to enroll in or change health plans. The annual enrollment period is from November 15
through December 31 each year for stand-alone PDPs and through March 31 of the following year for Medicare
Advantage plans. Medicare Advantage beneficiaries have an open enrollment period that runs from January 1 to
March 31 of each year to make one equivalent election. We have significantly adjusted the timing and intensity of
our marketing efforts to align with the limited open enrellment period.

Quality Assurance

As part of our quality assurance program, we have implemented processes designed to ensure compliance with
regulatory and accreditation standards. Our quality assurance program also consists of internal programs that
credential providers and programs designed to help ensure we meet the audit standards of federal and state agencies,
inciuding CMS and the state depariments of insurance, as well as applicable external accreditation standards. For
example, we monitor and educate, in accordance with audit tools developed by CMS, our claims, credentialing,
customer service, enrollment, health services, provider relations, contracting, and marketing departments with
respect to compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and other requirements.




Our providers must satisfy specific criteria, such as licensing, credentialing, patient access, office standards,
after-hours coverage, and other factors. Qur participating hospitals must also meet specific criteria, including
accreditation criteria established by CMS,

Competition

We historically engaged in business in areas where there were few or no competing Medicare Advantage plans,
although we are currently operating in an increasingly competitive environment, particularly with the recent advent
of PFFS plans since the passage of the MMA. Medicare PFFS plans allow their members more flexibility to select
physicians than Medicare Advantage HMO plans. Our principal competitors for contracts, members, and providers
vary by local service area and are principally national, regional, and local commercial managed care organizations,
including PDPs, targeting Medicare recipients including, among others, UnitedHealth Group, Humana, Inc., and
Universal American Financial Corp. In addition, the MMA has caused a number of other managed care
organizations, some of which are already in our service areas, to decide to enter the Medicare Advantage market.
Moreover, the implementation of Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits in 2006 caused national and regional
pharmaceutical distributors and retailers, pharmacy benefit managers, and managed care organizations to enter our
markets and provide services and benefits to the Medicare-eligible population.

We believe the principal factors influencing a Medicare recipient’s choice among health plan options are:

» additional premiums, if any, payable by the beneficiary;

* benefits offered,;

* location and choice of healthcare providers;

+ quality of customer service and administrative efficiency;

* reputation for quality care;

» financial stability of the plan; and

* accreditation results.

A number of these competitive elements are partially dependent upen and can be positively affected by financial
resources available to a health plan. We face competition from other managed care companies that have greater
financial and other resources, larger enrollments, broader ranges of products and benefits, broader geographical
coverage, more established reputations in the national market and in our markets, greater market share, larger
contracting scale, and lower costs. Superior benefit design, provider network, and community perception may also
provide a distinct competitive advantage.

Regulation
Overview

As a managed care organization, our operations are and will continue to be subject to pervasive federal, state,
and local government regulation, which will have a broad effect on the operation of our health ptans. The laws and
regulations affecting our industry generally give state and federal regulatory authorities broad discretion in their
exercise of supervisory, regulatory, and administrative powers. These laws and regulations are intended primarily
for the benefit of the members and providers of the health plans. :

In addition, our right to obtain payment from Medicare is subject to compliance with numerous regulations and
requirements, many of which are complex and evolving as a result of the MMA, and are subject to administrative
discretion. Moreover, since we are contracting only with the Medicare program to provide coverage for beneficiaries

of our Medicare Advantage and PDP plans, our Medicare revenues are completely dependent upen the
reimbursement levels and coverage determinations in effect from time to time in the Medicare program.




in addition, in order to operate our Medicare Advantage and PDP plans, we must obtain and maintain certificates
of authority or licenses from each state in which we operate. In order to remain certified we generally must
demonstrate, among other things, that we have the financial resources necessary to pay our anticipated medical care
expenses and the infrastructure needed to account for our costs and otherwise meet applicable licensing
requirements, Each of our health plans is also required to report quarterly on its financial performance to the
appropriate regulatory agency in the state in which the health plan is licensed. Each plan also undergoes periodic
reviews of our quality of care and financial status by the applicable state agencies. Accordingly, in order 10 remain
qualified for the Medicare program, it may be necessary for our Medicare plans to make changes from time to time
in their operations, personnel, and services. Although we intend for our Medicare plans to maintain certification and
to continue to participate in those reimbursement programs, there can be no assurance that our Medicare plans will
continue to qualify for participation.

The MMA generally requires PDP sponsors to be licensed under state law as a risk-bearing entity eligible to
offer health insurance or health benefits coverage in each state in which the sponsor wishes to offer a PDP. CMS has
implemented two waiver processes, however, to allow PDP sponsors to begin operations prior to obtaining state
licensure or certification in all states in which they do business, even if the state already has in place a licensing
process for PDP sponsors. PDP sponsors were able to seek a “single state waiver” in such states by submitting 1o
CMS a waiver application. We applied for and were granted, effective January 1, 2007, single state licensure
watvers in 46 states that will expire December 31, 2009. A “regional plan waiver” is also available to PDP sponsors
that have obtained licensure as a risk-bearing entity in at least one state in a PDP region.

Federal Regulation

Medicare. Medicare is a federally sponsored healtheare plan for persons aged 65 and over, qualifying disabled
persons, and persons suffering from end-stage renal discase which provides a vanety of hospital and medical
insurance benefits. We contract with CMS to provide services to Medicare beneficiaries pursuant to the Medicare
program. As a result, we are subject to extensive federal regulations, some of which are described in more detail
elsewhere in this report. CMS may, and does, audit any health plan operating under a Medicare contract to
determine the plan’s comptiance with federal regulations and contractual obligations.

Additionally, the marketing activities of Medicare plans are strictly regulated by CMS. For example, CMS has
oversight over all, and in some cases has imposed advance approval requirements with respect to, marketing
materials used by our Medicare plans, and our sales activities are limited to activities such as conveying information
regarding benefits, describing the operations of managed care plans, and providing information about eligibility
requirements. Federal law precludes states from imposing additional marketing restrictions on Medicare plans. -
States, however, remain free to regulate, and typically do regulate, the marketing activities of plans that enroll
commercial beneficiaries. In 2007, legislation was proposed in both the United States House of Representatives and
Senate that would standardize marketing requirements for Medicare Advantage plans and PDPs. The pending
legislation would prohibit various marketing activities, including cross-selling non-Medicare and Medicare products,
up-selling from PDP to Medicare Advantage plans, and certain types of telemarketing and monetary rebates as
inducement for enrollment. In testimony before Congress in February 2008, CMS stated that it is considering a
range of options to further regulate the marketing of Medicare Advantage plans, including prohibiting “cold calls” to
beneficiaries and in-hoine sales to beneficiaries.

Fraud and Abuse Laws. The federal anti-kickback statute imposes criminal and civil penalties for paying or
receiving remuneration {which includes kickbacks, bribes, and rebates) in connection with any federal healthcare
program, including the Medicare program. The law and related regulations have been interpreted to prohibit the
payment, solicitation, offering or receipt of any form of remuneration in return for the referral of federal healthcare
program palients or any item or service that is reimbursed, in whole or in part, by any federal healtheare program. In
some of our markets, states have adopted similar anti-kickback provisions, which apply regardless of the source of
reimbursement.

With respect to the federal anti-kickback statute, there are two safe harbors addressing certain risk-sharing
arrangements. In addition, the Office of the Inspector General has adopted other safe harbors related to managed
care arrangements. These safe harbors describe relationships and activities that are deemed not to violate the federal
anti-kickback statute. Failure to satisfy each criterion of an applicable safe harbor does not mean that an
arrangement conslitutes a violation of the law; rather the arrangement must be analyzed on the basis of its specific

13




facts and circumstances. Business arrangements that do not fall within a safe harbor create a risk of increased
scrutiny by government enforcement authorities. We have attempted to structure our risk-sharing arrangements with
providers, the incentives offered by our health plans to Medicare beneficiaries, and the discounts our plans receive
from contracting healthcare providers to satisfy the requirements of these safe harbors. There can be no assurance,
however, that upon review regulatory authorities will determine that our arrangements satis{y the requirements of
the safe harbors and do not violate the federal anti-kickback statute.

CMS has promulgated regulations that prohibit health plans with Medicare contracts from including any direct or
indirect payment to physicians or other providers as an inducement to reduce or limit medically necessary services to a
Medicare beneficiary. These regulations impose disclosure and other requirements relating to physician incentive plans
including bonuses or withholdings that could result in a physician being at “substantial financial risk” as defined in
Medicare regulations. Our ability to maintain compliance with these regulations depends, in part, on our receipt of
timely and accurate information from our providers. We conduct our operations in an attempt to comply with these
regulations; however, we are subject to future audit and review. It is possible that regulatory authorities may challenge
our provider arrangements and operations and there can be no assurance that we would prevail if challenged.

Federal False Claims Act. We are subject to a number of laws that regulate the presentation of false claims or
the submission of false information to the federal government. For example, the federal False Claims Act provides,
in part, that the federal government may bring a lawsuit against any person or entity who it believes has knowingly
" presented, or caused to be presented, a false or fraudulent request for payment from the federal government, or who
has made a false statement or used a false record to get a claim approved. The federal government has taken the
position that claims presented in violation of the federal anti-kickback statute may be considered a violation of the
federal False Claims Act. Violations of the False Claims Act are punishable by treble damages and penalties of up to
$11,000 per false claim. In addition to suits filed by the government, a special provision under the False Claims Act
allows a private person (for example, a ' whistleblower” such as a disgruntled former employee, competitor, or
patient) to bring an action under the False Claims Act on behalf of the government alleging that an entity has
defrauded the federal government and permits the private person to share in any settlement or judgment that may
result from that lawsuit. Although we strive to operate our business in compliance with all applicable rules and
regulations, we may be subject to investigations and lawsuits under the False Claims Act that may be initiated either
by the government or a whistleblower. It is not possible to predict the impact such actions may have on our business.

A number of states, including states in which we operate, have adopted false claims acts, as well as their own
laws whereby a private party may file a civil lawsuit in state court.

Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996. The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability
Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes requirements relating to a variety of issues that affect our business, including the
privacy and security of medical information, limits on exclusions based on preexisting conditions for our plans,
guaranteed renewability of healthcare coverage for most employers and individuals and administrative simplification
procedures involving the standardization of transactions and the establishment of uniform healthcare provider, payor,
and employer identificrs, Various federal agencies have adopted regulations to implement certain sections of HIPAA.

For example, the Department of Health and Human Services, or DHHS, adepted a final rule that establishes the
standard data content and format for the electronic submission of claims and other administrative health
transactions. HIPAA also requires that each provider receive and use a national provider identifier. Aithough we
believe our operations are compliant with the electronic data standards established by the final rule, to the extent that
we are unable to support unique identifiers and electronic healthcare claims and payment transactions in compliance
with these standards, we may be subject to penaliies and our operations may be adversely impacted. Additionally,
DHHS has adopted a final privacy rule and final security standards that apply to individually identifiable health
information. The primary purposes of the privacy rule are to protect and enhance the rights of consumers by
providing them access to their health information and controlling the inappropriate use of that information, and to
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of healthcare delivery by creating a national framework for health privacy
protection that builds on efforts by states, health systems, individual organizations, and individuals. The final rule
for security standards establishes minimum standards for the security of individually identifiable health information
that is transmitted or maintained electronically. We will conduct our operations in an attempt to comply with the
requirements of the privacy rule and the security standards. There can be no assurance, however, that upon review
regulatory authorities will find that we are in compliance with these requirements.
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On January 8, 2001, the U.S. Department of Labor’s Pension and Welfare Benefits Administration, the IRS and
DHHS adopted two regulations that provide guidance on the nondiscrimination provisions under HIPAA as they
relate to health factors and wellness programs. These provisions prohibit a group health plan or group health
insurance issuer from denying an individual eligibility for benefits or charging an individual a higher premium based
on a health factor. These reguiations have not had a material adverse effect on our business.

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974. The provision of services to certain employee health benefit
plans is subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, or ERISA. ERISA regulates certain
aspects of the relationships between plans and employers who maintain employee benefit plans subject to ERISA.
Some of our administrative services and other activities may also be subject to regulation under ERISA.

The U.S. Department of Labor adopted federal regulations that establish claims procedures for employee benefit
plans under ERISA. The regulations shorten the time allowed for health and disability plans to respond to claims and
appeals, establish requirements for plan responses to appeals, and expand required disclosures to participants and
beneficiaries. These regulations have not had a material adverse effect on our business.

State Regulation

Though generally governed by federal law, each of our HMO subsidiaries is licensed in the markets in which it
operates and is subject to the rules, regulations, and oversight by the applicable state department of insurance in the
areas of licensing and solvency. Our HMO subsidiaries file reports with these state agencies describing their capital
structure, ownership, financial condition, certain inter-company transactions and business operations. Our HMO
subsidiaries are also generally required to demonstrate among other things, that we have an adequate provider
network, that our systems are capable of processing providers’ claims in a timely fashion and of collecting and
analyzing the information needed to manage their business. State regulations also require the prior approval or
notice of acquisitions or similar transactions involving an HMG, and of certain transactions between an HMO and
its parent or affiliated entities or persons, such as the payment of dividends.

Our HMO subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum levels of statutory capital. The minimum statutory
capital requirements differ by state and are generally based on a percentage of annualized premium revenue, a
percentage of annualized healthcare costs, or risk-based capital, or RBC, requirements, The RBC requirements are
based on guidelines established by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners, or NAIC, and are
administered by the states. If adopted, the RBC requirements may be modified as each state legislature deems
appropriate for that state. Currently, only our Texas HMO subsidiary is subject to statutory RBC requirements and
our other HMO subsidiaries are subject to other minimum statutory capital requirements mandated by the states in
which they are licensed. These requirements assess the capital adequacy of an HMO subsidiary based upon
investment asset risks, insurance risks, interest rate risks and other risks associated with its business to determine the
amount of statutory capital believed to'be required to support the HMO’s business. If the HMO’s statutory capital
level falls below certain required capital levels, the HMO may be required to submit a capital corrective plan to the
state department of insurance, and at certain levels may be subjected to regulatory orders, including regulatory
control through rehabilitation or liquidation proceedings.

Technology

We have developed and implemented information technology solutions that we believe are critical to our success
and our goal to provide high quality healthcare for our members. Our systems collect and process information
centrally and support our core administrative functions, including premium billing, claims processing, utilization
management, reporting, medical cost trending, planning and analysis, as well as certain member and provider
service functions, including enrollment, member eligibility verification, claims status inquiries, and referrals and
authorizations. We continue to enhance our disease and case management software functionality. We also have
introduced and continue to expand electronic medical records to enhance the quality of care.




We augment our own technology services through independent third parties, with whom we have entered into
what we believe are customary agreements for the provision of software and related consulting services with respect
to our information technology systems. In 2007, we consolidated muitiple, independent financiai systems onto a
single PeopleSoft Financials platform. We also began the migration of mest of the company to a new telephony and
call center platform that will increase call center functionality, allowing for virtualized enterprise capability and
redundancy. Substantial progress was made in 2007 with the deployment of an internal data warehousing and
reporting offering that will support enterprise data mining and enhance our ability to rapidly respond to changing
market, regulatory, and operational requirements.

We have continued to invest in our core technology infrastructure. Construction was completed in 2007 of the
company’s first in-house data centers. The primary data center resides in Nashville, Tennessee with a replicate data
center in Birmingham, Alabama. We are completing installation of a fully redundant Wide Area Network across the
enterprise. In early 2008, we will complete the first round of disaster recovery and business continuity deployment
between the two data centers.

We have also improved data security. We are in the process of implementing full disk encryption for laptop and
desktop devices. In addition, we are deploying full encryption and forced authentication on all PDAs that house
company information through Blackberry Enterprise Server rules enforcement.

Employees

At December 31, 2007, we had approximately 1,320 employees, substantially all of whom were full-time. None
of our employees are presently covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We consider relations with our
employees to be good.

Service Marks

The name “HealthSpring” is a registered service mark with the United States Patent and Trademark Office. We
also have other registered service marks, Prier use of our service marks by third parties may prevent us from using
our service marks in certain geographic areas. We intend to protect our service marks by appropriate legal action
whenever necessary.




EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY
The following are our executive officers and their biographies and ages as of February 22, 2008:

Herbert A, Fritch, age 57, has served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and Chief Executive
Officer of the company and its predecessor, NewQuest, LLC, since the commencement of operations in September
2000. Beginning his career in 1973 as an actuary, Mr. Fritch has over 30 years of experience in the managed
healthcare business. Prior to founding NewQuest, LLC, Mr. Friich founded and served as president of North
American Medical Management, Inc., or NAMM, an independent physician association management company,
from 1991 to 1999. NAMM was acquired by PhyCor, Inc., a physician practice management company, in 1995. Mr.
Fritch also served as vice president of managed care for PhyCor following PhyCor’s acquisition of NAMM. Prior to
NAMM, Mr. Fritch served as a regional vice president for Partners National Healthplans from 1988 to 1991, 'where
he was responsible for the oversight of seven HMOs in the southern region. Mr. Fritch holds a B.A. in Mathematics
from Carleton College. Mr, Fritch is a fellow of the Society of Actuaries and a member of the Academy of
Actuaries,

Gerald V. Coil, age 59, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of the company
since December 2006. Prior to joining the company, he was president of MHN, the behavioral health division of
HealthNet, Inc., a publicly held managed care organization, from October 2002 to Decernber 2006. From January
2002 to October 2002, Mr. Coil served in various capacities for Kaiser Permanente, a not-for-profit managed care
organization, Prior to January 2002, Mr. Coil worked for NAMM in various capacities, including as head of its West
Coast operations. Mr. Coil holds a B.S. in Sociology and Social Work from Arizona State University.

Kevin M. McNamara, age 51, has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
company since April 2005. He was also Treasurer of the company from April 2005 to February 2008. Mr.
McNamara served from April 2005 to January 2006 as non-executive chairman of ProxyMed, Inc., a provider of
automated healthcare business and cost containment solutions for financial, administrative and clinical transactions
in the healthcare payments marketplace, and served as interim chief executive officer of ProxyMed, Inc. from
December 2004 through June 2005. Mr. McNamara served as chief financial officer of HCCA International, Inc., 2
healthcare management and recruitment company, from October 2002 to April 2005. From November 1999 until
February 2001, Mr. McNamara served as chief executive officer and a director of Private Business, Inc., a provider
of electronic commerce solutions that help community banks provide accounts receivable financing to their small
business customers. From 1996 to 1999, Mr. McNamara served as senior vice president and chief financial officer of
Envoy Corporation, a provider of electronic transactions processing services to participants in the healthcare
industry. Mr. McNamara also serves on the boards of directors of Luminex Corperation, a diagnostic and life
sciences teol and consumables manufacturer, and Tyson Foods, Inc., a producer, distributor, and marketer of food
products. Mr. McNamara is a certified public accountant (inactive) and holds a B.S. in Accounting from Virginia
Commonwealth University and an M.B.A. from the University of Richmond.

J. Gentry Barden, age 46, has served as Senior Vice President, General Counsel, and Secretary of the company
since July 2005. From September 2003 to July 2005, Mr. Barden was a member of Brentwood Capital Advisots
LLC, an investrnent banking firm based in Nashville, Tennessee. From September 2000 to February 2003, Mr,
Barden was a managing director of McDonald Investments Inc., an investment-banking subsidiary of Cleveland,
Ohio-based KeyCorp, in its Nashville office. From December 1998 to June 2000, Mr. Barden was a managing
director and member of J.C. Bradford & Co., LLC, a Nashville-based investment-banking firm, and co-directed its
mergers and acquisitions operations. Mr. Barden was a corporate and securities lawyer from 1986 through 1998,
including with Bass, Berry & Sims PLC in Nashville, Tennessee. Mr. Barden graduated with a B.A. from The
University of the South {Sewanee) and with a I.D. from the University of Texas.

David L. Terry, Jr, age 57, has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Actuary of the company since March
2005, and served in various capacities, including Chief Actuary, for the company’s predecessor since July 2003,
Prior to joining NewQuest, LLC, Mr. Terry served as senior consultant for Reden & Anders, Lid., a healthcare
consulting firm, from July 2000 to July 2003. Mr. Terry holds a B.S. in Statistics from Colorado State University
and an M.S. in actuarial science from the University of Nebraska.
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Mark A, Tulloch, age 45, has served as Senior Vice President of Managed Care Operations since January 2007.
Previously, he was Senior Vice President of Pharmacy Operations from July through December 2006. Prior to
Jjoining the company, he served from March 2003 to July 2006 as senior vice president of operations for United
Surgical Partners [nternational, Inc. (“USPI”), an owner and operator of short-stay surgical facilities. Prior to March
2003, Mr. Tulloch spent seven years with OrthoLink Physicians Corporation, a subsidiary of USPI specializing in
orthopaedic practice management and ancillary development. Mr. Tulloch served in various capacities for Ortholink,
including as president and chief operating officer. Mr. Tulloch holds an M.B.A. from the Massey School at Belmont
University, a M.Ed. from Vanderbilt University, and a B.S. from Middle Tennessee State University.

Dirk O. Wales, M.D., age 50, was recently appointed as Sentor Vice President and Chiefl Medical Officer of the
company in February 2008. Dr. Wales had served as Chief Clinical Officer of the company since July 2007 and as
Senior Medical Director of the company’s Texas health plan since February 2003. For over four years prior to
joining the company, Dr. Wales served as chief medical officer of NAMM. Dr. Wales obtained an M.D. and a
Psy.D. from Wright State University and a B.S. from Emory University.

item 1A. Risk Factors

You should consider carefully the risks and uncertainties described below, and all information contained in this
report, in evaluating our company and our business. The occurrence of any of the following risks or uncertainties
described below could significantly and adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition, and operating
results. In any such event, the trading price of owr common stock could decline.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Reductions or Less Than Expected Increases in Funding for Medicare Programs Could Significantly Reduce
Our Prafitability.

Medicare premiums, including premiums paid to our PDP, accounted for approximately 94% of our total
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2007. As a consequence, our revenue and profitability are dependent on
government funding levels for Medicare programs. The premium rates paid to Medicare health plans like ours are
established by contract, although the rates differ depending on a combination of factors, including upper payment
limits established by CMS, a member’s health profile and status, age, gender, county or region, benefit mix, member
eligibility categories, and the plan’s risk scores. Some members of Congress have proposed significant cuts in
payments to Medicare Advantage plans. In addition, continuing government efforts to contain healthcare related
expenditures, including prescription drug costs, and other federal budgetary constraints that result in changes in the
Medicare program, including with respect to funding, could lead to reductions in the amount of reimbursement,
elimination of coverage for certain benefits or mandate additional benefits, and reductions in the number of persons
enrolled in or eligible for Medicare, which in turn could reduce the number of beneficiaries enrolled in our health
plans and our revenues and profitability.

CMS’s Risk Adjustment Payment System and Budget Neutrality Factors Make Our Revenue and Profitability
Difficult to Predict and Could Result In Material Retroactive Adjustments to Our Results of Operations.

CMS has implemented a risk adjustment payment system for Medicare health plans to improve the accuracy of
payments and establish incentives for Medicare plans to enroll and treat less healthy Medicare beneficiaries. CMS’s
risk adjustment mode! bases a portion of the total CMS reimbursement payments on various clinical and demographic
factors including hospital inpatient diagnoses, diagnosis data from ambulatory treatment settings, including hospital
outpatient facilities and physician visits, gender, age, and Medicaid eligibility. CMS requires that all managed care
companies capture, collect, and report the necessary diagnosis code information to CMS. As part of the phase-in,
during 2003, risk adjusted payments accounted for 10% of Medicare health plan payments, with the remaining 90%
being reimbursed in accordance with the traditional CMS demographic rate books. The portion of risk adjusted
payments was increased to 30% in 2004, 50% in 2005, 75% in 2006, and 100% in 2007. Because 100% of Medical
Advantage premiums are now risk-based, it is difficult to predict with certainty our future revenue or profitability,

In addition, CMS establishes premium payments to Medicare plans generally at the beginning of the calendar

year and then adjusts premium levels on two separate occasions during the year on a retroactive basis. The first such
adjustments updates the risk scores for the current year based on prior year's dates of service. The second such
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adjustment is a final retroactive risk premium settlement for the prior year. As of January 2008, the Company is
estimating and recording on a monthly basis both such adjustments. As a result of the variability of factors,
including plan risk scores, that determine such estimations, the actual amount of CMS’s retroactive payment could
be materially more or less than our estimates. Consequently, our estimate of our plans’ risk scores for any period and
our accrual of premiums related thereto, mdy result in favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our Medicare
premium revenue and, accordingly, our profitability. '

On February 22, 2008, CMS published preliminary results of a study designed to assess the degree of coding
pattern differences between Medicare fee-for-service and Medicare Advantage and the extent to which any such
differences could be appropriately addressed by an adjustment to risk scores. CMS’s study of risk scores for
Medicare populations from 2004 through 2006 found that Medicare Advantage member risk scores increased
substantially more than the risk scores for the general Medicare fee-for-service population. CMS acknowledged that
this discrepancy could be explained by a number of reasons, including that beneficiaries enrolled in Medicare
Advantage plans could be getting sicker faster than beneficiaries in Medicare fee-for-service. CMS’s study also tried
to neutralize the impact of fee-for-service “joiners,” that were primarily new entrants to Medicare, and “leavers,”
noting that high-risk decedents represented a larger component of fee-for-service than Medicare Advantage
enrollees. Even focusing on “stayers” (CMS parlance for those persons who were enrolled either in the same
Medicare Advantage plan or in Medicare fee-for-service during the study periods), CMS found that the overall risk
scores of Medicare Advantage stayers increased more than those of fee-for-service stayers. Accordingly, CMS is
considering a negative adjustment to the risk scores of enrollees, and a corresponding decrease in premiums, in
Medicare Advantage plans for which the differences between a plan’s increase in risk scores.and the increase in fee-
for-service risk scores was two or more times the industry average. The company is in the early stages of evaluating
the CMS study and its potential impact on the company’s Medicare Advantage plans and, until CMS releases more
information, the company will not be able to determine whether any of its plans will be subject to a negative
adjustment in premiums. CMS’s final recommendations are expected in early April 2008. If any of the company’s
plans are subject to a risk score adjustment, such adjustment, depending on its size, could have an adversc impact on
the affected plan’s results of the operations.

Payments to Medicare Advantage plans are also adjusted by a “budget neutrality” factor that was implemented in
2003 by Congress and CMS to prevent health plan payments from being reduced overall while, at the same time,
directing risk adjusted payments to plans with more chronically ill enrollees. In general, this adjustment favorably
impacted payments to Medicare Advantage plans. In February 2006, the President signed legislation that reduced
federal funding for Medicare Advantage plans by approximately-$6.5 billion over five years. Among other changes,
the legislation provided for an accelerated phase-out of budget neutrality for risk adjusted payments made to
Medicare Advantage plans. These legislative changes have the effect of reducing payments to Medicare Advantage
plans in general. Consequently, our plans” premiums will be reduced over the phase-out period unless our risk scores
increase in a manner sufficient, when considered together with inflation-related increases in rates, to offset the
elimination of this adjustment. Although our plans’ risk scores have increased historically, there is no assurance that
the increases will continue or, if they do, that they will be large enough to offset the elimination of this adjustment.
Our Records May Contain Inaccurate Information Regarding the Risk Adjustment Scores of Qur Members,
Which Could Cause Us to Overstate or Understate Our Revenue.

We maintain claims and encounter data that support the risk adjustment scores of our members, which
determine, in par't, the revenue to which we are entitled for these membeérs. This data is submitted to our HMO
subsidiaries based on medical charts and diagnosis codes prepared by providers of medical care. Inaccurate coding
by medical providers and inaccurate records for new members in our plans could result in inaccurate premium
revenue and risk adjustment payments, which is subject to correction or update in later periods. Payments that we
receive in connection with this corrected or updated information may be reflected in financial statements for periods
subsequent to the period in which the revenue was earned. We may also find that our data regarding our members’
risk adjustment scores, when reconciled, requires that we refund-a portion of the revenue that we received.




A Recent Federal Moratorium Could Reduce the Profitability of our SNP’s, and the Statutory Authority for
SNP’s Could Expire,

The United States Congress and President have recently enacted legislation that prohibits CMS from designating
additional SNP’s and that prohibits existing SNP’s from enrolling individuals outside of the SNP’s existing
geographic areas through December 31, 2009. These restrictions could adversely impact our operating results. In
addition, under current law, CMS’s authority to designate SNP’s expires on December 31, 2009. Unless Congress
and the President act to change this law, CMS$ may not be able to renew our SNP contracts after December 31, 2009.
Failure to renew our SNP contracts could adversely impact our operating results,

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 Made Changes to the Medicare
Program That Materially Impacted Our Operations and Increased Competition for Members.

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, or MMA, substantially changed
the Medicare program and modified how we operate our Medicare Advantage business. Many of these changes
became effective in 2006, Although many of these changes are designed to benefit Medicare Advantage plans
generally, certain provisions of the MMA increased competition, created challenges for us with respect to educating
our existing and potential members about the changes, and may create other substantial and potentially adverse
risks, including the following:

Increased competition could adversely affect our enroliment and results of operations.

»  The MMA increased reimbursement rates for Medicare Advantage plans, which we believe has increased the
number of plans that participate in the Medicare program and created additional competition. In addition, as a
result of Medicare Part D, a number of new competitors, such as pharmacy benefits managers and
prescription drug retailers and wholesalers, have established PDPs that compete with some of our Medicare
programs.

»  Managed care companies began offering various new products beginning in 2006 pursuant to the MMA,
including private fee-for-service, or PFFS plans and regional preferred provider organizations, or PPQOs,
Medicare PFFS plans and PPOs allow their members more flexibility in selecting providers outside of a
designated network than Medicare Advantage HMOs such as ours aliow, which typically require members to
coordinate care through a primary care physician. The MMA has encouraged the creation of regional PPOs
through various incentives, including certain risk corridors, or cost-reimbursement provisions, a stabilization
fund for incentive payments, and special payments to hospitals not otherwise contracted with a Medicare
Advantage plan that treat regional plan enrollees. There can be né assurance that PFFS plans and regional
Medicare PPOs in our service areas will not continue to adversely affect our Medicare Advantage plans’
relative attractiveness to existing and potential Medicare members.

The limited annual enrollment process has limited our ability to market our products.

Medicare beneficiaries generally have a limited annual enrollment period during which they can choose
to participate in a Medicare Advantage plan rather than receive benefits under the traditional fee-for-service
Medicare program. After the annual enrollment period, most Medicare beneficiaries are not permitted to
change their Medicare benefits. The annual enrollment process and subsequent “lock-in” provisions of the
MMA have restricted our growth as they have limited our ability to enter new service areas and market to or
enroll new members in our established service areas outside of the annual enrollment periods.

The competitive bidding prabéss may adversely affect our profitability.

Payments for local and regional Medicare Advantage plans are based on a competitive bidding process
that may decrease the amount of premiums paid to us or cause us to increase the benefits we offer without a
corresponding increase in premiums. As a result of the competitive bidding process, in order to maintain our
current level of profitability we may be, and in some timited cases have been, required to reduce benefits or
charge our members an additional premium, either of which could make our health plans less attractive to
members and adversely affect our membership.
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We derive a significant portion of our Medicare revenue from our PDP operations, and legislative or regulatory
actions, economic conditions, or other factors that adversely affect those operations could materially reduce our
revenue and profits.

We may be unable to sustain our PDP operation’s profitability over the long-term, and our failure to do so could
have an adverse effect on our results of operations. Factors that could adversely affect our PDP operations include:

+ Congress may make changes to the Medicare program, including changes to the Part D benefit. We cannot
predict what these changes might include or what effect they might have on our revenue or medical expense
or plans for growth.

« Weare makiﬁg actuarial assumptions about the utilization of prescription drug benefits in our MA-PD plans
and our PDPs. We cannot assure you that these assumptions will prove to be correct or that premiums will be
sufficient to cover the benefits provided.

+ Substantially all of our PDP membership is the result of CMS’s auto-assignment of dual-eligible
beneficiaries in regions where our Part D premium bids are below CMS benchmarks. [n general, our
premium bids are based on assumptions regarding PDP enrollment, utilization, drug costs, and other factors.
For 2008, our bid was below the benchmark in 31 of the 34 CMS regions. Qur continued participation in the
Part D program is conditional on our meeting certain contractual performance standards and otherwise
complying with CMS regulations governing our operating compliance. 1f our future Part D premium bid is
not below CMS’s threshold, or if CMS determines we have not met contractual or regulatory performance
standards, we risk losing PDP members who were previously assigned to us and we will not have additional
PDP members auto-assigned to us.

« Medicare beneficiaries who are dual-eligibles generally are able to disenroll and choose another PDP at any
time,.and certain Medicare beneficiaries also have a limited ability to disenroll from the plan they initially
select and choose a different PDP. Medicare beneficiaries who are not dually eligible will be able to change
PDPs during the annual open enrollment period. We may not be able to retain the auto-assigned members or
those members who affirmatively choose our PDPs, and we may not be able to attract new PDP members.

s In February 2007, the U.S. House of Representatives’ Committee on Oversight and Government Reform sent a
letter to a number of Medicare plans requesting copies of information submitted by the plans to CMS relating to,
among other things, Part D plan profits and administrative costs; discounts, rebates, and other price concessions
from drug manufacturers and pharmacies; and concessions passed through to beneficiaries. Although we did not
receive a similar letter, we expect it is a precursor to hearings and further congressional investigation into Part D
related profits, and perhaps into the profitability of Medicare managed care plans, generally.

Financial accounting for the Medicare Part D benefits is complex and requires difficult estimates and
assumptions.

+ The MMA provides for “risk corridors™ that are designed to limit to some extent the gains or losses MA-PDs
or PDPs would incur if their costs turned out to be lower or higher than those in the plans’ bids submitted to
CMS. For 2006 and 2007, drug plans bore all gains and losses up to 2.5% of their expected costs, but
retained 25% of the gain or were reimbursed for 25% of the loss between 2.5% and 5%, and 20% of gains
and losses in excess of 5%. The company will settle with CMS on amounts related to the risk corridor
adjustments and prepaid subsidies in 2008 as part of a final settlement of Part D payments for the 2007 plan
year. In 2008, health plans assume a greater amount of risk pursuant to the risk corridors. In 2008, Medicare
drug plans will bear all gains and losses of up to 5% of their expected costs and will retain 50% of the gains
or be reimbursed 50% of the loss between 5% and 10% and will retain 20% of the gain or be reimbursed 20%
of the loss in excess of 10%.

* The accounting and regulatory guidance regarding the proper method of accounting for Medicare Part D,
particularly as it relates to the timing of revenue and expense recognition, taken together with the complexity
of the Part D product and the estimates related thereto, may lead to variability in our reporting of quarter-to-
quarter earnings and to uncertainty among investors and research analysts following the company as to the
impacts of our Medicare Part D plans on our full year results,
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Our Business Activities Are Highly Regulated and New and Proposed Government Regulation or Legislative
Reforms Could Increase Our Cost of Doing Business, and Reduce Our Membership, Profitability, and Liquidity.

Our health plans are subject to substantial federal and state regulation. These laws and regulations, along with
the terms of our contracts and licenses, regulate how we do business, what services we offer, and how we interact
with our members, providers, and the public. Healthcare laws and regulations are subject to frequent change and
varying interpretations. Changes in existing laws or regulations, or their interpretations, or the enactment of new
laws or the issuance of new regulations could adversely affect our business by, among other things:

* imposing additional license, registration, or capital reserve requirements;

* increasing our administrative and other costs;

* reducing the premiums we receive from CMS;

» forcing us to undergo a corporalte restructuring;

* increasing mandated benefits without corresponding premium increases;

+ limiting our ability to engage in inter-company transac.tions with our affiliates and subsidiaries;
« forcing us to restructure our relationships with providers; and

* requiring us to implement additional or different programs and systems.

It is possible that future legislation and regulation and the interpretation of existing and future laws and
regulations could have a material adverse effect on our ability to operate under the Medicare program and to
5 continue to serve our members and attract new members.

If We Are Required to Maintain Higher Statutory Capital Levels for Our Existing Operations or if We Are
Subject to Additional Capital Reserve Requirements as We Pursue New Business Opportunities, Our Cash Flows
and Liquidity May Be Adversely Affected.

Qur health plans are operated through subsidiaries in various states. These subsidiaries are subject to state
regulations that, among other things, require the maintenance of minimum levels of statutory capital, or net worth, as
defined by each state. One or more of these states may raise the statutory capital level from time to time. Other states
have adopted risk-based capital requirements based on guidelines adopted by the National Association of Insurance

| Commissioners, which tend to be, although are not necessarily, higher than existing statutory capital requirements.

| Currently, Texas is the only jurisdiction in which we operate that has adopted risk-based capital requirements.
Regardless whether the other states in which we operate adopt risk-based capital requirements, the state departments
of insurance can require our HMO subsidiaries to maintain minimum levels of statutory capital in excess of amounts
required under the applicable state laws if they determine that maintaining additional statutory capital is in the best
interests of our members. Any other changes in these requirements could materially increase our statutory capital
requirements. In addition, as we continue to ¢xpand our plan offerings in new states or pursue new business
opportunities, we may be required to maintain additional statutory capital. For example, in connection with its order
approving our acquisition of LMC Health Plans, the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation has required LMC
Health Plans to maintain until September 2010 at least 115% of the statutory surplus otherwise required by Florida
law, In any case, our available funds could be materially reduced, which could harm our ability to implement our
business strategy.
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If State Regulators Do Not Approve Payments, Including Dividends and Other Distributions, by Our Health
Plans to Us, Our Business and Growth Strategy Could Be Materially Impaired or We Could Be Required to Incur
Additional Indebtedness to Fund These Strategies.

Qur health plan subsidiaries are subject to laws and regulations that limit the amount of dividends and
distributions they can pay to us for purposes other than to pay income taxes related to the earnings of the healih
plans. These laws and regulations also limit the amount of management fees our health plan subsidiaries may pay to
affiliates of our health plans, including our management subsidiaries, without prior approval of, or noetification to,
state regulators. The pre-approval and notice requirements vary from state to state with some states, such as Texas,
generally allowing, subject to advance notice requirements, dividends to be declared, provided the HMO meets or
exceeds the applicable deposit, net worth, and risk-based capital requirements. The discretion of the state regulators,
if any, in approving a dividend is not always clearly defined. Historically, we have not relied on dividends or other
distributions from our health plans to fund a material amount of our operating cash requirements. If the regulators
were to deny or significantly restrict our subsidiaries’ requests Lo pay dividends to us or to pay management and
other fees to the affiliates of our health plan subsidiaries, however, the funds available to us would be limited, which
could impair our ability to implement our business and growth strategy. Alternatively, we could be required to incur
additional indebtedness 1o fund these strategies.

Corporate Practice of Medicine and Fee-Splitting Laws May Govern Our Business Operations, and Violation of
Such Laws Could Result in Penalties and Adversely Affect Our Arrangements With Contractors and Our
Profitability.

In several states, we must comply with laws known as the corporate practice of medicine laws that prohibit a
business corporation from practicing medicine, employing physicians to practice medicine, or exercising control
over medical treatment decisions by physicians. In these states, typically only medical professionals or a
professional corporation in which the shares are held by licensed physicians or other medical professionals may
provide medical care to patients. In general, health maintenance organizations are exempt from laws prohibiting the
corporate practice of medicine in many states due to the integrated nature of the delivery system. Many states also
have some form of fee-splitting law, prohibiting certain business arrangements that involve the splitting or sharing
of medical professional fees earned by a physician or another medical professional for the delivery of healthcare
services.

In general, we perform only non-medical administrative and business services for physicians and physician
groups. We do not represent that we offer medical services, and we do not exercise control over the practice of
medical care by providers with whom we contract, We do, however, monitor medical services to ensure they are
provided in a high quality cost effective manner and reimbursed within the appropriate scope of licensure. In
addition, we have developed close relationships with our network providers that include our review and monitoring
of the coding of medical services provided by those providers. We also have compensation arrangements with
providers that may be based on a percentage of certain provider fees and in certain cases our network providers have
agreed to exclusivity arrangements. In each case, we believe we have structured these and other arrangements on a
basis that complies with applicable state law, including the corporate practice of medicine and fee-splitting laws.

Despite our structuring these arrangements in ways that we believe comply with applicable law, regulatory
authorities may assert that we are engaged in the corporate practice of medicine or that our contractual arrangements
with providers constitute unlawful fee-splitting. Moreover, we cannot predict whether changes will be made to
existing laws or if new ones will be enacted, which could cause us to be out of compliance with these requirements.
If our arrangements are found to violate corporate practice of medicine or fee-splitting laws, our provider or
independent physician association management contracts could be found legally invalid and unenforceable, which
could adversely affect our operations and profitability, and we could be subject to civil or, in some cases, criminal,
penalties.
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We Are Required to Comply With Laws Governing the Transmission, Security and Privacy of Health Information
That Require Significant Compliance Costs, and Any Failure to Comply With These Laws Could Result in
Material Criminal and Civif Penalties.

Regulations under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPA A, require us to
comply with standards regarding the exchange of health information within our company and with third parties,
including healthcare providers, business assoctates, and our members. These regulations include standards for
common healthcare transactions, including claims information, plan eligibility, and payment information; unique
identifiers for providers and employers; security; privacy; and enforcement. HIPAA also provides that to the extent
that state laws impose stricter privacy standards than HIPAA privacy regulations, a state seeks and receives an
exception from the Department of Health and Human Services regarding certain state laws, or state laws concern
certain specified areas, such state standards and laws are not preempted.

We conduct our operations in an attempt to comply with all applicable HIPAA requirements, Given the
complexity of the HIPAA regulations, the possibility that the regulations may change, and the fact that the
regulations are subject to changing and, at times, conflicting interpretation, our ongoing ability to comply with the
HIPAA requirements is uncertain. Furthermore, a state’s ability to promulgate stricter laws, and uncertainty
regarding many aspects of such state requirements, make compliance more difficult. To the extent that we are unable
to support unique identifiers and electronic healthcare claims and payment transactions that comply with the
electronic data transmission standards established under HIPAA, we may be subject to penalties and operations may
be adversely impacted. Additionally, the costs of complying with any changes to the HIPAA regulations may have a
negative impact on our operations. Sanctions for failing to comply with the HIPAA health information provisions
include criminal penalties and civit sanctions, including significant monetary penalties. In addition, our failure to
comply with state health information laws that may be more restrictive than the regulations issued under HIPAA
could result in additional penaltes.

Risks Related to Our Business
If Our Medicare Contracts Are Not Renewed or Are Terminated, Our Business Would Be Substantially Impaired.

We provide services to our Medicare eligible members through our Medicare Advantage health plans and PDP
pursuant to a limited rumber of contracts with CMS. These contracts generally have terms of one year and must be
renewed each year. Each of our contracts with CMS is terminable for cause if we breach a material provision of the
contract or violate relevant laws or regulations. If we are unable to renew, cr to successfully rebid or compete for
any of these contracts, or if any of these contracts are terminated, our business would be materially impaired.

Because Our Premiums, Which Generate Most of Our Revenue, Are Established by Contract and Cannot Be
Maodified During the Contract Terms, Our Profitability Will Likely Be Reduced or We Could Cease to Be
Profitable if We Are Unable to Manage Our Medical Expenses Effectively.

Substantially all of our revenue is generated by premiums consisting of monthly payments per member that are
established by contracts with CMS for our Medicare Advantage plans and PDP or by contracts with our commercial
customers, all of which are typically renewable on an annual basis. If our medical expenses exceed our estimates,
except in very limited circumstances or as a result of risk score adjustments for Medicare member health acuity, we
will be unable to increase the premiums we receive under these contracts during the then-current terms. As a result,
our profitability depends, to a significant degree, on our ability to adequately predict and effectively manage our
medical expenses related 1o the provision of healthcare services. Relatively small changes in our MLR can create
significant changes in our financial results. Accordingly, the failure to adequately predict and control medical
expenses and to make reasonable estimates and maintain adequate accruals for incurred but not reported, or IBNR,
claims, may have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows.
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Historically, cur medical expenses as a percentage of premium revenue have fluctuated. Factors that may cause
medical expenses to exceed our estimates include:

*+ an increase in the cost of healthcare services and supplies, including prescription drugs, whether as a result of
inflation or otherwise;

» higher than expected utilization of healthcare services, particularly in-patient hospital services;

= periodic renegotiation of hospital, physician, and other provider contracts;

+ changes in the demographics of our members and medical trends affecting them;

+ new mandated benefits or other changes in healthcare laws, regulations, and practices;
* new treatments and technologies;

+ consolidation of physician, hospital, and other provider groups;

» contractual disputes with providers, hospitals, or other service providers; and

+ the occurrence of catastrophes, major epidemics, or acts of terrorism.

Because of the relatively high average age of the Medicare population, medical expenses for our Medicare
Advantage plans may be particularly difficult to control. We attempt to control these costs through a variety of
techniques, including capitation and other risk-sharing payment methods, collaborative relationships with primary
care physicians and other providers, advance approval for hospital services and referral requirements, case and
disease management and quality assurance programs, preventive and wellness visits for members, information
systems, and reinsurance. Despite our efforts and programs to manage our medical expenses, we may not be able to
continue to manage these expenses effectively in the future, If our medical expenses increase, our profits could be
reduced or we may not remain profitable.

Our Failure to Estimate IBNR Claims Accurately Would Affect Our Reported Financial Results.

Our medical care costs include estimates of our IBNR claims. We estimate our medical expense liabilities using
actuarial methods based on historical data adjusted for payment patterns, cost trends, product mix, seasonality,
utilization of healthcare services, and other relevant factors. Actual conditions, however, could differ from those we
assume in our estimation process. We continually review and update our estimation methods and the resulting
accruals and make adjustments, if necessary, to medical expense when the criteria used to determine IBNR change
and when actual claim costs are ultimately determined. As a result of the uncertainties associated with the factors
used in these assumptions, the actual amount of medical expense that we incur may be materially more or less than
the amount of [BNR originally estimated. If our estimates of IBNR are inadequate in the future, our reported results
of operations would be negatively impacted. Further, our inability to estimate IBNR accurately may also affect our
ability to take timely corrective actions, further exacerbating the extent of any adverse effect on our results.

Competition in Qur Industry, Particularly New Sources of Competition Since the Implementation of Medicare
Part D, May Limit Our Ability to Attract or Retain Members, Which Could Adversely Affect Our Results of
Operations. .

We operate in a highly competitive environment subject to significant changes as a result of business
consolidations, evolving Medicare products (including PDPs and PFFS plans), new strategic alliances, and
aggressive marketing practices by other managed care organizations that compete with us for members. Our
principal competitors for contracts, members, and providers vary by local service area and have traditionally been
comprised of national, regional, and local managed care organizations that serve Medicare recipients, including,
amaong others, UnitedHealth Group, Humana, Inc., and Universal American Financial Corp. In addition, we have
experienced significant competition from new competitors, including pharmacy benefit managers and prescription
drug retailers and wholesalers, and our traditional managed care organization competitors whose PFFS plans and
stand-alone PDPs have been attracting our Medicare Advantage and PDP members. As a result of the foregoing
factors, among others, we experienced disenrollments from our plans during 2007 that were comparable to 2006 but
in both years were at rates higher than we previously experienced or anticipated. Many managed care companies and
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other new Part D plan participants have greater financial and other resources, larger enroliments, broader ranges of
products and benefits, broader geographical coverage, more established reputations in the national market and our
markets, greater market share, larger contracting scale, and lower costs than us. Qur failure to attract and retain
members in our health plans as a result of such competition could adversely affect our results of operations.

Our Inability to Maintain Our Medicare Advantage and PDP Members or Increase Qur Membership Could
Adversely Affect Our Results of Operations.

A reduction in the number of members in our Medicare Advantage and PDP plans, or the failure to increase our
membership, could adversely affect our results of operations. [n addition to competition, factors that could
contribute to the loss of, or failure to attract and retain, members include:

¢ negative accreditation results or loss of licenses or contracts to offer Medicare Advantage plans;
* negative publicity and news coverage relating to us or the managed healthcare industry generally;
+ litigation or threats of litigation against us;

» automatic disenrotlment, whether intentional or inadvertent, as a result of members choosing a stand-alone
' PDP; and

» our inability to market to and re-enroll members who enroll with our competitors because of the new annual
enrollment and lock-in provisions under the MMA,

A Disruption in Our Healthcare Provider Networks Could Have an Adverse Effect on Our Operations and
Profitability.
L]

Our operations and profitability are dependent, in part, upon our ability to contract with healthcare providers and
provider networks on favorable terms. In any particular service area, healthcare providers or provider networks
could refuse to contract with us, demand higher payments, or take other actions that could result in higher healthcare
costs, disruption of benefits to our members, or difficulty in meeting our regulatory or accreditation requirements. In
some service areas, healthcare providers may have significant market positions. If healthcare providers refuse to
contract with us, use their market position to negotiate favorable contracts, or place us at a competitive
disadvantage, then our ability to market products or to be profitable in those service areas could be adversely
affected. Our provider networks could also be disrupted by the financial insolvency of a large provider group. Any
disruption in our provider network could result in a loss of membership or higher healthcare costs.

Our Texas operations comprised 24% of our Medicare Advantage members and 24% of our total revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2007 {assuming the revenue of LMC Health Plans had been included for all of 2007). A
significant proportion of our providers in our Texas market are affiliated with RPO, a large group of independent
physictan associations, As of December 31, 2007, physicians associated with RPO served as the primary care
physicians for approximately 77% of our members in our Texas market. Our agreements with RPO generally have a
term expiring December 31, 2014, but may be terminated sooner by RPO for cause or in connection with a change
in control of the company that results in the termination of senior management and otherwise raises a reasonable
doubt as to our successor’s ability to perform the agreements. if our Texas HMO subsidiary’s agreement with RPO
were terminated, we would be required to sign direct contracts with the RPO physicians or additional physicians in
order to avoid a material disruption in care of our Houston-area members. [t could take significant time to negotiate
and execute direct contracts, and we would be forced to reassign members to new primary care physicians if all of
the current primary care physicians did not sign direct contracts. This would result in loss of membership assuming
that not all members would accept the reassignment to a new primary care physician. Accordingly, any significant
disruption in, or termination of, our relationship with RPO could materially and adversely impact our results of
operations. Moreover, RPO’s ability to terminate its agreements with us in connection with certain changes in
control of the company could have the effect of delaying or frustrating a potential acquisition or other change in
control of the company.

As of December 31, 2007, our LMC Health Plans subsidiary comprised 17% of our Medicare Advantage
membership and 18% of our total revenue for the quarter then ended. A substantial portion of the medical services
provided to our LMC Health Plans’ members is provided by LMC pursuant to a long-term medical services
agreement. Any material breach or other material non-performance by LMC of its obligations to us under the
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medical services agreement could result in a significant disruption in the medical services provided to our Florida
plan members, for which we would have no immediately acceptable alternative service provider, and which would
adversely affect oyr results of operations. In addition, the medical services agreement could be terminated by LMC
for cause or in connection with certain changes in control of the Florida plan.

Qutsourced Service Providers May Make Mistakes and Subject Us to Financiel Loss or Legal Liability.

We outsource certain of the functions associated with the provision of managed care and management services,
including claims processing related to the provision of Medicare Part D prescription drug benefits. The service
providers to whom we outsource these functions could inadvertently or incorrectly adjust, revise, omit, or transmit
the data with which we provide them in a manner that could create inaccuracies in our risk adjustment data, cause us
to overstate or understate our revenue, cause us to authorize incorrect paymént levels to members of our provider
networks, or violate certain laws and regulations, such as HIPAA.

We May Be Unsuccessful in Implementing Our Growth Strategy If We Are Unable to Complete Acquisitions on
Favorable Terms or Integrate the Businesses We Acquire into Our Existing Operations, or If We Are Unable to
Otherwise Expand into New Service Areas in a Timely Manner in Accordance with Our Strategic Plans.

1

Opportunistic acquisitions of contract rights and other health plans are an important elemet of our growth
strategy. We may be unable to identify and complete appropriate acquisitions in a timely manner and in accordance
with our or our investors’ expectations for future growth. The market price of businesses that operate Medicare
Advantage plans has generally increased recently, which may increase the amount we are required to pay to
complete any future acquisitions. Some of our competitors have greater financial resources than we have and may be
willing to pay more for these businesses. In addition, we are generally required to obtain regulatory approval from
one or more state agencies when making acquisitions, which may require a public hearing, regardless whether we
already operate a plan in the state in which the business to be acquired is located. We may be unable to comply with
these regulatory requirements for an acquisition in a timely manner, or at all. Moreover, some sellers may insist on
selling assets that we may not want or transferring their liabilities to us as part of the sale of their companies or
assets. Even if we identify suitable acquisition targets, we may be unable to complete acquisitions or obtain the
necessary financing for these acquisitions on terms favorable to us, or at all.

To the extent we complete acquisitions, we may be unable to realize the anticipated benefits from acquisitions
because of operational facters or difficulties in integrating the acquisitions with our existing businesses. This may
include the integration of: '

» additional empioyees who are not familiar with our operations;

+ new provider networks, which may operate on terms different from our existing networks;

» additional members, who may decide to transfer to other healthcare providers or health plans;
» disparate information technology, claims processing, and record-keeping systems; and

» accounting policies, including those that require a high degree of judgment or complex estimation processes,
including estimates of IBNR claims, accounting for goodwill, intangible assets, stock-based compensation,
and income tax matters.

Additionally, with respect to the recently completed acquisition of LMC Health Plans, our integration and
execution risks in addition to those outlined above include:

» our inexperience in the highly penetrated and competitive South Florida Medicare Advantage market;

+ the ability of LMC to successfully operate and expand its medical clinics, and our ability to successfully
operate and otherwise manage our anticipated growth under the terms of our long-term, exclusive, clinic-
model medical services agreement with LMC; and

* our inexperience in the operation of a ctinic-model-dependent HMO generally.
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For all of the above reasons, we may not be able to successfully implement our acquisition strategy. Furthermore, in
the event of an acquisition or investment, we may issue stock that would dilute existing stock ownership and incur
debt that would restrict our cash flow, as we have in the acquisition of LMC Health Plans. We may also assume
liabilities, incur large and immediate write-offs, incur unanticipated costs, divert management’s attention from our
existing business, experience risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior
experience, or lose key employees from the acquired entities.

Our Substantial Debt Obligations Pursuant to the New Credit Agreement Could Restrict Our Operations.

In connection with the acquisition of LMC Health Plans, we entered into a new credit facility (the “New Credit
Agreement”). Borrowings of $300.0 million under the New Credit Agreement, together with our available cash on
hand, were used to fund the acquisition and expenses related thereto. As of December 31, 2007, $296.25 million of
debt was outstanding under the term loan facility of the New Credit Agreement. The $100.0 million revolving credit
facility under the New Credit Agreement is currently undrawn. Loans under the New Credit Agreement are secured
by a first priority lien on substantially all assets of the company and its non-HMO subsidiaries, including a pledge
by the company and its nen-HMO subsidiaries of all of the equity interests in each of their domestic subsidiaries.

The New Credit Agreement contains conditions precedent to extensions of credit and representations, warranties,
and covenants, including financial covenants, customary for transactions of this type. Financial covenants include (i)
a maximum leverage ratio comparing total indebtedness to consolidated adjusted EBITDA, (ii) minimum net worth

requirements for each HMO subsidiary calculated by reference to applicable regulatory requirements, and (iii)
maximum capital expenditures, in each case as more specifically provided in the New Credit Agreement.

This significant new indebtedness could have adverse consequences on us, including:

« limiting our ability to compete and our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and
industry;

» increasing our vulnerability to general economic and industry conditions; and

* requiring a substantial portion of cash flows from operating activities to be dedicated to debt repayment,
reducing our ability to use such cash flow to fund our operations, expenditures, and future business or
acquisition opportunities.

The New Credit Agreement contains customary events of default and, if we fail to comply with specified
financial and operating ratios, we could be in breach of the New Credit Agreement. Any breach or default could
allow our lenders to accelerate our indebtedness and terminate all commitments to extend additional credit.

Our ability to maintain specified financial and operating ratios and operate within the contractual limitations can
be affected by a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control, and we cannot assure you that we will be
able satisfy them.

Negative Publicity Regarding the Managed Healthcare Industry Generally or Us in Particular Could Adversely
Affect Our Results of Operarions or Business.

Negative publicity regarding the managed healthcare industry generally or us in particular may result in
increased regulation and legislative review of industry practices that further increase our costs of doing business and
adversely affect our results of operations by:

* requiring us to change our products and services;

» increasing the regulatory burdens under which we operate;

+ adversely affecting our ability to market our products or services; or

» adversely affecting our ability to attract and retain members.
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We Are Dependent Upon Our Executive Officers and the Loss of Any One or More of These Officers and Their
Managed Care Expertise Could Adversely Affect Our Business.

Our operations are highly dependent on the efforts of Herbert A. Fritch, our President and Chief Executive
Officer, and certain other senior executives who have been instrumental in developing our business strategy and
forging our business relationships. Although certain of our executives, including Mr. Fritch, have entered into
employment agreements with us, these agreements may not provide sufficient incentives for those executives to
continue their employment with us. Although we believe we could replace any executive we lose, the loss of the
leadership, knowledge, and experience of Mr. Fritch and our other executive officers could adversely affect our
business. Mareover, replacing one or more of our executives may be difficult or may require an extended period of
time. We do not currently maintain key man insurance on any of our executive officers.

Violation of the Laws and Regulations Applicable to Us Counld Expose Us to Liability, Reduce Our Revenue and
Profitability, or Otherwise Adversely Affect Our Operations and Operating Results.

The federal and state agencies administering the laws and regulations applicable to us have broad discretion to
enforce them. We are subject, on an ongoing basis, to various governmental reviews, audits, and investigations to
verify our compliance with our contracts, licenses, and applicable laws and regulations. An adverse review, audit, or
investigation could result in any of the following:

¢ loss of our right to participate in the Medicare program;

+ loss of one or more of our licenses to act as an HMO or to otherwise provide a service;

+ forfeiture or recoupment of amounts we have been paid pursuant to our contracis;

» imposition of significant civit or criminal penalties, fines, or other sanctions on us and our key empt_oyees;
+ damage to our reputation in existing and potential markets;

« increased restrictions on marketing our products and services; and

*+ inability to obtain approval for future products and services, geographic expansions, or acquisitions.

The U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General, Office of Audit Services,
or OIG, is conducting a national review of Medicare Advantage plans to determine whether they used payment
increases consistent with the requirements of the MMA. Under the MMA, the bidding process requires that payment
increases be used to cover increased medical costs, reduce beneficiary premiums or cost sharing, enhance benefits,
put additional payment amounts in a benefit stabilization fund, or stabilize or enhance access. We cannot assure you
that the findings of an audit or investigation of our business would not have an adverse effect on us or require
substantial modifications to our operations. In addition, private citizens, acting as whistleblowers, are entitled to
bring enforcement actions under a special provision of the federal False Claims Act.

Claims Relating to Medical Malpractice and Other Litigation Could Cause Us to Incur Significant Expenses.

From time o time, we are party to various litigation matters, some of which seek monetary damages. Managed
care organizations may be sued directly for alleged negligence, including in connection with the credentialing of
network providers or for alleged improper denials or delay of care. In addition, Congress and several states have
considered or are considering legislation that would expressly permit managed care organizations to be held liable
for negligent treatment decisions or benefits coverage determinations. Of the states in which we currently operate,
only Texas has enacted legislation relating to health plan liability for negligent treatment decisions and benefits
coverage determinations. In addition, our providers involved in medical care decisions may be exposed to the risk of
medical malpractice claims. Some of these providers do not have malpractice insurance. Although our network
providers are independent contractors, claimants sometimes allege that a managed care organization should be held
responsible for alleged provider malpractice, particularly where the provider does not have malpractice insurance,
and some courts have permitted that theory of liability.
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Similar to other managed care companies, we may also be subject to other claims of our members in the ordinary
course of business, including claims of improper marketing practices by our independent and employee sales agents
and claims arising out of decisions to deny or restrict reimbursement for services.

We cannot predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any pending litigation or potential future litigation, and
we cannot assure you that we will not incur substantial expense in defending future lawsuits or indemnifying third
parties with respect to the results of such litigation. The loss of even one of these claims, if it results in a significant
damage award, could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, our exposure (o potential liability
under punitive damage or other theories may significantly decrease our ability to setile these claims on reasonable
terms.

We maintain errors and omissions insurance and other insurance coverage that we believe are adequate based on
industry standards. Potential liabilities may not be covered by insurance, our insurers may dispute coverage or may
be unable to meet their obligaticns, or the amount of our insurance coverage and related reserves may be inadequate.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain insurance coverage in the future, or that insurance will continue
to be available on a cost-effective basis, if at all. Moreover, even if claims brought against us are unsuccessful or
without merit, we would have to defend ourselves against such claims. The defense of any such actions may be
time-consuming and costly and may distract cur management’s attention, As a result, we may incur significant
expenses and may be unable to effectively operate our business,

The Inability or Failure to Properly Maintain Effective and Secure Management Information Systems,
Successfully Update or Expand Processing Capability, or Develop New Capabilities to Meet Our Business Needs
Could Result in Operational Disruptions and Other Adverse Consequences.

Our business depends significantly on effective and secure information systems. The information gathered and
processed by our management information systems assists us in, among other things, marketing and sales tracking,
underwriting, billing, claims processing, medical management, medical care cost and utilization trending, financial
and management accounting, reporting, planning and analysis and e-commerce. These systems also support on-line
customer service functions, provider and member administrative functions and support tracking and extensive
analyses of medical expenses and outcome data. These information systems and applications require centinual
maintenance, upgrading, and enhancement to meet our operational needs and handle our expansion and growth. Any
inability or failure to properly maintain management information systems or related disaster recovery programs,
successfully update or expand processing capability or develop new capabilities to meet our business needs in a
timely manner, could result in operational disruptions, loss of existing customers, difficulty in attracting new
customers or in implementing our growth strategies, disputes with customers and providers, regulatory problems,
increases in administrative expenses, loss of our ability to produce timely and accurate reports, and other adverse
consequences. To the extent a failure in maintaining effective information systems occurs, we may need to contract
for these services with third-party management companies, which may be on less favorable terms to us and
significantly disrupt our operations and information flow.

Furthermore, our business requires the secure transmission of confidentiai information over public networks.
Because of the confidential health information we store and transmit, security breaches could expose us to a risk of
regulatory action, litigation, possible liability, and loss. Our security measures may be inadequate to prevent security
breaches, and our business operations and profitability would be adversely affected by canceilation of contracts, loss
of members, and potential criminal and civil sanctions if they are not prevented.

If We Are Unable to Maintain Effective Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting, Investors Could Lose
Confidence in the Reliability of Our Financial Statements, Which Could Result in a Decrease in the Price of Our
Common Stock.

Because of our status as a public company, we are required to enhance and test our financial, intenal, and
management control systems to meet obligations imposed by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, Qur financial and
management control systems include corporate governance, corporate control, internal audit, disclosure controls and
procedures, and financtal reporting and accounting systems. Consistent with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules
and regulations of the SEC, management’s assessment of our intemal controls over financial reporting and the audit
opinion of the company’s independent registered accounting firm as to the effectiveness of our controls is first
required in connection with our filing of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. If we are unable to maintain that we

30




have effective internal controls over financial reporting or if our independent auditors are unable to conclude that
our intemnal controls over financial reporting are effective, investors could lose confidence in the reliability of our
financial statements, which could result in a decrease in the value of our common stock.

Anti-takeover Provisions in Our Organizational Documents and State Insurance Laws Could Make an
Acquisition of Us More Difficult and May Prevent Attempts by Our Stockholders to Replace or Remove Our
Current Management.

Provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our second amended and restated bylaws
may delay or prevent an acquisition of us or a change in our management or similar change in control transaction,
including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares over then current
prices or that stockholders may deem to be in their best interests. In addition, these provisions may frustrate or
prevent any attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management by making it more difficult
for stockholders to replace members of our board of directors. Because our board of directors is responsible for
appointing the members of our management team, these provisions could in turn affect any attempt by our
stockholders to repiace current members of our management team. These provisions provide, among other things,
that:

+ special meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the chairman of the beard of directors, by our
chief executive officer, or by the board of directors pursuant to a resolution adopted by a majority of the
directors;

» any stockholder wishing to properly bring a matter before a meeting of stockholders must comply with
specified procedural and advance notice requirements;

+ actions taken by the written consent of our stockholders require the consent of the holders of at least 66*°%
of our outstanding shares;

+ our board of directors is classified into three classes, with each class serving a staggered three-year term;
+ the authorized number of directors may be changed only by resolution of the board of directors;

» our second amended and restated bylaws and certain sections of our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation relating to anti-takeover provisions may generally only be amended with the consent of the
holders of at least 66°°% of our outstanding shares;

= directors may be removed other than at an annual meeting only for cause;
+ any vacancy on the board of directors, however the vacancy occurs, may only be filled by the directors; and
+ our board of directors has the ability to issue preferred stock without stockholder approval.

Additionally, the insurance company laws and regulations of the jurisdictions in which we operate restrict the
ability of any person to acquire control of an insurance company, including an HMQ, without prior regulatory
approval. Under certain of those statutes and regulations, without such approval or an exemption therefrom, no
person may acquire any voting security of a domestic insurance company, including an HMO, or an insurance
holding company that controls a domestic insurance company or HMO, if as a result of such transaction such person
would own more than a specified percentage, such as 5% or 10%, of the total stock issued and outstanding of such
insurance company or HMQ, or, in some cases, more than a specified percentage of the issued and outstanding

_shares of an insurance holding company. HealthSpring is an insurance holding company for purposes of these
statutes and regulations.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None,
Item 2. Properties

We lease office space in the following locations which includes space for our corporate headquarters and for our
health plans:

Location Square footage Expication Date
INashville, TERNESSEE c...cirriiiiii it eeeeee e eeeoe e e emeeeeeeoeeeeeeren 140,690 December 2010
FranKklin, TeMESSEE ....oviveieecei et ae s s s s me s e e e bme e e s e s eennen 23,654 December 2014
Various Other TENOESSEE CHIES ...ooveeie et ce e e e seea e e e e s one oo 20,298 various
Birmingham, Alabama........cooiieiiiiiice e 71,923 April 2016
Various Other Alabama CitiES.....ccovviveiieicceiicie s s ias s 19,958 various
HOUSIOM, TEXAS .evteieiieeir ittt eeesaeene s sar s e b s ba e srrsanssme s e s 64,782 October 2010
Various Other Texas CitieS.....coccoovvveeirieeireenane ettt et s ta b ba i e et e s ree e s et neeaaeeereeneran 6,488 various
Chicago, HHNOIS ..ot s rss e s sbe s sba s sbe st sbassrnasans 10,604 December 2010
Hattiesburg, MiSSiSSIPPI «.c.oevrierrnreiere et e e 1,944 December 2010

The company’s Florida HMO subsidiary currently shares office space with LMC pursuant to an office space
agreement entered into as part of the company’s acquisition of the LMC Health Plans. We anticipate that our Florida
operations will be relocated on or about March 15, 2008 to approximately 16,000 square feet of office space leased
from an independent third party.

We believe our facilities are adequate for our present and currently anticipated needs. !
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
We are not currently involved in any pending legal proceedings that we believe are material to our financial
condition and results of operations. We are, however, involved from time to time in routine legal matters and other
‘ claims incidental to our business, including employment-related claims, claims relating to our HMO subsidiaries’
contractual relationships with providers and members, and claims relating to marketing practices of sales
representatives that are employed by, or independent contractors to, our HMO subsidiaries.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market for Common Stock
Our commen stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the trading symbol “HS.”

The following table sets forth the quarterly ranges of the high and low sales prices of the common stock on the
NYSE during the calendar periods indicated.

2007
High Low
FITSE QUAITET . .1vvvevereseseresmssacms e ee bt s s s bbb 04304 S8R0 $ 2449 3 19.03
SECONE QUANET .....eveeeeieet et r e cenec e e e sa s et sas e st ea e reet e s e s hs s dab e et s e e b rE e s pe s e oo 2533 17.92
THIEA QUATTET cv.vvvevrerercrerrerescesrie s s res e rac s s e s s sbassb st s b b ed bbb b em s AR 2E SR n e nE bbb b 20,50 1528
Fourth Quarter ................................................................................................................................ 2138  17.08
2006
—High __ Low
First Quarter (begmnmg February 3) .............................................................................................. $ 2419 § 6.6l
Second Quarter ... 1942 1541
B I YT e B LTty T O OO OO OO YOO PO PO TSP U PP 2244 16.66
FOUTH QUATTET ...ttt e s re a4 £ bbb e e e e aa s ke e e s 22.62 17.73

The last reported sale price of our common stock on the NYSE on February 27, 2008 was $18.78, and we had
approximately 216 holders of record of our common stock on such date.

Dividends

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock since our organization in March 2005.
We currently intend to retain any future eamings to fund the operation, development, and expansion of our business,
and therefore we do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Our New Credit Agreement
restricts our ability to declare cash dividends on our common stock. Our ability to pay dividends is also dependent
on the availability of cash dividends from our regulated HMO subsidiaries, which are restricted by the laws of the
states in which we operate, as well as the requirements of CMS relating to the operations of our Medicare health
plans. Any future determination to declare and pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors,
subject to compliance with applicable law and the other limitations described above.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

In June 20607, the company’s board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to $50.0°
million of the company’s common stock over the succeeding twelve months in open market transactions or through
privalely negotiated transactions. The New Credit Agreement pemms the company’s repurchase of up to $50.0
million in common stock, subject to certain limitations relating to minimum liquidity requirements and sources of
funds for the repurchases. As of December 31, 2007, the company had not repurchased any common stock under the
program. In addition, the company did not repurchase any shares of its common stock in any other transaction
during the fourth quarter of 2007. As of February 27, 2008, the company had repurchased 478,500 shares of
common stock during 2008 at an average price of $18.55 per share in open market transactlons pursuant to the stock
repurchase program. .
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Performance Graph

The fotlowing graph compares the change in the cumulative total return (including the reinvestment of
dividends) on the company’s common stock for the period from February 3, 2006, the date our shares of common
stock began trading on the NYSE, to the change in the cumulative total return on the stocks included in the Standard
& Poor’s 500 Stock Index and to a company-selected Peer Group Index over the same period. The graph assumes an
investment of $100 made in our common stock at a price of $21.98 per share, the closing sale price on February 3,
2006, our first day of trading following our IPO (at $19.50 per share), and an investment in each of the other indices
on February 3, 2006. We did not pay any dividends during the period reflected in the graph.

The Peer Group Index consists of the following companies, which is a group of companies in the healthcare
services industry of comparable market capitalization that we have used to assist in evaluating the competitiveness of
our executive compensation plans and policies: Amerigroup Corporation, AmSurg Corp., Apria Healthcare Group Inc.,
Centene Corporation, Emergency Medical Services Corparation, Healthways, Inc., Lifepoint Hospitals, Inc., Magellan
Health Services, [nc., Pediatrix Medical Group, Inc,, Psychiatric Solutions, Inc., Sierra Health Services, Inc., Universal
American Financial Corp., and WellCare Health Plans, Inc. In the Form 10-K we filed for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2006, United Surgical Partners International, Inc. was a member of our peer group, but was subsequently
acquired in 2007 and is no longer publicly traded. As a result, we have deleted them from our peer group.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Ameng HealthSpring, Inc., The S&P 500 Index And a Peer Group

$140 - o
$120 - @Ay
S e AN e
sso 4
m 4
$20 -
$0 s
2i06 3/08 6/086 9/086 12108 307 6107 ar07 12407
—B— HealthSpring, Inc — -+ — S&P 500 ---© - Peer Group
- 2/06 | 3/06_| 6/06 | 906 | 12/06 | 3/07 | 67 | 907 | 12/07
HealthSpring, Inc 100.00{ 84.67 | 85.30 | 87.58 | 92.58 [107.14{ 86.72 | 88.72 | 86.67
S&P 500 100.06(101.521100.06105.73;112.81(113.53/120.66|123.11 [119.01
Peer Group 100.06[105.311{106.01}105.16}116.36{125.67]|124.91|131.88(120.53

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables present selected historical financial data and other information for the company and its
predecessor, NewQuest, LLC. We derived the selected historical statement of income, cash flow, and balance sheet
data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2003, and 2004 and for the period from January 1, 2005 to February
28, 2005 from the audited consolidated financial statements of NewQuest, LLC and as of and for the period from
March 1, 2005 to December 31, 2005 and the years ended December 31, 2006, and 2007 from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company. The audited consolidated financial statements and the related
notes to the audited consolidated financial statements of NewQuest, LLC and the company as of December 31, 2006
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and 2007, for the combined twelve month period ended December 31, 2005, and the years ended December 31,
2006, and 2007 together with the related report of our independent registered public accounting firm are included
elsewhere in this report. We derived the selected balance sheet data as of February 28, 2005 from the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of NewQuest, LLC.

The selected consolidated financial data and other information set forth betow should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements included in this report and the related notes and Item 7. “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

HerlthSpring, lne. HealthSpring, Predecessor
Year Ended December 31 __Ine Year Ended December 38,
Period from Period from
Combined March {, 2005 January 1,
Twelve Moaths to 200510
. Ended December December 31, February 28,
2007(1) 2006 “31, 2005(2) 2005(3) 2005(3) —2004{4) 2005

(dollary in thousands, except share wnd unii data)
Statement of Income Data:

Revenue:
Premium;
Medicare premi $ 1470576 $ 1149844 $ 705,677 3 610,913 H 94,764 3 433,729 1 240,037
Commercial i 46,648 126,872 106,168 104 146318 120.877
Total premiums 1,526,224 1,270,348 832,549 717,081 115,468 580,047 360.914
Management and other fees 24,601 26,688 20,416 16,955 3461 17,919 11,054
L income 23.943 11920 2798 3L B 46| 1,449 £95
B =T T —— 1,574,768 1.308.956 856,763 1323713 119,390 599415 Y XX )
Operating expenses:
Medical expense:
MEiCRre EXPENSE....vormmeenecrrnee 1,187.331 0,358 553,084 478,553 74,531 333,632 187,368
Ce tial exp 38,662 108,168 107,085 90,783 16,312 124,743 14,164
Total medical expense 1,225,993 1,008,526 650,119 569,336 90,843 463,375 291,532
Selling, general and administras 186,154 156,940 11,854 97,187 14,667 68,868 50,576
Trhsaction expense.......... - — _ 10,941 4,000 £,94) — —_
Phantom stock compensalion. — — -— — — 24,200 —
Depreciation and amontization 16,220 10,154 7,305 6,990 315 3210 2,361
Impairment ufm!mgllﬂc BSR1S, 4,537 — —_ — — - —
Inlcrest cxpense..... T.466 £.695 14511 14469 42 . 214 256
Total operalmg p L.440,370 1184315 304,790 691982 112.808 559367 ——ni4025
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated .
affilime: 157 kLo 82 282 — 224 2,058
Income before minority interest -
2nd iNCOme LAXeS. .o 134755 124,950 52,255 45,673 6,582 39,782 29,996
Minority interest " = 1303 2.237) (1,979} (1.248) | 16,270 - 11
Income before income Laxes ... 134,755 124,647 49,028 43,694 5,334 33,510 24417
Income 1ax exp - {48.295) (43811 _ {1937) {17,144 (2,628) {9.193) ST
Net income S 86,460 80,836 29,256 26,550 2,706 24317 9,060
Prefemred divid = 2.821) 15607y | (13607} = = =
Net income svailable to common : .
stockholders and memb $ sean 0§ MRS | S iee | S__lossy S 270k S M7 & 19060
Net income per unit;
Basic — - - — 7 & ___ 055 S 1 | | | S— Y
Diluted... —_ — — —_ H 035 b 331 [ 4.67
Weighted v :rag: units -
nulsmndlng
Diluted.... o - — — —_ A.884.176 4 S7R.176 4078176
Net income pev oommm shme
avaijlable to common stockholders: .
Basic s 151 T | 3 — s 03 5 H — $ —_
Diluted i L5] [ L44 -— [ ST - — -
Weighted average common shares ' ‘
outstanding:
Basic — 57249052  _S4AILTH - | =2nl0d - - -
Diluted. 57348196 33,720,143 —_ 32205288 — — —_
Cash Flow Data:
Capita! expenditures $ 15,886 5 711 H 2,362 $ 2,653 s 149 H 2512 5 3,198
72,7152 167621 12,103 57,139 14,964 24,665 63,392
!rwesung Bclivities {389.1935) (336) {276,346) (270,877 6) (5,469) (34,615) 42,647
ing activities kX H 61,073 322,935 323,823(6) (B88) (23.311) {11,750}

{dollars in thawsands)
Balance Sheet Dats {at period
end):

Cash and cash equivalents. b 324,090 s 338,443 § 110,085 5 110,085 - 3 76,441 $ 67834 5 101,095
Total assets... 1,351,073 842,645 591,838 591,838 157,350 142,674 132,420
Total Jong- term dzhi mcludmg

current maturities 296,250 - — 188,526 188,526 5,358 5475 6,175
Stockholders’/members’ equ: 671,353 575,282 260,544 260,544 58,131 55,435 22,969
(perating Statistics:
Medical loss ratio — Medicare .

AAVADAEE (F)..rivivrecrrininieressnenns 79.7% 73.8% 78.4% 18.3% 78.7% 78.1% 78.1%
Medical loss

atio — Commercial (7}.. 82.9% 89.8% 84.4% 85.5% 73.8% 85.3% 86.2%
Medical loss ratio — PDP ( 86.3% 73.4% - — —_ —_ -_—
Selling, general and administrar

expense ratio(8).... 11.3% 12.0% 13.1% 13.2% 123% 11.5% 13.6%
Members — Medlcan-

Advantage (9) 153,197 115.132 101,281 101,281 69.236 63,792 47,899
Members — Commenrcial (9) . 11.801 31,970 41,769 41,769 40,523 48,380 54,280
Members — PDP{9} 139,212 48,753 —_ — - — -
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(1) The financial and statistical information for the year ended December 31, 2007 includes the results of the Leon
Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. from October 1, 2007, the date acquired by the company and the effect of the
company’s recording final retroactive rate settlement premiums and related risk sharing medical expenses for
both the 2006 and 2007 plan years.

(2) The combined financial information for the twelve months ended December 31, 2005 includes the results of
operations of NewQuest, LLC, for the period from January 1, 2005 through February 28, 2005 and the results of
operations of the company for the period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005, The combined
financial information is for illustrative purposes only, reflects the combination of the two-month period and the
ten month period to provide a comparison with the twelve month periods, and is not presented in accordance
with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) '

(3) On November 10, 2004, NewQuest, LLC and its members entered into a purchase and exchange agreement with
the company as part of a recapitalization. Pursuant to this agreement and a related stock purchase agreement, on
March 1, 2005, the GTCR Funds and certain other persons contributed $139.7 million of cash to the company
and the members of NewQuest, LLC contributed a portion of their membership units in exchange for preferred
and common stock of the company. Additionally, we entered into a $163.0 million term loan, with an additional
$15.0 million available pursuant to a revolving loan facility, and issued $35.0 million of subordinated notes, We
used the cash contribution and borrowings to acquire the members’ remaining membership units in NewQuest,
LLC for approximately $295.4 million in cash. The aggregate transaction value for the recapitalization was
$438.6 million, which included 35.3 miliion of capitalized acquisition related costs. Additionally, the company
incurred $6.3 million of deferred financing costs. in addition, NewQuest, LLC incurred $6.9 million of
transaction costs which were expensed during the two-month period ended February 28, 2005 and the company
incurred $4.0 million of transaction costs that were expensed during the ten-month period ended December 31,
2005. The wransactions resulted in the company recording $315.0 million in goodwill and $91.2 million in
identifiable intangible assets.

(4) On January 1, 2004, the minority members of TennQuest Health Solutions, LLC, or TennQuest, an 84.375%
owned subsidiary of NewQuest, LLC, converted their ownership of TennQuest into 500,000 membership units
in NewQuest, LLC, and on February 2, 2004 TennQuest was merged into NewQuest, LLC. Effective December
31, 2004, holders of phantom membership units in NewQuest, LLC converted their phantom units into 306,000
membership units of NewQuest, LLC. In connection with the conversion, the company recognized phantom
stock compensation expense of $24.2 million.

(5) On April 1, 2003, TennQuest exercised an option to acquire an additional 33% interest in HealthSpring
Management, Inc., or HSMI, from another shareholder of HSMI. As a result of the acquisition of these shares,
the company held 83% of the ownership interests in HSMI and consolidated the resulis of operations of
HealthSpring of Tennessee with the company’s operations for the period from April 1, 2003. Prior to April 1,
2003, the company accounted for its ownership interest in HSMI under the equity method. On December 19,
2003, HSMI and HealthSpring USA, LLC each redeemed certain of their outstanding ownership interests, which
resulted in the company owning 84.8% of the outstanding ownership interests of HSMI and HealthSpring USA,
ELC at December 31, 2003, '

{6) A substantial portion of the cash flows for investing and financing activities for the ten-month pertod ended
December 31, 2005 relate to the recapitalization. See Item 7. “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations — The Recapitalization.”

(7) The medical loss ratio represents medical expense incurred for plan participants as a percentage of premium
revenue for plan participants.

(8) The selling, general and administrative expense ratio represents selling, general and administrative expenses as a
percentage of total revenue.

{9) As of the end of each period presented.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction
with our audited consolidated financial statements, the notes to our audited consolidated financial statements, and the
other financial information appearing elsewhere in this report. We intend for this discussion to provide you with
information that will assist you in understanding our financial statements, the changes in certain key items in those
financial statements from year to year, and the primary factors that accounted for those changes. It includes the
Jollowing sections:

= Overview;

s Results of Operations;

»  Liquidity and Capital Resources;

*  Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements;

» Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates; and
*  Recent Accounting Pronouncements.

This discussion contains forward-looking statements based on our current expectations that by their nature
involve risks and nncertainties, Qur actual results and the timing of selected events could differ materially from
those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. Moreover, past financial and operating performance are not
necessarily reliable indicators of future performance and you are cautioned in using our historical results to
anticipate future results or ro predict future trends. In evaluating any forward-looking statement, you should
specifically consider the information set forth under the caption "Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” and in “ltem 1A. Risk Factors, " as well as other cautionary statements contained elsewhere in this
report, including the matiers discussed in “Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates” below.

Overview

HealthSpring, Inc. (the “company” or *HealthSpring™) is a managed carc organization whose primary focus is
Medicare, the federal government-sponsored health insurance program for U.S. citizens aged 65 and older,
qualifying disabled persons, and persons suffering from end-stage renal disease.

We operate Medicare Advantage plans in Alabama, Florida, lllinois, Mississippi, Tennessee and Texas and offer
Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to persons in all 50 states. We sometimes refer to our Medicare Advantage
plans (including plans providing prescription drug benefits, or MA-PD) collectively as “Medicare Advantage” plans
and our stand-alone prescription drug plan as our “PDP.” For purposes of additional analysis, the company provides
membership and certain financial information, including premium revenue and medical expense, for our Medicare
Advantage (including MA-PD) and PDP plans. Although we concentrate on Medicare plans, we also utilize our
infrastructure and provider networks in Alabama and Tennessee to offer commercial health plans to employer groups.

2067 Highlights

*  We acquired LMC Health Plans, which had approximately 23,800 members at the date of acquisition on
October 1, 2007.

» Organic Medicare Advantage membership in 2007 increased 10.5% over the prior year.

» Effective January 1, 2007, we began operation as a national PDP plan,

*  Qurdiluted EPS was $1.51 for 2007 compared with $1.44 for 2006.

» Medicare premium revenue for 2007 was $1.5 billion; an increase of 28.7% over 20006 results,

+ Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) premiums were $1.4 billion for 2007, reflecting an increase of 30.1%
over the prior year. Stand-alone PDP premiums increased $14.6 million, or 14.4%, to $116.0 million in 2007,

+ Total cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2007 was $324.1 million, including cash of $36.2 million
held at unregulated subsidiaries.
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 Acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans

On October 1, 2007, we completed the acquisition of alt of the outstanding capital stock of LMC Health Plans
pursuant to the terms of a Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 9, 2007 (the “Stock Purchase
Agreement”). LMC Health Plans is a Miami, Florida-based Medicare Advantage HMO with approximately 26,000
members. Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, we acquired LMC Health Plans for $355.0 million in cash and
contingent consideration of 2,666,607 shares of HealthSpring common stock, which share consideration has been
deposited in escrow and will be released to the former stockholders of LMC Health Plans if Leon Medical Centers,
Ine. (“LMC”) completes the construction of two additionat medical centers in accordance with the timetable set
forth in the purchase agreement. As part of the transaction, we entered into an exclusive long-term provider contract
(“the “Leon Medical Services Agreement”) with LMC. LMC operates five Medicare-only medical clinics located in
Miami-Dade County and has a ten-year history of providing medical care and customer service to the Hispanic
Medicare-eligible community of South Flerida. The Leon Medical Services Agreement is for an initial term of
approximately ten years with an additional five-year renewal term at our option.

Payments for medical services under the Leon Medical Services Agreement are based on agreed upon rates for
each service, multiplied by the number of plan members as of the first day of each month. There is a sharing
arrangement with regard to LMC Health Plans’ annual medical loss ratio (“MLR”) whereby the parties share equally
any surplus or deficit of up to 5% with regard to agreed-upon MLR benchmarks. The initial target for the annual
MLR is 80.0%, which increases to 81.0% during the term of the agreement.

LMC Health Pians has agreed that, during the term of the agreement, LMC will be LMC Health Plans’ exclusive
clinic-model provider, as defined in the agreement, in the four South Florida counties of Miami-Dade, Palm Beach,
Broward, and Monroe, LMC has agreed that LMC Health Plans will be, during the term of the agreement, the
exclusive health maintenance organization to whom LMC provides medical services as contemplated by the
agreement in the four-county area.

Basis of Presentation
Public Offerings

In February 2006, we completed our initial public offering, or IPO, of common stock. [n the IPO, we issued 10.6
million shares of common stock at a price of $19.50 per share. We used the net proceeds of the IPO of
approximately $188.6 million to repay all of our outstanding indebtedness, including accrued and unpaid interest
and other expenses related to the IPO. In connection with the IPO, the minority interests in our Texas HMO
subsidiary were exchanged for 2,040,194 shares of common stock. [n addition, as a result of the 1PO, all of our
outstanding shares of preferred stock and accrued but unpaid dividends automatically converted into shares of
common stock at the 1PO price.,

On October 10, 2006, we completed a secondary public offering of our common stock. [n connection with the
secondary offering certain stockholders of the company, including funds affiliated with GTCR Golder Rauner, LLC,
or the GTCR Funds, sold 11,600,000 shares of common stock at a price of $18.98 per share. We did not receive any
proceeds from the sale of the shares in the secondary offering.

The Recapitalization

HealthSpring, [nc. was formed in October 2004 in connection with a recapitalization transaction, which was
accounted for using the purchase method, involving our predecessor, NewQuest, LLC, its members, the GTCR
Funds, and certain other investors and lenders. The recapitalization was completed on March [, 20035,

Prior to the recapitalization, approximately 13% of the ownership interests in two of our Tennessee management
subsidiaries and approximately 27% of the membership interests of our Texas HMO subsidiary, Texas
HealthSpring, LL.C, were owned by outside investors. Contemporaneously with the recapitalization, we purchased
all of the minority interests in our Tennessee subsidiaries and a portion of the membership interests held by the
minority investors in Texas HealthSpring, LLC. Following the purchase, the outside investors in Texas
HealthSpring, LLC owned an approximately 9% ownership interest. Following a private placement in June 2003,
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and as of December 31, 2005, the outside investors owned an approximately 15.9% interest in Texas HealthSpring,
LLC, which interest was automatically exchanged, without additional consideration, for 2,040,194 shares of our
common stock immediately prior to the 1PO,

For purposes of comparing our 2005 twelve-month results with the comparable 2007 and 2006 periods, we have
combined the results of operations of the predecessor from January 1, 2005 through February 28, 2005 and of the
company for the period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005, This combined presentation is not in
accordance with GAAP; however, we believe it is useful in analyzing and comparing certain of our operating trends for
the last three fiscal vears. The combined and consolidated results of operations include the accounts of HealthSpring,
Inc. and all of its subsidiaries. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Revenue

General. Our revenue consists primarily of (i) premium revenue we generate from our Medicare and commercial
lines of business; (ji) fee revenue we receive for management and administrative services provided to independent
physician associations, health plans, and self-insured employers, and for access to our provider networks; and (iii)
mvestment income.

Premium Revenue. Our Medicare and commercial lines of business include all premium revenue we receive in
our health plans. Our Medicare centracts entitle us to premium payments from CMS, on behalf of each Medicare
beneficiary enrolled in our plans, generally on a per member per month, or PMPM, basis. In our commercial HMOs,
we receive a monthly payment from or on behalf of each enrolled member. In both our commercial and Medicare
plans, we recognize premium revenue during the month in which the company 1s obligated to provide services to an
enrolled member. Premiums we receive in advance of that date are recorded as deferred revenue,

Premiums for our Medicare and commercial products are generally fixed by contract in advance of the period
during which health care is covered. Each of our Medicare plans submits rate proposals to CMS, generally by
county or service area, in June for each Medicare product that will be offered beginning January | of the subsequent
year. Retroactive rate adjustments are made periodically with respect to each of our Medicare plans based on the
aggregate health status and risk scores of our plan populations, For a further explanation of the company’s
accounting for retroactive risk payments, see “—Risk Adjustment Payments” section below. Our commercial
premium rates are generally fixed for the plan year, in most cases beginning January 1.

As with our traditional Medicare Advantage plans, we provide written bids to CMS for our Part D plans, which
include the estimated costs of providing prescription drug benefits over the plan year. Premium payments from CMS are
based on these estimated costs. The amount of CMS payments relating to the Part D standard coverage for our MA-PD
and PDP plan is subject to adjustment, positive or negative, based upon the application of risk corridors that compare our
prescription drug costs in our bids to CMS to our actual prescription drug costs. Variances exceeding certain thresholds
may result in CMS making additional paymenits to us or our refunding to CMS a portion of the premium payments we
previously received. We estimate and recognize adjustments to premium revenue related to estimated risk corridor
payments as of each quarter end based upon our actual prescription drug costs for each reporting period as if the annual
contract were to end at the end of each reporting period. We account for estimated risk corridor settlements with CMS on
our balance sheet and as an operating activity in our statement of cash flows. Actual risk corridor payments upon final
settlement with CMS could differ materially, favorably or unfavorably, from our estimates.

Because of the Part D product benefit design, the company incurs prescription drug costs unevenly throughout
the year, resulting in fluctuations in quarterly MA-PD and PDP earnings. As a result of product features such as co-
payments and deductibles, the coverage gap, risk corridors, and reinsurance, we incur a disproportionate amount of
prescription drug costs in the first half of the vear. As a result, our Part D-related earnings increase in the second half
of the year as compared to the first half of the year.

Certain Part D-related payments we receive from CMS represent payments for claims that we pay on behalf of
CMS for which we assume no risk. We account for these payments as funds held for the benefit of members on our
balance sheet and as a financing activity in our statement of cash flows. We do not recognize premium revenue or
claims expense for these payments as these amounts represent pass-through payments from CMS to fund
deductibles, co-payments, and other member benefits.

We recognize prescription drug costs as incurred, net of rebates from drug companies.
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Fee Revenue. Fee revenue primarily includes amounts paid to us for management services provided to
independent physician associations and health plans. Our management subsidiaries typically generate fee revenue on
one of three bases: (1) as a percentage of revenue collected by the relevant health plan; (2) as a fixed PMPM
payment or percentage of revenue for members serviced by the relevant independent physician association; or (3) as
fees we receive for offering access to our provider networks and for administrative services we offer to self-insured
employers. Fee revenue is recognized in the month in which services are provided. In addition, pursuant io certain of
our management agreements with independent physician associations, or IPA’s, we receive fees based on a share of
the profits of the independent physician associations. To the extent these fees relate to members of cur HMO
subsidiaries, the fees are recognized as a credit to medical expense. Management fees calculated based on profits are
recognized, as fee revenue or as a credit to medical expenses, if applicable, when we can readily determine that such
fees have been eamed, which determination is typically made on a monthly basis.

Investment Income. Investment income consists of interest income and gross realized gains and losses from
sales of available-for-sale investments and discount amortization and interest on held-to-maturity securities,

Medical Expense

Our largest expense is the cost of medical services we arrange for our members, or medical expense. Medical
expense for our Medicare and commercial plans primarily consist of payments to physicians, hospitals, pharmacies,
and other health care providers for services and products provided to our Medicare and commercial members, We
generally pay our providers on one of three bases: {1) fee-for-service contracts based on negotiated fee schedules;
(2) capitated arrangements, generally on a fixed PMPM payment basis, whereby the provider generally assumes
some or all of the medical expense risk; and (3) risk-sharing arrangements, whereby we advance a capitated PMPM
amount and share the risk of the medical costs of our members with the provider based on actual experience as
measured against pre-determined sharing ratios. Pharmacy cost represents payments for members’ prescription drug
benefits, net of rebates from drug manufacturers. Rebates are recognized when earned, according to the contractual
arrangements with the respective manufacturers. |

One of our primary tools for managing our business and measuring our profitability is our medical loss ratio, or
MLR, the ratio of our medical expenses to the premiums we receive. Relatively small changes in the ratio of our
medical expenses relative Lo the premium we receive can result in significant changes in our financial results.
Changes in the MLR from period to period result from, among other things, changes in Medicare funding or
commercial premiums, changes in benefits offered by our plans, our ability to manage medical expense, changes in
accounting estimates related to incurred but not reported, or IBNR, claims, and our Part-D-related earnings relative
to CMS’ risk corridors. We use MLRs both to monitor our management of medical expenses and to make various
business decisions, including what plans or benefits to offer, what geographic areas to enter or exit, and our selection
of healthcare providers. We analyze and evaluate our Medicare Advantage, PDP and commercial MLRs separately.
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Results of Operations

Percentage Comparisons

.

The following table sets forth the consolidated and combined statements of income data expressed in dollars (in
thousands) and as a percentage of revenues for each period indicated.

Revenue:
Premium:
Medicare premiums.........cocecivcririnieieenes
Commercial premivms......cooveevicieicienne
Total premium revenue ...
Management and other fees.....ccooveirriann,
Investment iNCOME......coceierienicersinensrenens
Total Revenue ...
Operating expenses:
Medical expense:
Medicare expense.......cooceeeeeeeereenceisiennss
Commercial expense........coviivneiniernens
Total medical expense ...ooeoveeeeecenene.
Selling, general and administrative...............
Depreciation and amortization...........ccvveennes
Impairment of intangible assets.........c.cco.....
INterest EXPense ........cooeeeiueierienireccrecissaninns
Total operating expenses........cvrevereerns
Income before equity in eamings of
unconsolidated aftiliates, minority interest
and INCOME tAXES ..oovvrrevininrenieaisireeniracnnnes
Equity in eamings of unconsolidated
affiliates .. .
Income before mmonty 1nterest and income
taxes.. ettt renns
Mmorlty mterest
Income before income taxes
Income tax eXpense ....occceceerieiccicnee e
NELINCOME ...t raeenas
Preferred dividends...
Net income avallab]e to common
stockholders or members .......ccooeevene

Year Ended December 31,

2005 (combined)

2007 2006

$1,479,576 93.9% $1,149,844 287.9% $705,677 82.4%
46.648 3.0 120,504 9.2 126.872 14.8
1,526,224 96.9 1,270,348 97.1 832,549 97.2
24,601 1.6 26,688 20 20,416 24
23.943 1.5 11.920 0.9 3,798 0.4
1,574,768 100.0 1,308956 100.0 856,763 100.0
$1,187,331 75.4 900,358 68.7 553,084 64.5
38,662 25 108,168 8.3 107.095 12.5
1,225,993 71.9 1,008,526 77.0 660,179 71.0
186,154 11.8 156,940 12.0 122,795 14.4
16,220 1.0 10,154 0.8 7,305 08
4,537 0.3 — — — —
7,466 0.5 8.695 0.7 14,511 1.7
1,446,370 91.5 1,184,315 90.5 804.790 93.9

L] .

134,398 8.5 124,641 9.5 51,973 6.1
357 0.1 309 — 282 —
134,755 8.6 124,950 9.5 52,255 6.1
— — (303) — (3,227) {0.4)
134,755 8.6 124,647 9.5 49,028 5.7
(48,295 _(3.1) (43.811) _(3.3y _{(19.772) (2.3}
86,460 55 80,836 6.2 29,256 34
— — (2,021) (0.2} (15.,607) {1.8)

5 86,460 5.5% % 78815 6.0% $ 13,649 1.6%
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Membership

Our primary source of revenue is monthly premism payments we receive based on membership enrolled in our
managed care plans. The following table summarizes our Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD), stand-alone
PDP, and commercial plan membership, by state, as of the dates indicated.

December 31,

2007 2006 2005

Medicare Advaniage Membership
TEIMESESEE «..evoeeeeeieeeeever e sttebestesassene e e e saseseae s e s rersrasrssnton s seesreensmenneneanseanesesanters 50,510 46,261 42,509
TEKAS «.eeieaciirirret sttt ess et es ettt sr et s s e et s ae e st et bersaa s venes 36,661 34,638 29,706
ATBDAIMIA eveiieii ettt sr et e s e e st se s sa e s se s s s s b ab e bae b e s aneene e et s eneanane 30,600 27,307 24,531
Florida(1) 25,946 — —
HHHROIS 11ttt e et se et es e 8,639 6,284 4,166
IVISSISSIPP cevrrereerreeirniernrreisseaietstse st ereese e eaer e st s bt et e ses s st ee e sesesem st esnnseserenstvansere 841 642 369

TOAl v e ettt et s . 153,197 115,132 i01.28]
Medicare Stand-Alone PDP MemberShip.............cocccovovevvcmonnonncsnnnecnee 139,212 _88.753 N
Commercial Membership(2)
TEMNESSEE ...rvevvrreeniresirtesre e s e s esee e e s renesrnstestesresearesasenssasnsantesrerasnsrabontossens 11,046 29,341 29,859
ALBDAMA. ..ottt ettt e e e bt 755 2,629 11,910
Total(3} 1801 31,970  _41,769

(1) The company acquired LMC Health Plans on October 1, 2007. As of the acquisition date the health plan had
approximately 25,800 Medicare Advantage members and no PDP or commercial members.

(2) Does not include members of commercial PPOs owned and operated by unrelated third parties that pay us a
management fee for access to our contracted provider network,

(3) Commercial membership has declined since 2005 as a result of the non-renewal by employers in Tennessee and
Alabama. ‘

Medicare Advantage. Our Medicare Advantage membership increased by 33.1% to 153,197 members at
December 31, 2007 as compared to 115,132 members at December 31, 2006. The increase was principally
attributable to the addition of 25,946 members as a result of the acquisition of LMC Health Plans and to 10.5%
organic growth in membership in our existing core markets through increased penetration in existing service areas.
Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) membership as of January 1, 2008 was 151,671 reflecting decreases in two
of our markets as a result of exiting certain poorer performing counties and discontinuing certain preduct offerings.

Stand-Alone PDP. Stand-alone PDP membership increased by 56.9% to 139,212 at December 31, 2007 as
compared to 88,753 members at December 31, 2006, The increase was principally attributable to additional auto-
assignment by CMS of membership. In 2006, we offered prescription drug benefits to our Medicare Advantage plan
members. Effective January 1, 2007, we began operations as a national PDP plan. PDP membership as of January 1,
2008 was approximately 254,000 as a result of an additional auto-assignment by CMS of.membership in the
California and New York regions effective as of the start of the year. We expect monthly increases to PDP
membership throughout 2008 as a result of additional auto-assignments from CMS. We do not actively market our
PDP and have relied for membership on CMS auto-assignments of dual-eligible beneficiaries.

Commercial. Our commercial HMO membership declined from 31,970 members at December 31, 2006 to

11,801 members at December 31, 2007, or by 63.1%, primarily as a result of the non-renewal by employers in
Alabama and Tennessee. Total commercial membership as of January 1, 2008 was 3,418,
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Risk Adjustment Payments

Our Medicare premium revenue is subject to adjustment based on the health risk of our members under CMS’s
risk adjustment payment methodelogy. Under the risk adjustment payment methodology, managed care plans must
capture, collect, and report diagnosis code information to CMS. Afier reviewing the respective submissions, CMS
establishes the payments to Medicare plans generally at the beginning of the calendar year, and then adjusts
premium levels on two separate occasions on a retroactive basis. The first retroactive risk premium adjustment for a
given fiscal year generally occurs during the third quarter of such fiscal year. This initial settlement (the “Initial
CMS Settlement”) represents the updating of risk scores for the current year based on the prior year’s dates of
service. CMS then issues a final retroactive risk premium adjustment settlement for the fiscal year in the following
year (the “Final CMS Settlement™. During 2006, we were unable to estimate the impact of either of these risk
adjustment seitlements, and as such recorded them upon notification from CMS of such amounts. In the first quarter
of 2007, we began estimating and recording on a monthty basis the [nitial CMS Settlement, as we concluded we had
the ability to reasonably estimate such amounts. Similarly in the fourth quarter of 2007 the company accrued for the
estimated 2007 Final CMS Settlement as such amount was reasonably estimable. The Final CMS Settlement for
2006 was recorded during the second quarter of 2007 when payment notification was received from CMS. As of
January 2008, we wili estimate and record on a monthly basis both the Initial CMS Settlement and the Final CMS
Settlement for the 2008 CMS plan year. All such estimated amounts are periodically updated as necessary as
additional diagnoses code information is reported to CMS and adjusted to actual amounts when the ultimate
adjustment settlements are either received from CMS or we receive notification from CMS of such settlement
amounts.

The following schedule includes premiums, medical costs, and medical loss ratio statistics as adjusted for the
following items:

»  Adjustments to reflect in 2006 the 2006 final risk-adjustment payment from CMS of $14.8 million and the
related risk-sharing costs, which were recorded in 2007 results.

»  Adjustments to reflect in 2005 the 2005 final payment from CMS of $5.7 million and related risk-sharing
costs, which were recorded in 2006 results.

»  Adjustments to exclude from 2005 results the '2004 final payment from CMS of $1.6 million and related risk-
sharing costs, which were recorded in 2005, as such amounts related to fiscal 2004.

The following schedule is included herein to assist in understanding our operating results for the respective
periods. Medicare Advantage premiums and medical costs include amounts for both MA-only and MA-PD.

Year Ended December 31,

Unaudited, § in Millions 2007 2006 2008
Medicare Advantage Premiums — as reported.......cccovccvicccccnneeeee. 31,3636 51,0485 § 7057
Pro-forma adjustments:

2006 CMS Final Risk Adjustment Payment......c.o.ccommvmmvnemvninmesieeceeecne (14.8) 14.8 e

2005 CMS Final Risk Adjustment Payment..........c..cccuenmonnninniinnnnnnaen, -— (5.7) 5.7

2004 CMS Final Risk Adjustment Payment .........coooveeenimenrcssinsennes — — (1.6)
Medical Advantage Premiums — as adjusted.............ccccocovvevervcrcnee.. 8§ _LI4RR  § 1,057.6 5 T709.8
Medicare Advantage Medical Cost — as reported.............cccooeeninins $ 10872 § 8259 § 553.1
Pro-forma adjustments:

2006 CMS Final Risk Adjustment Payment......vinniiiininninncinnne 3.5) 3.5 —_—

2005 CMS Final Risk Adjustment Payment ..........cvueerreeecmmicaenaniann — 0.9 ° 0.9

2004 CMS Final Risk Adjustment Payment..........cococoiiiinecscnimnenieeans — — {0.3)
Medical Advantage Medical Costs — as adjusted ..., L0837 8 8285 3 S553.7
Medical Loss Ratios (MLRs);

Total Medical Costs — as reported ..........vviiiviinisinsivenisvs e, 79.7% 78.8% 78.4%

Total Medical Costs — as adjusted .........c.ccoooiivvevevicie, 80.3% 78.3% 78.0%
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Because we did not estimate and accrue for the risk adjustment payments in the manner assumed in the pro-forma
table, this pro-forma presentation is not in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United
States (GAAP). We believe that these non-GAAP measures are useful to investors and management in analyzing
financial trends regarding our operating and financial performance. These non-GAAP measures should be
considered in addition to, but not as a substitute for, the corresponding GAAP items shown in the table above.

Settlement of 2006 Part D Activity

In October 2007, we received notification from CMS that our obligation to CMS to settle all Part D activity for
the 2006 plan year totaled $103.7 million. We settled such amounts from 2006 with CMS in the fourth quarter of
2007. As a result of adjusting our estimate of amounts due CMS for the 2006 plan year to amounts set forth in the
final settlement notification from CMS, there was a negative impact on operations in the three months ended
September 30, 2007 of $3.5 million.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2007 to the Year Ended December 31, 2006
Revenue

Total revenue was $1,574.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared with $1,309,0 million for
the same period in 2006, representing an increase of $265.8 million, or 20.3%. The components of revenue were as
follows:

Premium Revenue: Total premium revenue for 2007 was $1,526.2 million as compared with $1,270.3 million in
the same period in 2006, representing an increase of $255.9 million, or 20.1%. The components of premium revenue
and the primary reasons for changes were as follows:

Medicare Advantage: On an as-adjusted basis (see “Risk Adjustment Payments” table above), Medicare
Advantage premiums were $1,348.8 million for year ended December 31, 2007 versus $1,057.6 million in the same
period in 2006, representing an increase of $291.2 million, or 27.5%. The increase in Medicare Advantage
premiums in 2007 is attributable to increases in membership (which we measure in membership months) and PMPM
premium rates. Member months increased 20.9% for the 2007 period as compared to the 2006 period. PMPM
premiums increased 5.5% to $858.78 for 2007 from $814.08 for 2006 (as adjusted to exclude the effect of the
retroactive risk payments related to prior periods) as a result of the inclusion of the LMC Health Plans’ higher
PMPM premiums from the date of acquisition in October 2007 and as a result of increases in rates as affected by
risk scores and the mix of members qualifying as dual-eligibles. The inclusion of LMC Health Plans’ results since
the date of acquisition in October 2007 contributed 140 basis points of the 2007 PMPM increase as compared to
2006 PMPMs. As reported, Medicare Advantage premiums were $1,363.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2007 versus $1,048.5 million in the same period in 2006, representing an increase of $315.1 million, or 30.1%. For
2008, we expect average reimbursement rates for our Medicare Advantage plans to increase by 10% to 11% over
2007 {or 7 to 8% excluding the reimbursement rates for our Florida market).

PDP: PDP premiums (afier risk corridor adjustments) were $116.0 million in the year ended December 31, 2007
compated to $101.4 million in the same period of 2006, an increase of $14.6 million, or 14.4%. Our average PMPM
premiums (afier risk corridor adjustments} decreased 20.1% to $79.94 in the current period versus $100.10 during
the 2006 period. The impact of the rate decrease in the current period was more than offset by a 43.2% increase in
member months in the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to the same period in 2006. We expect PMPM
premiums for 2008 to be relatively unchanged compared to 2007 levels.

Commercial: Commercial premiums were $46.6 million in the 2007 as compared with $120.5 million in the
2006 comparable period, reflecting a decrease of $73.9 million, or 61.3%. The decrease was attributable to the
63.3% decline in member months. PMPM rates for 2007 increased 5.5% compared to 2006. Because of our
expansion of our Medicare program into new areas in existing markets, continuing Medicare member growth in
certain of our existing service areas, the expansion of our national PDP product and the non-renewal of coverage by
several large employers in Tennessee and Alabama, we expect commercial premium revenue as a percentage of total
premium revenue and total revenue to continue to decline in the future.
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Fee Revenue. Fee revenue was $24.6 million in the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared with $26.7
million in the comparable period of 2006, representing a decrease of $2.1 millien, or 7.8%. The decrease in the
current period is primartly attributable to the termination of a management agreement on December 31, 2006, which
was partially offset by increases in other fee revenue.

Investment Income. Investment income was $23.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 versus $11.9
million for the comparable period of 2006, reflecting an increase of $12.0 million, or 100.9%. The increase is
attributable to an increase in average invested and cash balances, coupled with a higher average yield on these
balances.

Medical Expense

Medicare Advantage. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD)
MLR was 80.3% versus 78.3% for the same period of 2006 on an as-adjusted basis (see “— Risk Adjustment
Payments” above). The deterioration in 2007 as compared to the same period of 2006 resulted primarily from higher
medical services expenses and facility charges in outpatient and emergency room settings and higher in-patient
ltilization. As reported, Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD} medical expense for the year ended December 31,
2007 increased $261.4 million, or 31.6%, to $1,087.3 millien from $825.9 million for the comparable period of
2006, primarily as a result of the medical expense incurred by LMC Health Plans from October 1, 2007, the date we
acquired the health plan, and as a result of increased membership and utilization in our existing health plans.

Our Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) medical expense calculated on a PMPM basis was $690.03 for the
year ended December 31, 2007, compared with $637.77 for the 2006 period (adjusted to exclude the portion of risk
sharing with providers associated with retroactive risk payments relating to prior periods, net (see “— Risk
Adjustment Payments™ above)), reflecting an increase of 8.2%, primarily as a result of the factors discussed
previously regarding the deterioration in the MLR during 2007 along with medical cost inflation.

PDP. PDP medical expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 increased $25.6 million or 34.4% to $100.0
million, compared to $74.4 million in the same period last year. PDP MLR for the 2007 period equaled 86.3%
compared to 73.4% in the 2006 period. The change in the current period 2007 MLR compared to the 2006 period
was primarily a function of the decrease in PMPM PDFP revenue in 2007 as compared to 2006 and the impact of
changes in estimates as a result of the settlement with CMS for 2006 Part D activity. The final settlement with CMS
for the 2006 plan year had a negative impact of 110 basis points on the 2007 PDP MLR. '

Commercial. Commercial medical expense decreased by $69.5 million, or 64.3%, to $38.7 million in 2007 as
compared to $108.2 million for the same period of 2006. The decrease in the current period was primarily
attributable to the reduction in membership versus the prior year period. The commercial MLR was 82.9% for 2007
as compared with 89.8% in 2006, The improvement in the MLR in 2007 was primarily the result of several large
employer groups with historically higher medical loss experience not renewing for 2007.

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense

Selling, General and Administrative, or SG&A, expense for 2007 was $186.2 million as compared with $156.9
million for 2006, an increase of $29.2 million, or 18.6%. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A expense was 11.8% for
2007 as compared with 12.0% for the prior vear. This decrease in SG&A expense as a percentage of revenue was
attributable primarily to the inclusion of LMC Health Plans since October 1, 2007, the date of acquisition. This was
offset by higher than anticipated SG&A expense for 2007 in our existing health plans as a result of increases in
personnel and related costs and printing and postage costs associated primarily with increases in PDP membership.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense was $16.2 million in 2007 as compared with $10.2 million in 2006,
representing an increase of $6.0 million, or 59.7%. The increase in the current period was the result of $3.3 million
in amortization expense associated with intangible assets recorded as part of the acquisition of LMC Health Plans
and incremental depreciation on property and equipment additions made in 2006 and 2007. The company expects
amortization of the LMC Health Plan intangible assets in 2008 to be approximately $13.0 million,
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Impairment of Intangible Assets

During ihe second quarter of 2007, the company recorded a $4.5 million charge for the impairment of intangible
assets associated with commercial customer relationships in the company’s Tennessee health plan. This second
quarter charge was the result of the company’s expectation that significant declines in commercial membership
would occur as a result of its decision in the second quarter of 2007 to implement premium increases upon renewal
for large group plans.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $7.5 million in the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared with $8.7 million in 2006.
Interest expense recognized in the 2007 period was the result of the company’s borrowing $300.0 million in term
loans on October 1, 2007 in connection with the purchase of LMC Health Plans and the write-off of deferred
financing costs of $0.7 million. We expect increases in the amount of interest expense in future periods as a result of
these borrowings.

The company’s interest expense in the 2006 period related to interest on outstanding borrowings, the write-off of -
deferred financing costs of $5.4 million, and an early payment premium of $1.1 million related to the payoff of all
the company’s outstanding indebtedness and related accrued interest in February 2006 with proceeds from the IPO.

Income Tax Expense

For 2007, income tax &xpense was $48.3 million, reflecting an effective tax rate of 35.8%, versus $43.8 million,
reflecting an effective tax rate of 35.1%, for 2006. The lower tax rate in 2006 reflects changes in estimates resulting
from the completion of the 2005 consolidated federal tax return and state tax planning.

Preferred Dividends

In 2006, the company accrued $2.0 million of dividends payable on preferred stock. In February 2006, in
connection with the 1PO, the preferred stock and all accrued and unpaid dividends were converted into common
stock.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2006 to the Combined Twelve-Month Period Ended
December 31, 2005

Revenue

Total revenue was $1,309.0 million for 2006 as compared with $856.8 million in the combined twelve months of
2005, representing an increase of $452.2 million, or 52.8%. The components of revenue were as follows:

Premium Revenue: Total premium revenue for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $1,270.3 million as
compared with $832.5 million in the combined twelve months of 2005, representing an increase of $437.8 million,
or 52.6%. The components of premium revenue and the primary reasons for changes were as follows:

Medicare Advantage: On an as-adjusted basis (see “Risk Adjustment Payments” table above), Medicare
Advantage (including MA-PD) premiums were $1,057.6 million for 2006 versus $709.8 million in the prior year,
representing an increase of $347.8 million, or 49.0%. The increase in Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD)
premiums in 2006 is attributable to increases in membership and PMPM premium rates and the addition of Part D
premiums. Membership months increased 30.4% for 2006 as compared to 2005. PMPM premiums (as adjusted to
exclude the effect of the retroactive risk payments related to prior periods) increased 14.3% to $814.06 for 2006
from $712.43 for 2003, primarily as a result of additional PMPM premium relating to the Part D benefit received by
MA-PD members beginning January 1, 2006. On a similarly adjusted basis, our Medicare Advantage premiums
(excluding the Part D-related premium under MA-PD) calculated on a PMPM basis was $744.49 for 2006,
compared with $712.43 for 2005, reflecting an increase of 4.5% primarily as a result of increases in rates and risk
scores and the mix of our members qualifying as dual-eligibles. As reported, Medicare Advantage (including MA-
PD) premiums were $1,048.5 million for 2006 versus $703.7 miltion in the prior year representing an increase of
$342.8 million or 48.6%.
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PDP: PDP premiums (after risk corridor adjustments) were $101.4 million in 2006, Our average PMPM
premiums received from CMS (after risk corridor adjustments) were $100.10 for PDP members for 2006, Because
the Medicare Part D program was implemented effective January 1, 2006, there are no comparable PDP operating or
financial results for 2005,

Commercial: Commercial premiums were $120.5 million in 2006 as compared with $126.9 million in the
combined twelve months of 2003, reflecting a decrease of $6.4 million, or 5.0%. The decrease was attributable to
the decline in membership, which was partially offset by average commercial premium increases of approximately
7.4%.

Fee Revenue: Fee revenue was $26.7 million in 2006 as compared with $20.4 millien in the combined twelve
months of 2005, representing an increase of $6.3 million, or 30.7%. Of the increase, $4.3 million was attributable to
the addition of a management agreement, which was terminated as of December 31, 2006. The remaining increase
resulted from increased member volumes in the IPAs managed by the company.

Investment Income: nvestment income was $11.9 mitlion for 2006 versus $3.8 million for the combined twelve
months of 2005, reflecting an increase of $8.1 million, or 213.9%. The increase is attributable to an increase in
average invested and cash balances, coupled with a higher average yield on these balances.

Medical Expense

Medicare Advantage. Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) medical expense for 2006 increased $272.8
million, or 49.3%, to $825.9 million from $553.1 million for the combined twelve months of 20035, primarily as a
result of increased membership, increasing medical costs, and Part D prescription drug coverage for MA-PD
members beginning January 1, 2006. For 2006, Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) MLR was 78.8% versus
78.4% for 2005. Our Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) medical expense calculated on a PMPM basis was
$635.77 for 2006, compared with $555.14 for 2005, reflecting an increase of 14.6%. The primary driver of the
increase in 2006 PMPM expense is the additional expense resulting from the Part D prescription drug benefit
effective as of January 1, 2006. Our Medicare Advantage medical expense (excluding MA-PD) calculated on a
PMPM basis was $576.73 for 2006, compared with $555.14 for 2005, reflecting an increase of 3.9%.

PDP. PDP medical expense for 2006 was $74.4 million reflecting an MLR of 73.4%. PDP medical expense on a
PMPM basis for 2006 was $73.50.

Commercial. Commercial medical expense increased by $1.1 million, or 1.0%, to $108.2 million for 2006 as
compared to $107.1 million for the combined twelve months of 2005. The commercial MLR was 89.8% for 2006 as
compared with 84.4% in 2003, an increase of 540 basis points, which was primarily attributable to an unusually
large number of high dollar in-patient cases during 2006,

Selling, General, and Administrative Expense

SG&A expense for 2006 was $156.9 million as compared with $111.9 million (not including $10.9 million of
transaction expense incutred in conjunction with the recapitalization) for the prior year, an increase of $45.0 million,
or 40.3%. As a percentage of revenue, SG&A expense was 12.0% for 2006 as compared with 13.0% (as adjusted)
for the prior year. ‘

The increase in SG&A expense was attributable to an increase in personnel and related costs, including increases
of $15.9 million associated with supporting and sustaining our membership growth and in corporate personnel, $9.4
million associated with the implementation of Part D and our operations related thereto, stock compensation expense
totaling $5.3 million recorded in connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 123R and incremental advertising and
selling costs of $3.7 million. The remaining increase is due to public company and other corporate costs, including
expenses related to compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense was $10.2 million in 2006 as compared with $7.3 million in the
combined twelve months of 2005, representing an increase of $2.9 million, or 39.0%. The increase is primarity
attributable to the amortization of identifiable intangible assets recorded in conjunction with the recapitalization in
2005. Amortization of $7.5 million was recorded during 2006 as compared with $5.0 million 2005. Amortization in
2006 includes approximately $1.7 million as a result of the accelerated amortization of recorded intangibles for
customer relationships in Alabama, as a result of decreases in membership.

Interest Expense

Interest expense was $8.7 million in 2006 as compared with $14.5 million in the combined twelve months of
2005. Most of the company’s interest expense in 2006 related to the write-off of deferred financing costs in the
amount of $5.4 million and a prepayment premium of $1.1 million related to the payoff of all the company’s
outstanding indebtedness and related accrued interest with proceeds from the [PO. Interest expense in 2005 related
primarily to the company’s indebtedness incurred in connection with the recapitalization, .

Minority Interest

Minority interest was $0.3 million in 2006 as compared with $3.2 million in the combined twelve months of
2005. The change is attributable to minority interest ownership in our Tennessee HMO and management
subsidiaries and a higher minority interest ownership in our Texas HMO subsidiary for the two months of 2005 prior
1o the recapitalization. Contemporaneously with the recapitalization, we purchased all of the minority interests in the
Tennessee subsidiaries. [n conjunction with the PO in February 2006, ali minority interest ownership in the Texas
HMO subsidiary was exchanged for company common stock.

Income Tax Expense

For 2006, income tax expense was $43.8 million, reflecting an effective tax rate of 35.1%, versus $19.8 million,
reflecting an effective tax rate of 40.3%, for the combined 1welve months of 2005. The higher effective tax rate in
2003 was the result of losses at several of our subsidiartes, which were consolidated for accounting purposes, but not
for 1ax purposes because such subsidiaries were pass-through entities prior to the recapitalization. Additionally, the
lower tax rate in 2006 reflects changes in estimates identified upon the completion of the 2005 consolidated federal
tax return, and state tax planning.

Preferred Dividend

[n 2006, the company accrued $2.0 million of dividends payable on the preferred stock issued in connection with
the recapitalization as compared to a dividend accrued in the same combined period in 2005 of $15.6 million for the
ten months following the recapitalization. [n February 2006, in connection with the PO, the preferred stock and all
accrued and unpaid dividends were converted into common stock.,

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We finance our operations primarily through internatly generated funds. All of our outstanding funded
indebtedness was incurred in connection with the acquisition of the LMC Health Plans in October 2007. See “—
Indebtedness™ below:.

We generate cash primartly from premium revenue and our primary use of cash is the payment of medical and
SG&A expenses. We anticipate that our current level of cash on hand, internally generated cash flows, and
borrowings available under our new revolving credit facility will be sufficient to fund our working capital needs and
anticipated capital expenditures over the next twelve months.
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The reported changes in cash and cash equivalents for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, are
summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,

i 2007 2006 2003
{in thousands) (combined)
Net cash provided by operating activities........courivinirere i, § 72,752 § 167,621 3 72,103
Net cash used in investing aCliVItIES c..covvrviercrr et (389,195) (336) (276,346)
Net cash provided by financing activities..........coooevveeiiiminnnineineeens 302,090 61,073 322,935
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ..., § (]4,353) 5 228358 § 118,692

The change in cash and cash equivalents for the combined twelve month period ended December 31, 2005 above
includes our predecessor for the period from January 1, 2005 through February 28, 2005 and the company for the
period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005. Cash flows related to 2007 investing and financing
activities were significantly affected by the acquisition of the LMC Health Plans. Cash flows related to 2005
investing and financing activities were significantly affected by the recapitatization.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flow provided by our operations, available cash on hand and our
revolving credit facility. We generated cash from operating activities of $72.8 miltion during the year ended
December 31, 2007, compared to $167.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2006.

2007 Compared With 2006

For the year ended December 31, 2007, cash flow provided by operating activities was $72.8 million compared
with $167.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Operating cash flows in 2006 included favorable
amounts due to our entry into the Part D business.

The main drivers of the current year decrease in cash provided from operations were a $32.8 million use of cash
related 10 the timing of settiements and receipts of Part D funds with CMS, a $25.4 million negative variance in the
timing of pharmacy claims payments and the run-out in commercial claims on commercial plans that terminated
during 2006, and a negative variance in the timing of income tax payments.

2006 Compared With 2005

The increase in cash flow provided by operating activities to $167.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 as compared with $72.1 million for the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005 is primarily
attributable to increases in earnings and from favorable cash flows as a result of our entering the Part D business as
of January 1, 2006. In addition, the following working capital items had a significant impact on cash flows from
operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2006:

« Risk corridor payable to CMS associated with the Part D drug program increased $27.6 million in 2006.

» Medical claims liability increased $40.1 million in the current year as a result of the 30.4% increase in
Medicare Advantage (including MA-PD) member months.

Cash Flows from Investing and Financing Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2007, our primary investing activity consisted of net expenditures of $317.8
million used to acquire the LMC Health Plans on October 1, 2007. Other investing activities consisted of $13.9
million in property and equipment additions, approximately $86.5 million used to purchase investments, and $30.6
million in proceeds from the maturity of investment securities. The Company expects capital expenditures in 2008 to
approximate 1.0% of total revenues. Our ongoing capital expenditures are primarily related to our technology
initiatives and the development of medical clinics as part of our Living Well Health Center initiative.
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During the year ending December 31, 2007, our financing activities consisted of proceeds received from the
issuance of long-term debt in October 2007 of $300.0 million, which was used in our acquisition of the LMC Health
Plans, payments of $10.6 million for financing costs associated with the issuance of this debt and $15.4 million of
funds received from CMS in excess of the funds withdrawn for the benefit of members with Part D drug coverage.
We anticipate settling the liability related to such funds with CMS in 2008 as part of the final settlement of Part D
for the 2007 plan year. We expect cash flows in 2008 to include inflows for similar subsidies (or funds) from CMS
related to the 2008 Medicare year.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, our primary investing activities consisted of $7.1 million in property and
equipment additions, approximately $10.4 million used to purchase investments, and $18.3 millien in proceeds from
the maturity of investment securities. During the year ending December 31, 2006, our financing activities consisted
of proceeds received from the issuance of common stock related to the IPQ in February 2006 of $188.5 million,
which was used in its entirety to pay off all outstanding indebtedness, and $62.1 million of funds received from
CMS in excess of the funds withdrawn for the benefit of members with Part D drug coverage. These funds from
CMS are recorded as a liability on our balance sheet at December 31, 2006. We settled this amount with CMS in
2007 as part of the final settlement of Part D for the 2006 plan year. Because the Medicare Part D program was
implemented effective January 1, 2006, there are no comparable subsidies received in prior years,

For the combined twelve months ended December 31, 2005, the primary investing and financing activities
related to the recapitalization. We also had $2.8 million of capital expenditures.

In June 2007 the company’s board of directors authorized a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to $50.0
million of the company’s common stock. The company’s credit agreement permits such repurchases, subject to
certain limitations relating to minimum liquidity requirements and the sources of funds for such repurchases. As of
December 31, 2007, the company had not repurchased any common stock under the program. As of February 27,
2008, the company had repurchased 478,500 shares of common stock at an average price of $18.55 per share during
2008 in open market transactions pursuant to the stock repurchase program.

Statutory Capital Requirements :

Our HMO subsidiaries are required to maintain satisfactory minimum net worth requirements established by
their respective state departments of insurance. At December 31, 2007, our Texas (minimum $8.9 million; actual
$42.5 million), Tennessee (minimum $14.8 million; actual $59.4 million), Florida (minimum $6.8 million; actual
$16.0 million) and Alabama (minimum $1.1 million; actual $36.7 million} HMO subsidiaries were in compliance
with statutory minimum net worth requirements at December 31, 2007, Notwithstanding the foregoing, the state
departments of insurance can require our HMO subsidiaries to maintain minimum levels of statutory capital in
excess of amounts required under the applicable state law if they determine that maintaining additional statutory
capital is in the best interest of our members.

The HMOs are restricted from making distributions without appropriate regulatory notifications and approvals or
to the extent such distributions would put them out of compliance with statutory net worth requirements. At
December 31, 2007, $389.3 million of our $425.5 million of cash, cash equivalents, investment securities and
restricted investments were held by our HMO subsidiaries and subject to these dividend restrictions. Qur Texas
HMO subsidiary distributed $21.6 million and $36.0 million in cash to the parent company in 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Our Alabama HMO subsidiary distributed $2.0 million in cash to the parent company in 2007.

Indebtedness

Long-term debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following (in thousands):

2007 2006
Senior SECUred LETM LOAN ......ccveiiieeieeecesr et e e et s e e et esnseeeensrassrtssasaneen $ 296,250 h —
Less: current portion of long-term debt .......cooovviecieiciicie et erenn (18,750) —
Long-term debt eSS CUTENE POMTIOMN. ..c..uoccreerernrinnee e et s nrass v ebenas $ 277,500 p—
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In connection with funding the acquisition of LMC Health Plans, on October 1, 2007, we entered into a $400.0
million, five-year credit agreement (the “New Credit Agreement”) which, subject to the terms and conditions set
forth therein, provides for $300.0 miilion in term loans and a $100.0 million revolving credit facility.

Proceeds from the $300.0 million in term loans, together with the our available cash on hand, were used to fund
the acquisition of LMC Health Plans (see — “Overview — Acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans”) and
transaction expenses related thereto. The $100.0 million revolving credit facility, which is available for working
capital and general corporate purposes including capital expenditures and permitted acquisitions, was undrawn as of
the date of this report.

Borrowings under the New Credit Agreement accrue interest on the basis of either a base rate or a LIBOR rate
plus, in each case, an applicable margin (initially 250 basis points for LIBOR advances) depending on our debt-to-
EBITDA leverage ratio. We also will pay commitment fees on the unfunded portion of the lenders’ commitments
under the revolving credit facility, the amounts of which will also depend on our leverage ratio. The New Credit
Agreement matures, the commitments thereunder terminate, and all amounts then outstanding thereunder are
payable on October 1, 2012,

The term loans are payable in quarterly principal installments. Maturities of long-term debt as of December 31,
2007 under the New Credit Agreement are as follows:’

2008 ..ovovevrr e ssssssmirenss st it 8 18,750,000
2009 covvvvereeerreesessssessessseseeesses oo s RS e 30,000,000
2010 33,750,000
2011 78,750,000
2012 135.000.000

§ 296,250,000

Amounts borrowed under the revolving credit facility also must be repaid no later than October 1, 2012.

The net proceeds from certain asset sales, casualty/condemnation events, and incurrences of indebtedness
(subject, in the cases of asset sales and casualty/condemnation events, to certain reinvestment rights), and a pomon
of the net proceeds from equity issuances and our excess cash flow, are required to be used to make prepayments in
respect of loans outstanding under the Néw Credit Agreement.

Loans under the New Credit Agreement are secured by a first priority licn on substantially all assets of the
company and its non-HMO subsidiaries, including a ptedge by the company and its non-HMO subsidiaries of all of
the equity interests in each of their domestic subsidiaries.

The New Credit Agreement contains conditions precedent to extensions of credit and representations, warranties,
and covenants, including financial covenants, customary for transactions of this type. Financial covenants include (i)
a maximum leverage ratio comparing total indebtedness to consolidated adjusted EBITDA, (ii) minimum net worth
requirements for each HMO subsidiary calculated with reference to applicable regulatory requirements, and (iii)
maximum capital expenditures, in each case as more specifically provided in the New Credit Agreement. The New
Credit Agreement also contains customary events of default as well as restrictions on undertaking certain specified
corporate actions including, among others, asset dispositions, acquisitions and other investments, dividends and
stock repurchases, changes in.control, issuance of capital stock, fundamental corporate changes such as mergers and
consolidations, incurrence of additional indebtedness, creation of liens, transactions with affiliates, and certain
subsidiary regulatory restrictions. If an event of default occurs that is not otherwise waived or cured, the lenders may
terminate their obligations to make loans and other extensions of credit under the New Credit Agreement and the
obligations of the issuing banks to issue letters of credit and may declare the loans outstanding under the New Credit
Agreement to be due and payable. The company believes it is currently in compliance with its financial and other
covenants under the New Credit Agreement,

.o .

In connection with entering into the New Credit Agreement, the company incurred deferred financing costs of

approximately $10.6 million.
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On April 21, 2006, HealthSpring and certain of its non-HMO subsidiaries as guarantors entered into a revolving
credit facility, which provided up to a maximum aggregate principal amount outstanding of $75.0 million. The
company terminated this facility on October 1, 2007, in connection with the acquisition of LMC Health Plans and
entered into the New Credit Agreement. As a result, the company recognized a charge in the 2007 fourth quarter of
$0.7 million from the write-off of unamortized debt issuance cost associated with the terminated credit facility.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
At December 31, 2007, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangement requiring disclosure.
Commitments and Contingencies

The following table sets forth information regarding our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2007:

Payments due by period:
(in thousands)

Less than 1tod JtnS More than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 vear years years 5 vears
Credit agreement: Term loans .......ccccceccvcveneee. $296.250 § 18,750 § 63,750 $213.750 § —
Interest {1} ..o 81,121 22,637 38,928 19,556 —
Revolving credit agreement (2) 2,375 500 1,000 875 —
Medical claims.......ocooceevevivieveeenns 154,510 154,510 — — —
Operating lease obligations.............. 33,658 5,739 12,378 6,642 8.899
Other contractual obligations........... 4,812 3.11] 1,354 347 —
TOAE .t $ 572,726 $205247 §_ 117410 $241,170 § __ 8,899
(1) Interest includes the estimated interest payments under our credit facility assuming no change in the LIBOR rate

as of December 31, 2007.

(2) Amounts represent the annual commitment fee for the company’s credit revolving agreement.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements requires our management to make a number of
estimates and assumptions relating 1o the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the period. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
we believe are reasonable under the circumstances, Changes in estimates are recorded if and when better
information becomes available. Actual results could significantly differ from those'estimates under different
assumptions and conditions. We believe that the accounting policies discussed below are those that are most
important to the presentation of our financial condition and results of operations and that require our management’s
most difficult, subjective, and complex judgments.

Medical Expense and Medical Claims Liability

Medical expense is recognized in the period in which services are provided and includes an estimate of the cost
of medical expense that has been incurred but not yet reported, or IBNR. Medical expense includes claim payments,
capitation payments, and pharmacy costs, net of rebates, as well as estimates of future payments of claims incurred,
net of reinsurance, Capitation payments represent monthly contractual fees disbursed to physicians and other
providers whe are responsible for providing medical care to members. Pharmacy costs represent payments for
members’ prescription drug benefits, net of rebates from drug manufacturers. Rebates are recognized when earned,
according to the contractual arrangements with the respective vendors. Premiums we pay o reinsurers are reported
as medical expenses and related reinsurance recoveries are reported as deductions from medical expenses.

Medical claims liability includes medical claims reported to the plans but not vet paid as well as an actuarially
determined estimate of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the plans.
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The following table presents the components of our medical claims liability as of the dates indicated:

December 31,

2007 2006
(in thousands)
Incurred but not reported (IBNR} ... s $ 97237 % 85731
Reported claims......... SO O VOO OO O OTRRR 57,273 37.047
Total medical claims Hability .o v e ses s et am s 5 154,510 3122778

The IBNR component-of total medical claims liability is based on our historical claims data, current entollment,
health service urtilization statistics, and other related information. Estimating IBNR is complex and involves a
significant amount of judgment. Accordingly, it represents our most critical accounting estimate. Changes in this
estimate can materially affect, either favorably or unfavorably, our consolidated operating results and overall
financial position.

Qur policy is to record each plan’s best estimate of medical expense IBNR. Using actuarial models, we calculate
a minimum amount and maximum amount of the IBNR component. To most accurately determine the best estimate,
our actuaries determine the point estimate within their minimum and maximum range by similar medical expense
categories within lines of business. The medical expense categories we use are: in-patient facility, outpatient facility,
all professional expense, and pharmacy. The lines of business are Medicare and commercial. The development of
the IBNR estimate generally considers favorable and unfavorable prior period developments and uses standard
actuarial developmental methodologies, including completion factors, claims trends, and provisions for adverse
claims developments.

Completion factors estimate liabilities for claims based upon the historical lag between the month when services
are rendered and the month claims are paid and takes into consideration factors such as expected medical cost
inflation, seasonality patterns, product mix, and membership changes. The completion factor is a measure of how
complete the claims paid to date are refative to the estimate of the 1otal claims for services rendered for a given
reporting period. Although the completion factor is generally reliable for older service periods, it is more volatile,
and hence less reliable, for more recent periods given that the typical bitling lag for services can range from a week
to as much as 90 days from the date of service.

Our use of claims trend factors considers many aspects of the managed care business. These considerations are
aggregated in the medical expense trend and include the incidences of illness or disease state. Accordingly, we rely
upon our historical experience, as continually monitored, to reflect the ever-changing mix, needs, and growth of our
members by type in our trend assumptions. Among the factors considered by management are changes in the level
of benefits provided to members, seasonal variations in utilization, identified industry trends, and changes in
provider reimbursement arrangements, including changes in the percentage of reimbursements made on a capitated
as opposed to a fee-for-service basis. Other external factors such as government-mandated benefits or other
regulatory changes, catastrophes, and epidemics may impact medical expense trends. Other internal factors, such as
system conversions and claims processing interruptions may impact our ability to accurately predict estimates of
historical completion factors or medical expense trends. Medical expense trends potentially are more volatile than
other segments of the economy.

We apply different estimation methods depending on the month of service for which incurred claims are being
estimated. For the more recent months, which constitute the majority of the amount of IBNR, we estimate our claims
incurred by applying the observed trend factors to the trailing twetve-month PMPM costs. For prior months, costs
have been estimated using completion factors, In order Lo estimate the PMPMs for the most recent months, we
validate our estimates of the most recent months’ utilization levels to the utilization levels in older months using
actuarial techniques that incorporate a historical analysis of claim payments, including trends in cost of care
provided, and timeliness of submission and processing of claims.

We also recognize in our medical claims liability a provision for adverse claims development, which is intended
to account for variability in claims payment patterns, historical trends, and environmental factors. We believe that
our provision for adverse claims development is appropriate because our hindsight analysis indicates this additional
provision is needed to cover additional unknown adverse claims not anticipated by the standard assumptions used to
produce the [BNR estimates that were incurred prior to but paid after a period end.
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Our provision for adverse claims development as of the last three year ends has been relatively consistent,
Primarily as a result of the growth and stabilizing trends experienced in our Medicare business, continued favorable
development of prior period IBNR estimates, and the continued decline in our commercial line of business, the
provision for adverse claims development has become a relatively insignificant component of medical claims
liability. '

The completion and claims trend factors are the most significant factors impacting the IBNR estimate, The
following table illustrates the sensitivity of these factors and the impact on our operating results caused by changes
in these factors that management believes are reasonably likely based on our historical experience and December 31,
2007 data:

Completion Factor{a} Claims Trend Factor{b)

Increase Inerease

Increase (Decrease) Increase {Decrease)

(Decrease) in Medical (Decrease) in Medical

in Factor Claims Liability in Factor Claims Liability
{doltars in thousands)

3% $ (3.807) 3% $ (2,054)
2 (2,567) 2) (1,368)
1 (1,298) 1)) (683)

(1) 1,329 ! 681

(a) Impact due to change in completion factor for the most recent three months. Completion factors indicate how
complete claims paid to date are in relation to estimates for a given repoerting period. Accordingly, an increase in
completion factor results in a decrease in the remaining estimated liability for medical claims.

{b) Impact due 10 change in annualized medical cost trends used to estimate PMPM costs for the most recent three
months. :

Each month, we re-examine the previously established medical claims liability estimates based on actual claim
submissions and other relevant changes in facts and circumstances, As the liability estimates recorded in prior
periods become more exact, we increase or decrease the amount of the estimates, and include the changes in medical
expenses in the period in which the change is identified. In every annual reporting period, our operating results
include the effects of more completely developed medical claims liability estimates associated with prior years.

The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in medical claims liability for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Year ended December 31,

{in thousands) 2007 2006
Balance at beginning of Periog ..o $ 122,778 § 82,645
Acquisition of LMC Health PIans ..o cteee s essevensanesens 16,588 —
Incurred related to:
CUITENE PETIOU o eeeeee ittt e e e s s st et et ras s eee e e s nee s neeaan 1,245,271 1,017,100
PRIOE PEIO .ottt e e bbbt et (19,278) (8,574)
Total INCULTEd........c.cccirir ittt e e e s et e 1,225,993 1,008,526
Paid related to:
CULTENE PETIOU. oo ettt e s st ves s e s b e et e et easnannns 1,108,949 - 894,684
PRIOT PEIIO ... eoeieciestieirs ettt e ettt st et bttt _101.900 73.709
TOLAL PAI . oeeeer et st s sn st st e see e et s tes 1,210,849 968,393
Balance at the end 0f the PEriod ......c.oveveiiceeicerir e s re e s 3 154510 § 122778

The negative amounts reported in the table above for incurred related to prior periods result from claims being
ultimately settled for amounts less than originally estimated (a favorable development). A positive amount reperted
for incurred related to prior periods would result from claims ultimately being settled for amounts greater than
originally estimated (an unfaverable development). For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, actual claims
expense developed favorably by 1.9% and 1.3%, respectively, as compared to estimated medical claims expense.
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The favorable overall claims development experienced in 2007 includes favorable commercial claims lLiability .
development of $3:3 million. Our commercial HMO membership declined frem 31,970 members at December 31,
2006 to 11,801 members at December 31, 2007, or by 63,1%, primarily as a result of the non-renewal by employers
in Tennessee and Alabama. Commercial medical claims payable decreased from $11.7 million at December 31,
2006 to $3.4 million at December 31, 2007.

Our medical claims liability also considers premium deficiency situations and evaluates the necessity for
additional related liabilities. Premium deficiency accruals were $-0- and approximately $0.7 million as of December
31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. :

Premium Revenue Recognition

We generate revenues primarily from premiums we receive from CMS, and to a lesser extent our commercial
customers, to provide healthcare benefits to our members. We receive premium payments on a PMPM basis from
CMS to provide healthcare benefits to our Medicare members, which premiums are fixed on an annual basis by
contracts with CMS. Although the amount we receive from CMS for each member is fixed, the amount varies
among Medicare plans according to, among other things, demographics, geographic location, age, gender, and the
relative risk score of the plan’s membership.

We generally receive premiums on a monthly basis in advance of providing services. Premiums collected in
advance are deferred and reported as deferred revenue. We recognize premium revenue during the period in which
we are obligated to provide services to our members. Any amounts that have not been received are recorded on the
balance sheet as accounts receivable.

Our Medicare premium revenue is subject to adjustment based on the health risk of our members under what is
referred to as CMS’s risk adjustment payment methodology. Risk adjustment uses health status indicators to
improve the accuracy of payments and establish incentives for ptans to enrell and treat less healthy Medicare
beneficiaries. CMS initially phased in this payment methodology in 2003 whereby the risk adjusted payment
represented 10% of the payment to Medicare health plans, with the remaining 90% being based on demographic
factors. In 2007, the portion of risk adjusted payments was increased to 100%. The PDP payment methodology is
based 100% on the risk adjustment model.

Under the risk adjustment payment methodology, managed care plans must capture, collect, and report diagnosis
code information to CMS. After reviewing the respective submissions, CMS establishes the payments to Medicare
plans generally at the beginning of the calendar year, and then adjusts premium levels on two separate occasions on
a retroactive basis. The first retroactive risk premium adjustment for a given fiscal year generally occurs during the
third quarter of such fiscal year. This initial settlement (the “Initial CMS Settlement™) represents the updating of risk
scores for the current year based on the prior year’s dates of service. CMS then issues a final retroactive risk
premium adjustment settlement for the fiscal year in the following year (the “Final CM$ Settlement”). Prior to 2007,
we were unable to estimate the impact of either of these risk adjustment settlements, and as such recorded them
upon notification from CMS of such amounts. [n the first quarter of 2007, we began estimating and recording on a
monthly basis the Initial CMS Settlement, as we concluded we had the ability to reasonably estimate such amounts.
Similarly in the fourth quarter of 2007, we estimated and recorded the Final CMS Settlement for 2007, as we
concluded such amounts were reasonably estimable. The Final CMS Settlement for 2006 was recorded during the
third quarter of 2007 when received from CMS. Premium revenue for 2007 includes both Final CMS Settlements for
2007 and 2006. As of January 2008, we will estimate and record on a monthly basis both the Initial CMS Settlement
and the Final CMS Settlement far the 2008 CMS plan year. All such estimated amounts are periodically updated as
necessary as additional diagnosis code information is reported to CMS and adjusted to actual amounts when the
ultimate adjustment settlements are either received from CMS or the company receives notification from CMS of
such settlement amounts.

Long Lived Assets
Long lived assets, such as property and equipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset

may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. [ the carrying
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amount of an asset exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount of the excess.
Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs 1o sell, and no longer depreciated.

Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives. We
determine the useful life and amortization method for definite-life intangible assets based on the guidance in FASB
Staterment No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. For all periods through the quarter ended September
30, 2007, the straight-line method of amortization was applied for Medicare member network intangible asset
associated with our 2005 recapitalization (the “recapitalization asset™), as a better pattern could not be reliably
determined based on available information. Effective October 1, 2007, we began applying a 17-year accelerated
method of amortization for this asset. Since the date of acquiring the member network asset in 2003, we have
tracked actual attrition rates experienced within the member network and believe that there is now adequate
historical data to make reliable estimates regarding future attrition rates for amortization purposes. Based on our
review of historical attrition rates, we believe the accelerated method of amortization over the revised estimated life
better approximates the distribution of economic benefits realized from the recapitalization asset. The use of an
accelerated method prior to September 30, 2007 would have resulted in the recognition of amortization expense that
1s not materially different from the amounts recognized under the straight-line method used by us during the same
periods. We will continue to monitor our actual attrition rates realized in future periods and adjust amortization
schedules accordingly. Similarly, we are using a 20-year accelerated method of amortization for the Medicare
member network intangible acquired as part of the acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. on
October 1, 2007.

Our accounting for this change related to the recapitalization asset resulted in incremental amortization expense
of $0.3 million during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 over the amount of expense recognized vsing the
straight-line method in prior quarters of 2007 and did not have a material effect on our reported income before
income taxes, net income, or net income per share for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2007. As a result of
the change related to the recapitalization asset, we expect amortization expense for the year ended December 31,
2008 to increase approximately $0.6 million over the amount recognized in the year ended December 31, 2007,

Goodwill and Indefinite-Life Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over [air value of assets of businesses acquired, Goodwill and intangible
assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not
amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annuatly. We have selected December 31 as our annual
testing date.

An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. This
determination ts made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps. First, we determine the fair value of the
reporting unit and compare it to its carrying amount. Second, if the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its
fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the unit’s goodwill over the
implied fair value of that goodwill, The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating the fair value of
the reporting units in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation, in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations.” The residual fair value after this allocation is the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill.
We have four reporting units, in Alabama, Florida, Tennessee and Texas. We conducted an annual impairment test
as of December 31, 2007 and concluded that the carrying value of the reporting units did not exceed their fair value.

Accounting for Income Taxes

We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method. deferred income taxes
reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities {for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes and net operating loss and tax credit carry
forwards, The amount of deferred taxes on these temporary differences is determined using the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, as applicable, based on tax rates
and laws in the respective tax jurisdiction enacted as of the balance sheet date.
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We review our deferred tax assets for recoverability and establish a valuation allowance based on historical
taxable income, projected future taxable income, applicable 1ax strategies, and the expected timing of the reversals
of existing temporary differences. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

We account for uncertain tax positions in accordance with FASB Interpretation No. 48 “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). Accordingly, we report a
liability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. We recognize interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

We also have accruals for taxes and associated interest that may become payable in future years as a result of
audits by tax authorities. We accrue for tax contingencies when it is more likely than not that a liability to a taxing
authority has been incurred and the amount of the contingency can be reasonably estimated. Although we believe
that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are reasonable, we nevertheless have established tax and
interest reserves in recognition that various taxing authorities may challenge the positions taken by us resulting in
additional liabilities for taxes and interest. These amounts are reviewed as citcumstances warrant and adjusted as
events occur that affect our potential liability for additional taxes, such as lapsing of applicable statutes of
limitations, conclusion of tax audits, additional exposure based on current calculations, identification of new issues,
release of administrative guidance, or rendering of a court decision affecting a particular tax issue.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands
disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting pronouncements that
require ot permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting
pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this Statement does not require
any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007.
SFAS No. 157 is effective for us beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2008. We do not expect the adoption of
SFAS 157 to have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations. However, on
December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FSP FAS 157-b which would delay the effective date of SFAS 157
for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in
the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). This proposed FSP partially defers the effective date
of Statement 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 13, 2008, and interim periods within those fiscal years
for items within the scope of this FSP. Effective for fiscal 2008, we will adopt SFAS 157 except as it applies to
those nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities as noted in proposed FSP FAS 157-b. The partial adoption of
SFAS 157 will not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to measure at fair value many financial instruments and certain
other items that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. Subsequent changes in fair value for
designated items will be required to be reported in eamnings in the current period. SFAS No. 159 also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements for similar types of assets and liabilities measured at fair value. SFAS No.
159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No.

159 will have an impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007) (“SFAS 141R”), “Business Combinations”
and SFAS No. 160 (“SFAS 160™), “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51", SFAS 141R will change how business acquisitions are accounted for and
will impact financial statements both on the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. SFAS 160 will change the
accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and
classified as a component of equity. SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 are effective for us beginning in the first quarter of
fiscal 2010. Early adoption is not permitted. We are curremly evaluating the impact that SFAS 141R and SFAS 160
will have on our consolidated financial statements.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had the following assets that may be sensitive to changes in interest
" rates: '

December 31,
Asset Class 2007 2006
(in thousands)

Investment securities, available for sale:

Current portion .........iccceveeceeene.. ettt eene e teeaseeansieteeasterrtesreenarrensnrentesanteesateetnesasranseareians § 24746 § 7,874
INON-CUITEIE POTHION «.eveeveiteceecir e erresssrssasssessrsserresssssssssnsassessssessistossssomssmseamesmsensseeeseeeereatssses 39,905 —
Investment securities, held to maturity:

Current portion .......cceeceevecererenns e Eeeeieeeeistesiesseeseeeteeetaeiesrettrt nreeanrettebetaentaesentsbtessennrreiae 16,594 10,566
Non-current portion ... . 10,105 19,560
Restricted investments 10,095 7,195

We have not purchased any of our investments for trading purposes. Qur investment securities classified as
available for sale consist primarily of highly liquid government and corporate debt securities. For all other
investment securities, we intend to hold them to their maturity and classify them as current on our batance sheet if
they mature between three and 12 months from the balance sheet date and as long-term if their maturity is more than
one year from the balance sheet date. These investment securities, both current and long-term, consist of highly
liquid government and corporate debt obligations, the majority of which mature in five years or less. The
investments are subject to interest rate risk and will decrease in value if market rates increase. Because of the
relatively short-term nature of our investments and our portfolio mix of variable and fixed rate investments,
however, we would not expect the value of these investments to decline significantly as a result of a sudden change
in market interest rates. Moreover, because of our ability and intent to hold these investments until maturity, we
would not expect foreseeable changes in interest rates to materially impair their carrying value. Restricted
investments consist of certificates of deposit, money market fund investment and government securities deposited or
pledged to state departments of insurance in accordance with state rules and regulations. At December 31, 2007 and
December 31, 20006, these restricted assets are recorded at amortized cost and classified as long-term regardless of
the contractual maturity date because of the restrictive nature of the states’ requirements.

Assuming a hypothetical and immediate 1% increase in market interest rates at December 31, 2007, the fair
value of our fixed income investments would decrease by approximately $759,000. Similarly, a 1% decrease in
market interest rates at December 31, 2007 would result in an increase of the fair value of our investments of
approximately $759,000. Unless we determined, however, that the increase in interest rates caused more than a
temporary impairment in our investments, or unless we were compelled by a currently unforeseen reason to sell
securities, such a change should not affect our future earnings or cash flows.

We are subject to market risk from exposure to changes in interest rates based on our financing, investing, and
cash management activities. We have in place $400.0 million of senior secured credit facilities bearing interest at
variable rates at specified margins above either the agent bank’s alternate base rate or its LIBOR rate. The senior
secured credit facilities consist of the term facility, which is a $300.0 million, five-year term loan, and the revolving
facility, which is a $100.0 million, five-year revolving credit facility. Although changes in the altemnate base rate of
the LIBOR rate would affect the costs of funds borrowed in the future, we believe the effect, if any, of reasonably .
possible near-term changes in interest rates on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow
would not be material. As of December 31, 2007, we had variable rate debt of approximately $296.3 million.
Helding other variables constant, including levels of indebtedness, a 0.125% increase in interest rates would have an
estimated irnpact on pre-tax earning and cash flows for the next twelve month peried of $370,000. We have not
taken any action to cover interest rate risk and are not a party to any interest rate market risk management activities.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
HealthSpring, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HealthSpring, Inc. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended and for the ten-month period from March
1, 2005 (inception} to December 31, 2005; and the consolidated statements of income, members’ equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows of NewQuest, LLC and subsidiaries (Predecessor) for the two months ended
February 28, 2005. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we have also audited the
financial statement Schedule | — Condensedi Financial Information of HealthSpring, Inc. (Parent only). These
consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Qversight Board
{(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the years then ended and for the ten-month period from March 1, 2005 through December 31, 2005; and
the results of operations and cash flows of the Predecessor for the two months ended February 28, 2008, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the refated financial statement
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly,
in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of
accounting for share-based payments.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), HealthSpring, [nc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COS0), and our report dated February 27, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal contro! over financial reporting.

(signed) KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 27, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
HealthSpring, Inc.:

We have audited HealthSpring, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Imternal Control — Iitegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in
the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (Part 11, Item 9A). Our
responsibility is to express an epinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal contro! over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit
also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for externat purposes in accordance with
generatly accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, HealthSpring, [nc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in /nternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

HealthSpring, Inc. acquired Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. on October 1, 2007. Management excluded from
its assessment of the effectiveness of HealthSpring Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total assets of
$451.8 million and total revenues of $83.8 million included in the consolidated financial statements of HealthSpring,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Our audit of internal control over financial
reporting of HealthSpring, Inc. also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of Leon
Medical Centers Heaith Plans, Inc,

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated balance sheets of HealthSpring, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 20606, and
the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the
years then ended and for the ten-menth period from March 1, 2003 (inception) to December 31, 2005; and the
consolidated statements of income, members’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows of NewQuest, LLC
and subsidiaries for the two months ended February 28, 2005, and our report dated February 27, 2008 expressed an
ungualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

{signed) KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 27, 2008
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

December 31, December 31,

2007 2006
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equIValENTS ..o e s $ 324090 § 338,443
ACCoUNtS receivable, NEL ... es e ar e aessra s rne s rnens 59,027 17,588
Investment securities available for SAle ..o oo 24,746 7.874
Investment securities held t0 MAIIEY oo 16,594 10,566
Deferred INCOME 1AX @SSCE....vvvieeereceeeieseieieeeesestasessse s s s resesiannsssasserasnsssssasenssnsensann 2,295 3,644
Prepaid expenses and other a5Sets ......ceccienieniniiioiiie e 4,913 4,047
Total current assets .. 431,665 382.162
Investment securities avaJIable for sale 39,905 —
Investment securities held to maturity ... 10,105 19,560
Property and equipMment, NEl. ...t 24,116 8,831
GOOAWIIL..oeei ettt ces s oo e mrasse s ber e e s esteser s eaa s resssrns pene s anbrsssarrabessesasans 588,001 341,619
INEANEIDLE ASSELS, TIEL. .. crrecrierirrssareseereeses e e seeeessst e st e e e st e e een s et eneeaes ameebamsrbaren 235,893 81,175
ReESUICIEd IMVESLIMENIES ....eeeveieeeeeee s eereaeaies e s ras s ta st stsseassstaboatbenssenmsensnsonbassesonsmennan 10,095 7.195
L0 11 1T OO UOO R SSOOPUOS s T OSUR TR 11,293 2,103
T Ol ASSEES. .. veeurreieiesiririeass s e ee s eeemee e e e e ae s aes aersrrasrssesresabsasatsnsassrasnssasrnseran § 1,351,073 § 842645
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Medical claims liability.... e e e vseeneerssrontenseresteseenneneene B 134,510 § 122,778
Accounts payable, accrued expenses ‘and olher ........................................................ 27,489 26,048
Funds held for the benefit of members .. 82,231 62,125
Risk corridor payable to CMS 22,363 27,587
Current portion of [0ng-term debl.......ccco et e 18,750 —
Total CUITent HABIIIES ..oocviiee it as e e sss s e tssoas s taees 305,343 238,538
Long-term debt, €55 CUITENT POMION......coocrvrerieierracrecersaeire s seersmesesasssrstasenssrssasensrasnne 277,500 —
Deferred income tax Hability .o 90,552 28,444
Other long-term labilities . ......cooreiiireie et sesest et st 6,323 381
Total HabILIES (..ocvevvicverci et s e e s be e e rae e r e rae e e e e e 679,718 267,363
Commitments and contingencies (see notes)
Stockhelders’ equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value, 180,000,000 shares authorized, 57,617,335 issued
and 57,293,242 outstanding at December 31, 2007, and 57,527,549 shares
issued and 57,261,157 shares outstandmg at December 31, 2006........c.covevvenne 576 575
Additional paid-in capllal . e e 494,626 485,002
Retained earnings... 176,218 89,758
Treasury stock, at cost 324 093 shares at December 3! 2007 and 266 392 shares
at December 31, 2000 ...o....ovviivoieecee ettt e et ee et st (63) _(53)
Total stockhoiders EOUILY oot en b s s a s s bbb s 671,355 575,282
Total liabilities and stockholders’ eqUILY .....ovvvvivrnerienirir e s § 1,351,073 § 842,645

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDMARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except share and unit data) °

Predecessor
Ten-Month Two-Month
Year Ended Year Ended Period Ended Period Ended
December 31,2007  December 31,2006  December 31, 2005 Febroary 28, 2005
Revenue:
Premium:
MEQICANe ... s $ 1,479,576 $ 1,149,844 § 6109131 § 94,764
Commercial ........ooovreivreciieeeeerer e 46,648 120,504 106,168 20,704
Total premitum revenue ... oo 1,526,224 1,270,348 717,081 115,468
Management and other fees .........oeirrnnisenins 24,601 26,688 16,955 3,461
INVESMENT INCOME....c.vvvecciresnsersrerisasrnenssessenias 23,943 11,920 3,337 461
TOtal FEVENUE .cvveverrrererrnsnsassrereesemrnssassionene 1,574,768 1,308,956 737,373 119,390
Operating expenses:
Medical expense:
MEQICAIE ..o eennes 1,187,331 900,358 478,553 74,531
ConmErcial ......coouvernerirerrssnrressrerrrssesrorosnas 38,662 108,168 90,783 16312
Total medical Xpense......oovviriescsccnnacn 1,225,993 1,008,526 569,336 90,843
Selling, general and administrative........c.......... 186,154 156,940 101,187 21,608
Depreciation and amottization.......c.ccccccrerenes 16,220 10,154 6,990 315
Impairment of intangible assets...... 4,537 — - —
INterest EXPense ....coovirvreasesiiniissrmsssss e 7,466 8.695 14.469 42
Total operating eXpenses..........ccoeeeeerrrerecens 1.440,370 1,184,315 691,982 112,808
Income before equity in earnings of
unconsolidated affiliate, minority interest and
ITICOIMIE LAXES 1vvvvvirrraerrrrremrmraessrrssnsmsmnemseeseasseeranns 134,398 124,641 45,391 6,582
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliate....... 357 309 282 —
Income before minority interest and income taxes ..... 134,755 124,950 45,673 6.582
MINOCIY INEIEST .oeevirirrerereers e resee e rrennnes — (303) (1.979 (1.248)
[ncome before INCOME taXES ..vvvvirieceeeecrinieecean 134,755 124,647 43,694 5,334
INCOME tAX EXPENSE ...vrvieeememeeeiieeecrmeereese e nereenes {48.295) {43.811) {17,144) (2,628)
NEtINCOME...c.oiiveeiesinrceraiseasesseesrenssesrarressesrranes 86,460 80,836 26,550 2,706
Preferred dividends........ccoevrivecrimeeceecrecicinrenans — (2,021) (15,607) —
Net income available to common stockholders
and MEMDETS .....ccovv e rnsseseeseresenens ] g§6460 $ 78815 % 10943 | $ 2,706
Net income per common share available to
common stockholders: :
BASIC vt b b $ 0,34 —
Diluted ....cooviercericrceencn e rennss e rernaens b $ b 0.14 —
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
. . 32,173,701 .
— 32215288 —
— | E— .35
— 0§ .55
Weighted average member units outstanding:
BaSIC ... e eccrre st s — —_ — | 4,884,196
Diluted.....ooeeeee s — — — 4,884,196

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements,
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Successor
Balances at March |,
2005 (inception).......
Preferred shares
issued... "
Preferrcd d:wdends
accrued ..
Common shares
issued............
Issuance of restrlcled
shares...
Purchase of 200
shares of restricted
common stock..........
Share-based
compensation ...........
Comprehensive

income — net

income...........
Balances at December

31,2005 e

Preferred dividends
acerued....vciienens
Preferred Shares
converted to
common shares ........
Minonty interest
converted to
common shares ........
Common shares
issued at [PQ, net.....
Restricted shares
L1 DO
Stock-op:ion
exercises.. .
Purchase of 66 shares
of restricted common

Share-based
compensation
expense... .

ReclaSSLﬁcatlon of
unearned
compensation upon
adoption of SFAS
No. 123R..coovreene.

Comprehensive
income — net
income...........

Balances at December
31, 2006...

Restricted shares
issued.....ccoovereenne

Slock-oplion
exercises.,

Purchase of 58 sharcs
of restricted common

Share-based
compensation
EXPENSE...coereceerearenn

Comprehensive
income — net
income.. .

Balances nt December
3L, 2007...

HEALTHSPRING, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in thousands)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Number of Number of Additional Total
Preferred  Preferred Common  Common Paid-in Unearned Retained Treasury  Stockholders®
Shares Stock Shares Stock Capital  Compensaiion Earnings Stock Equity
-5 — — 5 —3 —3 — 5 — — —
227 2 — — 227,198 — -— -— 227.200
— — —— —_ 15,607 — (15,607) — —
— 30,445 304 5,785 —_ — — 6,089
— — 1,839 18 2,888 (2,538) — — 368
—_ _ — — (276) 276 — (40) 40)
— — — — —_ 377 — — 377
— — — — — — 26,550 — 26,550
227 2 32,284 322 251,202 (1,885) 10,943 (40) 260,544
— _ — — 2,02t — (2,021) - -
(227) (2) 12,553 126 (124) —_ — — —
— — 2,040 21 39,763 — —_ —_ 39,784
— — 10,600 106 188,333 — — — 188,439
— _— 45 — _— - — — —_
— — 5 —_ 12 — — — 12
— -— — — — — — (13) (13)
—_ —_ - — 5,680 — — — 5,680
— —_ —_ — (1,885) 1,885 _— — —
— — — — - 80,836 — 80,836
— —_ 57,527 575 485,002 —_ 89,758 (53 575,282
— — 27 — _ — — — —
— — 63 1 1,022 — — — 1,023
— - — — —_ — — (12) (12)
_ — — — 8,602 —_ — — 8,602
—_ — — — o 86,460 — 86,460
- 5 - 51617 § 576 494626 §.__  — 5176218 § (63} §_671,355



HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS®' AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY

AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont.)
(in thousands)

Nuntber of
Founders and Founders and Total
Membership Members' Retained  Members’
Units Units Earnings Equity
Predecessor
Balances at December 31, 2004.........ccooeireiecmeeeeceeeeeeer e $ 4,884 $ 31,787 $ 23,648 § 55,435
Comprehensive income:
INEL IMCOME. . .cvirreivvrieeesreesiee e eesteerneesereeernreseearararssanesnsesnne — — 2,706 2,706
Total comprehensive INCOME ..o 2,706
Balances at February 28, 2005.......co i $ 4,884 § 31,787 $. 26354 § 5814]

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC! AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash from operating activities:
Net income . .
Adjustments 10 reconcile net income m net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
expense...
Impairment of'mtanglble assets o “
Amortization of accrued loss on assurned Iease
Amortization of deferred financing cost ...............
Paid-in-kind {PIK) interest on subordinated notes
Share-based compensauon
Equity in eamings of uncnnsohdatcd afﬁliate
Minority interest..
Write-oft ofdeferred ﬁnancmg fee
Deferred tax (benefit) expense ..
Increase (decrease) in cash equwa]enls
(excluswe of acquisitions} due to:
Accounts receivable...
Prepaid expenses and other current assets .......
Medical clatms liability ...
Accounts payable, accrued expcnses and
other current liabilities...
Risk corridor payable to CMS
Deferred revenue.. .
Other long-term habllmes e
Net cash provided by operalmg acuvmes

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment........ccuiiinnn
Purchase of investment securities .....
Maturity of investment securities ...
Purchase of restricted investments..
Distributions received from unconsohdated affiliate
Purchase of minority interest .....
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired...., .
Net cash used in investing activities............

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt........oveernr.
Payments on long-term debt..................
Deferred fi nancmg costs .. -
Proceeds from issuance of common and pret"erred
stock ... .
Purchase of Lreasury slock o
Excess tax benefit from stock optlon exemsed
Proceeds from stock options exercised...
Funds received for the benefit of members...
Funds withdrawn for the benefit of members.. -
Funds received for the benefit of members, net,.......
Proceeds from sale of units in consolidated
subsidiary ..., .
Distributions 10 mlnorlty stockh()]ders .
Cash advanced in recapitalization.........c.coueeveevrennas
Net cash prowded by (used in) fi nancing
activities............ "
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents...
Cash and cash equivalents at begmmng of penod
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period...

Ten-Month

(Predecessor)
Two-Month

Year Ended Year Ended Period Ended Period Ended
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 31,2005 February 28, 2005
$ 86460 § 80836 § 26,550 | $ 2,706

16,220 10,154 6,990 315
4,537 — — —
— _— — o7

752 242, 879 —

—_ 116 901 —
8,600 5,650 377 —
(357) (309) (282) —

— 303 1,979 1,248

651 5,375 — —
(2,554) 796 (1.060) 93
{41,428) {10,340) 9,827 (2,470)
(513) (899) {4,725) 1,240
15,144 40,133 23,629 5,829
(6,948) 8,214 {7,460) 6,202
(8,755) 27,587 — —
(62) (301) (131 (M3

1,005 64 (335) 11
72,752 167,621 57,139 14,964
(15,886) (7.063) (2,653) (149)
(83,966) . (10,368) (16,313) (5,942)
30,616 18,283 12,524 836
2,517 (1,543) (119 (214)
357 355 — —

- — (44,358) —
(317,799} — (219,958) —
{389,195} (336) (270.877) (5,469)
300,000 — 200,000 —
(3,750) (188,642) (17,733) (i)
{10,610) (932) (6.366) —_

— 188,493 140,087

(12) (13) 40y —

2 30 — —

1,023 12 — —_
336,472 — —_
(321,035) — — —
— 62,125 — —_

— — 7.875 —
—_ — — (L771)

— — — 1,000
302,090 61,073 323,823 (888)
(14,353) 228,358 119,085 8,607
338,443 110,085 — : 67.834
b 324090 % 338443 % 110,085 | & 76,441

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (cont.)
(in thousands)

Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest...
Cash paid for taxes.. .
Capitalized tenant lmpm\emem allowanccs and deferred rent.......
Non-cash transaction:
Issuance of common shares in exchange for minority shares
Issuance of common shares in conjunction with
recapitalization.... L
Unearned cornpensauon related 10 issuance of rEstncted
cornmon stock ...
Effect of acquisitions;

Cash purchase price ...
Preferred s10ck iSSUB.....ovivivirvarvivairimsee s e s
Common Stock iSsUed ...
Purchase of minority interest
Capitalized transaction costS........n
Cash acquired.... rerr et
Acquisition, net of cash acqum:d

Predecessor
Ten-Month Two-Month
Year Ended Yesr Ended Period Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, February 28,
2007 2006 2005 2005
L) 4,235 3,504 11,229 42
$ 48,797 37,686 19,477 279
$ 3,839 — — —
- 3 39,784 — —
— — $ 93,877 _
— — $ 2,262 —

$  (355,000)

(2,947)
40,148
§_(317.799)

$  (427,986)
91,082

2,442

44,358
(5.295)

75441
3 (219.958)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and unit data)

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Description of Business and Basis of Presentation

HealthSpring, Inc, a Delaware corporation (the “Company™), was organized in October 2004 and began
operations in March 2005 in connection with a recapitalization transaction accounted for as a purchase. The
Company is a managed care organization that focuses primarily on Medicare, the federal government sponsored
health insurance program for U.S. citizens aged 65 and older, qualifying disabled persons, and persons suffering
from end-stage renal disease. Through its health maintenance organization (“HMO™) subsidiaries, the Company
operates Medicare Advantage health plans in the states of Alabama, Florida, Illinois, Mississippi, Tennessee and
Texas and offers Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to persons in all 50 states. In addition, the Company uses
its infrastructure and provider networks in Tennessee and Alabama to offer commercial health plans to employer
groups. The Company also provides management services to healthcare plans and physician partnerships.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of HealthSpring, Inc. and its wholly and majority
owned subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, for the
ten-month period from March 1, 2005 (inception) to December 31, 2005, and NewQuest, LLC and subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Predecessor”}, for the two-month period ended February 28, 2005. The financial statements of
HealthSpring, Inc. and the Predecessor are presented in comparative format. Although their accounting policies are
consistent, their financial statements are not directly comparable primarily because of the purchase accounting
adjustments resulting from a recapitalization transaction, which was accounted for as a purchase. All significant
inter-company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. For purposes of these financial
statements and notes, where appropriate the term “Company” includes HealthSpring, Inc. and Predecessor. The
Company considers its businesses and related operating structure as one reporting segment.

On February 8, 2006, the Company completed an underwritten initial public offering of its common stock. See
Note 9.

(b)) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management of the Company 10 make a
number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amount of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the period. The most significant item subject to estimates and assumptions is the
actuarial calculation for liabilities related to medical claims. Other significant items subject to estimates and
assumptions include our estimated risk adjustment payments receivable from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid
Services {“CMS™), the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets, the useful lives of definite—life intangible assets,

and certain amounts recorded related to the Part D program. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(c) Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments ~

that have maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include
such items as certificates of deposit, commercial paper, and money market funds.

(d) Investment Securities and Restricted Investments
The Company classifies its debt and equity securities in three categories: trading, available for sale, or held to
maturity. Trading securities are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the ncar term. Held-

to-maturity securities are those securities in which the Company has the ability and intent to hold the security until
maturity. All securities not included in trading or held to maturity are classified as available for sale.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and unit data)

Trading securities are recorded at fair value. Available-for-sale securities are recorded at amortized cost, as such
cost approximates fair value. Held to maturity debt securities are recorded at amortized cost, adjusted for the
amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts. Unrealized holding gains and losses on trading securities are
included in earnings. Unrealized holding gains and losses on available for sale securities have been insignificant for
all periods presented. Realized gains and losses from the sale of available for sale securities are determined on a
specific identification basis. Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on their trade dates. Dividend and
interest income are recognized when earned.

‘A decline in the market value of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below cost that is deemed to
be other than temporary results in a reduction in its carrying amount to fair value. The impairment is charged to
earnings and a new cost basis for the security is established. To determine whether an impairment is other than
temporary, the Company considers whether it has the ability and intent to hold the investment until a market price
recovery and considers whether evidence indicating the cost of the investment is recoverable outweighs evidence to
the contrary. Evidence congidered in this assessment includes the reasons for the impairment, the severity and
duration of the impairment, changes in value subsequent to year end, and forecasted performance of the investee.

Restricted investments include U.S. Government securities, money market fund investments, and certificates of
deposit held by the various state departments of insurance to whose jurisdiction the Company’s subsidiaries are
subject. At December 31, 2006 and 2007, these restricled assets are recorded at amortized cost and classified as
long-term regardless of the contractual maturity date because of the restrictive nature of the state’s requirements.

(¢) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on property and
equipment is calculated on the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful
life of property and equipment ranges from 1 to 3 years. Leasehold improvements for assets under operating leases
are amortized over the lesser of their useful life or the base term of the lease. Maintenance and repairs are charged to
operating expense when incurred. Major improvements that extend the lives of the assets are capitalized.

() Long Lived Assets

Long lived assets, such as property and equipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortization, are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its estimated fair vatue, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount of the excess.
Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying
amount or fair value less costs to sell, and no longer depreciated. ‘

Intangible assets with estimable useful lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives, The
Company determines the useful life and amortization method for definite-life intangible assets based on the guidance in
FASB Statement No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets™. For all periods through the quarter ended
September 30, 2007, the straight-line method of amortization was applied for the Medicare member network intangible
asset associated with the Company’s 2005 recapitalization (therecapitalization asset™) (See Note 7), as a better pattern
could not be reliably determined based on available information. Effective October 1, 2007, the Company began
applying a | 7-year accelerated method of amortization for the recapitalization asset. Since the date of acquiring the
member network asset in 2005, the Company has tracked actual attrition rates experienced within the member network
and believes that there is now adequate historical data to make reliable estimates regarding future attrition rates for
amortization purposes. Based on its review of historical attrition rates, the Company believes the accelerated method of
amortization over the revised estimated life better approximates the distribution of economic benefits realized from the
member network intangible asset. The use of an accelerated method prior to September 30, 2007 would have resulted in
the recognition of amortization expense that is not materially different from the amounts recognized under the straight-
line method used by the Company during the same periods. The Company will continue to monitor its actual attrition
rates realized in futre pertods and adjust amortization schedules accordingly. Similarly, the Company is using a 20-
year accelerated method of amortization for the Medicare member network intangible acquired as part of the
acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health Pians, Inc. on October 1, 2007.

69




HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and unit data)

The Company’s accounting for this change related to the recapitalization asset resulted in incremental amortization
expense of $250 during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 over the amount of expense recognized using the
straight-line methiod in prior quarters of 2007 and did not have a material effect on the Company’s reported income
before income taxes, net income, or net income per share for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2007. As a
result of the change related to the recapitalization asset, the Company expects amortization expense for the year ended
December 31, 2008 to increase approximately $600 over the amount recognized in the year ended December 31, 2007.

(g) Income Taxes

The Company uses the asset and Jiability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred
income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes and net operating loss and
tax credit carryforwards. The amount of deferred taxes on these temporary differences is determined using the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, as applicable, based
on tax rates and laws in the respective tax jurisdiction enacted as of the balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets for recoverability and establishes a valuation allowance based on
historical taxable income, projected future taxable income, applicable tax strategies, and the expected timing of the
reversals of existing temporary differences. A valuation allowance is provided when it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Effective January 1, 2007, the Company accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with FASB
Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” (“FIN 48”). Accordingly, the Company
reports a lability for unrecognized tax benefits resulting from uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken
in a tax return. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in income
tax expense.

(h} Leases

The Company leases facilities and equipment under non-cancelable operating agreements, which include
scheduled increases in minimum rents and renewal provisions at the option of the Company. The lease term used in
all lease accounting calculations begins with the date the Company takes possession of the facility or the equipment
and ends on the expiration of the primary lease term or the expiration of any renewal periods that are deemed to be
reasonably assured at the inception of the lease. Rent holidays and escalating payment terms are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. For certain facility leases, the Company receives atlowances from its
landlords for improvement or expansion of its properties. Tenant improvement allowances are recorded as a deferred
rent liability and recognized ratably as a reduction to rent expense over the remaining lease term.

(i} Goodwill and Indefinite-Life Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over fair value of assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible
assets acquired in a purchase business combination and determined to have an indefinite useful life are not
amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually. The Company has selected December 31 as its
annual testing date.

An impairment loss is recognized to the extent that the carrying amount exceeds the asset’s fair value. This
determination is made at the reporting unit level and consists of two steps. First, the Company determines the fair
value of the reporting unit and compares it to its carrying amount. Second, if the carrying amount of the reporting
unit exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying amount of the unit’s
goodwill over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by allocating
the fair value of the reporting units in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation, in accordance with SFAS No.
141, “Business Combinations.” The residual fair value after this aliocation is the implied fair value of the reporting
unit’s goodwill. The Company has four reporting units in Alabama, Florida, Tennessee and Texas. The Company
conducted an annual impairment test as of December 31, 2007 and concluded that the carrying value of the reporting
units did not exceed their fair value.
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HEALTHSPRING, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and unit data)

() Medical Claims Liability and Medical Expenses

Medical claims lability represents the Company’s liability for services that have been performed by providers
for its Medicare Advantage and commerciai HMO members that have not been settled as of any given balance sheet
date. The liability consists of medical claims reported to the plans as well as an actuartally determined estimate of
claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the plans, or IBNR. :

Medical expenses consist of claim payments, capitation payments, and pharmacy costs, net of rebates, as well as
estimates of future payments of claims provided for services rendered prior to the end of the reporting period.
Capitation payments represent monthly contractual fees disbursed to physicians and other providers who are
responsible for providing medical care to members. Pharmacy costs (including Medicare Part D costs — see Note 3)
represent payments for members’ prescription drug benefits, net of rebates from drug manufacturers, Rebates are
recognized when the rebates are earned according to the contractual arrangements with the respective vendors.
Premiums the Company pays to reinsurers are reported as medical expenses and related reinsurance recoveries are
reported as reductions from medical expenses.

(k) Premium Revenue

Health plan premiums are due monthly and are recognized as revenue during the period in which the Company is
obligated to provide services to the members. The Company recognizes premium revenue for the Part D payments
received from CMS for which it assumes risk. The Company does not record revenue related to Part D payments
from CMS that represent payments for claims for which it assumes no risk (See Note 3).

Our Medicare premium revenue is subject to adjustment based on the health risk of our members under what is
referred to as CMS’s risk adjustment payment methodology. Risk adjustment uses health status indicators to
improve the accuracy of payments and establish incentives for plans to enroll and treat less healthy Medicare
beneficiaries. CMS initially phased in this payment methodology in 2003 whereby the risk adjusted payment
represented 10% of the payment to Medicare health plans, with the remaining 90% being based on demographic
factors. In 2007, the portion of risk adjusted payments was increased to 100%. The PDP payment methodology is
based 100% on the risk adjustment model.

The Company’s Medicare premium revenue is subject to adjustment based on the health risk of its members.
This process for adjusting premiums is referred to as the CMS risk payment methodology. Under the risk adjustment
payment methodology, managed care plans must capture, collect, and report diagnosis code information to CMS.
After reviewing the respective submissions, CMS establishes the payments to Medicare plans generally at the
beginning of the calendar year, and then adjusts premium levels on two separate accasions on a retroactive basis.
The first retroactive risk premium adjustment for a given fiscal year generally occurs during the third quarter of such
fiscal vear. This initial settlement (the “Initial CMS Settlement”) represents the updating of risk scores for the
current year based on the prior year’s dates of service, CMS then issues a final retroactive risk premium adjustment
settlement for the fiscal year in the following year (the “Final CMS Settlement™). Prior to 2007 the Company was
unable to estimate the impact of either of these risk adjustment settlements, and as such recorded them upon
notification from CMS of such amounts. In the first quarter of 2007, the Company began estimating and recording
on a monthly basis the Initial CMS Settlement, as we concluded we had the ability to reasonably estimate such
amounts. In the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company estimated and recorded the Final CMS Settlement for 2007, as
the Company concluded such amounts were reasonably estimable. The Final CMS Settlement for 2006 was recorded
during the second quarter of 2007 when received from CMS. Premium revenue for 2007 includes both Final CMS
Settlements for 2007 and 2006, As of January 2008, the Company will estimate and record on a monthly basis both
the Initial CMS Settlement and the Final CMS Settlement for the 2008 CMS plan year. All such estimated amounts
are periodically updated as necessary as additional diagnosis code information is reported to CMS and adjusted to
actual amounts when the ultimate adjustment settlements are either received from CMS or the Company receives
notification from CMS of such settlement amounts.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in thousands, except share and unit data)

() Member Acquisition Costs

Member acquisition costs consist primartly of broker commissions, incentive compensation, and advertising
costs. Such costs are expensed as incurred.

(m} Fee Revenue

Fee revenue primarily includes amounts earned by the Company for management services provided to
independent physician associations and health plans. The Company’s management subsidiaties typically generate
this fee revenue on one of three principal bases: (1) as a percentage of revenue collected by the relevant health plan;
(2} as a fixed per member, per month or “PMPM” payment or percentage of revenue for members serviced by the
relevant independent physician assoctation; or (3) as fees the Company receives for offering access to its provider
networks and for administrative services it offers to selt-insurcd employers. Fee revenue is recognized in the month
in which services are provided. In addition, pursuant to certain of our management agreements with independent
physician associations, we receive additional fees based on a share of the profits of the independent physician
association, which are recognized monthly as either fee revenue or as a reduction to medical expense dependent
upon whether the profit relates to members of one of the Company’s HMOQ subsidiaries.

(n) Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of enly net income for all periods presented.
(o) Reinsurance and Capitation

Certain of the Company’s HMO subsidiaries have reinsurance arrangements with respect to its commercial lines
of business with well-capitalized, highly-rated reinsurance providers. In addition, the Company’s Florida HMO has
reinsurance arrangements with respect to its Medicare Advantage business. These arrangements include maximum
medical payment amounts per member per year and per such member’s lifetime, Premiums paid and amounts
recovered under these agreements have not been material in any period covered by these consolidated financial
statements.

The Company’s HMO subsidiaries also maintain risk-sharing arrangements with providers, including
independent physician associations. See Note 12.

(p} Net Income Per Common Share and Member Unit

Net income per common share and member unit is measured at two levels: basic net income per common share
and member unit and diluted net income per common share and member unit. Basic net income per common shares
and member unit is computed by dividing net income available to commaon stockholders and members by the
weighted average number of common shares or member units outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per
commeon share is computed by dividing net income available to common stockholders by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding after considering the dilution related to stock options and restricted stock.
Diluted net income per member unit is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
member units outstanding after considering dilution related to warrants to purchase 500,000 Series A units of
NewQuest, LLC. Also see Note 2.

{4} Stock Bused Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123R
“Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R"), using the modified prospective method. Under this method,
compensation costs are recognized based on the estimated fair value of the respective options and the period during
which an emplovee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. The Company recognizes share-based
compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for the entire award.
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Prior to January |, 2006, the Company applied the intrinsic-value-based method of accounting prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related
interpretations including Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Interpretation No. 44, “Accounting for
Certain Transactions involving Stock Compensation, an interpretation of APB Opinion No, 25,” to account for its
fixed-plan stock options. Under this method, compensation expense was recorded for fixed-plan stock options only
if the current market price of the underlying stock exceeded the exercise price on the date of grant. SFAS No. 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation-
Transition and Disclosure, an amendment to FASB Statement No. 123,” established accounting and disclosure
requirements using a fair-value-based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation plans. As
allowed by SFAS No. 123, the Company had elected to continue to apply the intrinsic-value-based method of
accounting described above, and had adopted only the disclosure requirements of these statements.

Pro forma net income and basic and diluted earnings per sharc for 2005 has not been disclosed as the impact of
applying the fair value based method to all outstanding and unvested awards would not be material to the
Company’s consolidated results of operations.

(r} Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This Statement applies under other accounting
pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those
accounting pronouncements that fair value is the relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, this Statement does
not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November
15, 2007. SFAS No. 157 is effective for the Company beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2008. The Company
does not expect the adoption of SFAS 157 to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position or results
of operations. However, on December 14, 2007, the FASB issued proposed FSP FAS [57-b which would delay the
effective date of SFAS No. 157 for all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually). This
proposed FSP partially defers the effective date of SFAS No. 157 to fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008,
and interim periods within those fiscal years for items within the scope of this FSP. Effective for fiscal 2008, the
Company will adopt SFAS No. 157 except as it applies to those nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities as
noted in proposed FSP FAS 157-b. The partial adoption of SFAS No. 157 will not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

in February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities o choose to measure at fair value many financial instruments and certain
other items that are not currently required to be measured at fair value, Subsequent changes in fair value for
designated items will be required to be reported in earnings in the current period. SFAS No. 159 also establishes
presentation and disclosure requirements for similar types of assets and liabilities measured at fair value. SFAS No.
159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The Company does not expect the adoption of
SFAS No. 159 will have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007} (“SFAS 141R”), “Business Combinations”
and SFAS No. 160 (“SFAS 160™), “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin No. 517. SFAS 141R will change how business acquisitions are accounted for and
will impact financial statements both on the acquisition date and in subsequent periods. SFAS 160 will change the
accounting and reporting for minority interests, which will be recharacterized as noncontrolling interests and
classified as a component of equity. SFAS 141R and SFAS 160 are effective for us beginning in the first quarter of
fiscal 2010. Early adoption is not permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that SFAS 141R and
SFAS 160 will have on its consolidated financial statements.
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(2) Acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans.

On October 1, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding capital stock of Leon
Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. (“LMC Health Plans™) pursuant to the terms of a Stock Purchase Agreement,
dated as of August 9, 2007 (the “Stock Purchase Agreement”). LMC Health Plans is a Miami, Florida-based
Medicare Advantage HMO with approximately 26,000 members. Pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, the
Company acquired LMC Health Plans for $355.0 million in cash and 2,666,667 shares of the Company’s common
stock, $.01 par value per share, which share consideration has been deposited in escrow and will be released to the
former stockholders of LMC Health Plans if Leon Medical Centers, Inc. (“LMC") completes the construction of two
additional medical centers in accordance with the timetable set forth in the Stock Purchase Agreement. Such
escrowed shares will be excluded from the computation of basic and diluted earmings per share until such time that
all conditions for their release from escrow have been satisfied.

As part of the transaction, the Company entered into an exclusive long-term provider contract {“the “Leon
Medical Services Agreement”) with LMC, which opérates five Medicare-only medical clinics located throdghout
Miami-Dade County. The Leon Medical Services Agreement is for an initial term of approximately ten years with
an additional five-year renewal term at LMC Health Plans’ option.

Payments for medical services under the Leon Medical Services Agreement are based on agreed upon rates for
each service, multiplied by the number of plan members as of the first day of each month. There is a sharing
arrangement with regard to LMC Health Plans’ annual medical loss ratio (“MLR”) whereby the parties share equally
any surplus or deficit of up to 5% with regard to agreed-upon MLR benchmarks. The initial target for the annual
MLR is 80.0%, which increases to 81.0% during the term of the agreement.

LMC Health Plans has agreed that, during the term of the agreement, LMC will be LMC Health Plans’ exclusive
clinic-model provider, as defined in the agreement, in the four South Florida counties of Miami-Dade, Palm Beach,
Broward, and Monroe. LMC has agreed that LMC Health Plans will be, during the term: of the agreement, the
exclusive health maintenance organization to whom LMC provides medical services as contemplated by the
agreement in the four-county area. .

As further described in Note 14, in connection with funding the acquisition, on Qctober |, 2007, the Company
entered into a $400.0 million, five-year credit agreement (the “New Credit Agreement”) which, subject to the terms
and conditions set forth therein, provides for $300.0 million in term loans and a $100.0 million revolving credit
facility. The remainder of the cash purchase price was funded through available cash and cash equivalents.

The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method. The aggregate consideration for the acquisition
was $357,946, which included $2,947 of capitalized acquisition related costs. The contingent consideration
represented by the 2.7 million common shares placed in escrow are not included in the purchase price and are
excluded from outstanding and issued shares on the Company’s consolidated batance sheet as management has not
concluded that it is determinable beyond a reasonable doubt that the share release conditions will be met. The
Company acquired $357,946 of net assets, including $169,300 of identifiable intangible assets, and goodwill of
$246,163. The $169,300 of identifiable intangible assets recorded is being amortized over periods ranging from 15-
20 years, All intangible assets, including goodwill, are non-deductible for income tax purposes.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired:

L . J OO T OO U RO TRTRON % 40,148
Property and equIPIMIENT ..ottt e e e e en e er e er e en e en e e rrene 1,736
Identifiable intangible assets.........cooovvinenen. 169,300
GOOBWIIL .. e e ha bR ket e 246,163
DET BSSEIS. - rvriuereres s esesiit et eme et amete et sttt £seme st ot e et s eem s emea s EebL oL S BOAE L h e e £t em bt e et e st neeb e renr et 850
TOTAl BSSBLS co.ecveeirt ettt ettt e R R AR AR b e bd bbb et 458,197
Deferred tax Hability ...t e e b et 65,921
Other CUITENE HADIIIES .veee ettt et e e e et n e st e e e b s e aeatae s bas e e sbebaasatas e batne sbanbrenbanss 33,240
Long=term HaDIlILIES .....cvoivi ittty b s h e s bbb st et b e e e e s e st 1,090
TORAL TIABIIEIES ..ttt et ettt e e saara e sb e R e b e e e b ha bbbt aba e saaa 100,251
NEL ASSELS ACQUITET .encevreiiicciicie it e e e se e sa s e s b b ean s § 357,946
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A breakdown of the identifiable intangible assets, their assigned value and expected lives is as follows:

Estimated Life
Assigned Value (Years)

PrOVIARr NETWOTK .ot eteestesa s e sats e e ssssresnsssensssssssstasrnenmmeenenes B 126,700 15
Medicare MEMDBET NEIWOTK ..ottt isresissie s s irerassberessmaasratessssnrresesesssesns 42,600 20
Total amount of identified intangible asSets ......cooovcevecerecccinnircssssiseriisiinen. 5 169,300

The results of operations for LMC Health Plans are included in the Company’s censolidated financial statements
for the period following October 1, 2007.

The unaudited pro forma information includes the results of operations for LMC Health Plans for the periods
prior to the acquisition, adjusted for interest expense on long-term debt and reduced investment income related to
the cash used to fund the acquisition, additional amortization associated with the purchase and the relatéd income
tax effects. The unaudited pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes only and may not
be indicative of the results of operations had LMC Health Plans been owned by the Company for the full years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, nor is it necessarily indicative of future results of operations. The following
summary of unaudited pro forma financial information presents revenues, net income and per share data of
HealthSpring, Inc., as if the acquisition of LMC Health Plans had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented.

Year Ended
December 31,
' 2007 2006
RV ETIUES. eevviieereseeeeveeecssaeesssessassereesasesanesasessaseaanssasne s seesnsoennneeskbeses eabesbatasbtsssatsssssnnsnnvans $1,823415 $ 1,577,198
Net income available to common stockholders ... e e 91,790 64,499
Pro forma earnings per share: :

BaSTC 1evieveeeereresiecarestesssesinsesssesseserasssnsssamsssesasessasnssasnaaneseaneenneete bensbotarsststeabsaan s garseans $ 160 % 1.18
$ 1.18

DHIMIEA .ottt et bee et eavs s easa s aa s a s sre s s srnseanasratnbvasarnerree D 1.60
(3) Accounting for Prescription Drug Benefits under Part D '

In 2006, the Company began offering prescription drug benefits in accordance with Medicare Part D. The
Company currently offers Medicare Part D prescription drug plans to persons in all 50 states. We refer to our
Medicare Advantage plans (including plans providing Part D prescription drug benefits, or MA-PD plans)
collectively as “Medicare Advantage” plans. We refer to our stand-alone prescription drug plan as “PDP.” In
addition to standard coverage plans, the Company offers supplemental benefits in excess of the standard coverage.

The Company recognizes prescription drug costs as incurred, net of estimated rebates from drug companies. The
Company has subconiracted the prescription drug claims administration to three third-party pharmacy benefit managers.

To participate in Part D, the Company was required to provide written bids to CMS that included, among other
items, the estimated costs of providing prescription drug benefits. Pavments from CMS are based on these estimated
costs. The monthly Part D payment the Company receives from CMS for Part D plans generally represents the
Company’s bid amount for providing insurance coverage, both standard and supplemental, and is recognized
monthly as premium revenue. The amount of CMS payments relating to the Part D standard coverage for MA-PD
plans and PDPs is subject to adjustment, positive or negative, based upon the application of risk corridors that
compare the Company’s prescription drug costs in its bids to the Company’s actual prescription drug costs.
Variances exceeding certain thresholds may result in CMS making additional payments to the Company or the
Company’s refunding to CMS a portion of the premium payments it previously received. The Company estimates
and recognizes an adjustment to premium revenue related to estimated risk corridor payments based upon its actual
prescription drug cost for each reporting period as if the annual contract were to end at the end of each reporting
period. Risk corridor adjustments do not take into account estimated future prescription drug costs. The Company
records a risk corridor receivable or payable and classifies the amount as current or long-term in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the expected settlement with CMS. These Liabilities arise as a result of the Company’s actual
costs to date in providing Part D benefits being lower than its bids. The risk corridor adjustments are recognized in
the consolidated statements of income as a reduction of premium revenue.

Certain Part D payments from CMS represent payments for claims the Company pays for which it assumes no
risk. The Company accounts for these payments as funds held for the benefit of members on its consolidated balance’
sheets and as a financing activity in its consolidated statements of cash flows. The Company does not recognize
premium revenue or claims expense for these payments as these amounts represent pass-through payments from
CMS to fund deductibles, co-payments, and other member benefits.
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(4) Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Medicare premium FECEIVADIES ......vrviivrivivsiiesrnrs s ettt crsrs s s resreresrssesrssessssasssnnas $ 371,777 § 4,907
REDALES L.uveieiricee ettt e ettt e e te e e s e st et e et e saae e e eet e enesrenteabreraetenren 14,471 9,432
Commercial HMO premium receivables ... 1,049 4,696
BB .. e e e es e ot e e e et eeee s e ene e e eentent e et e ataesenaeenneeentrntertesaaeabaetseeaeeransrane s 7.139 2.077
60,436 21,112
Allowance for AOUBTTU BCCOUNIS ........eieeeeeeee ettt eeie et e aee e seee e s ee s reaanae e saaeeranenstesone (1,409 {3,524
TOUA ..ottt rree e e e e s a s e es s on b e e b e s re s rern e et ra s e r et e raeresa e re e satnnsr e e s s enesns $_59,027 § 17,588

Medicare premium receivables at December 31, 2007 include $35.9 million for receivables from CMS related to
the accrual of retroactive risk adjustment payments for the 2007 plan year, which we expect to receive in 2008,

Rebates for drug costs represent estimated rebates-owed to the Company from prescription drug companies. The
Company has entered into contracts with certain drug manufacturers which provide for rebates to the Company
based on the utilization of specific prescription drugs by the Company’s members. Accounts receivable relating to
unpaid health plan enrollee premiums are recorded during the period the Company is obligated 1o provide services to
enroliees and do not bear interest. The Company dees not have any off-balance sheet credit exposure related to its
health plan enrollees. Other receivables include management fees receivable as well as amounts owed the Company
from other health plans and the Company’s pharmacy benefits manager for the refund of certain medical expenses
paid by the Company.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable losses in the
Company’s existing accounts receivable and is based on a number of factors, including a review of past due
balances, with a particular emphasis on past due balances greater than 90 days old. Account balances are charged off
against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered
remote.

(5) Investment Securities

There were no investment securities classified as trading as of December 31, 2007 or 2006.

Investment securities classified as available for sale as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 consist of repurchase
agreements, municipal bonds and corporate debt securities whose cost approximates fair value.

Investment securities held to maturity classified as current assets were as follows:

76

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2007:
U.S. Treasury Securities ......occovrevrinecriinesricnnncerecenienen, 400 — — 400
MUunicipal BOnds ..o e 13,202 31 — 13,233
GOVernment Agencies ......ocoovereeeeiereernrecresaressernas drereeren 1,542 6 n 1,547
Corporate debl SECUNES ...oo.vvvreeeceecceeceeeeceee s - 1.450 ] (N 1.450
§ 16,594 38 (2) _16,630
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Uarealized Estimated
’ Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2006:
Municipal bonds ......ccooovvvevnenininieeierisrieeeeeee. 5 8,895 — (40) 8,855
GOVErNMEN AZETICIES Levrevreerrarirrirrreeranrsrrersscassresinsraesiassnes 272 — -— 272
Corporate debt securities ..................... SO 1,399 — {4) 1,395
$_10.566 — {44) 10,522
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Investment securities held to maturity classified as non-current assets were as follows:

batance sheet, were as follows at December 31, 2007: )

at December 31, 2007, were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2007: )
U.S. Treasury SECUrities ......ooeeccreeemieecmeceeecceereiciias $ 375 8 — 383
Municipal bonds ... s 2,595 22 — 2,617
GOVernmMent AZENCIES ...ooooreereee st 4,400 118 — 4,518
Corporate debt Securities ... 2,735 17 (3) 2,749
$_10,105 165 (3) 10,267
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2006:
U.S. Treasury SeCUrities. ... ernc s $ 769 — (3) 766
Municipal bonds ..o 15,908 3 - {99} 15,812
GOVErnment 8ZENCIES .....ccovvvvreirerrieireeienicieien e recesenns 1,410 2 (6) 1,406
Corporate debt SECUMIES ......o.ccorviirrreice e : 1,473 — {9 1,464
3 19,560 5 (117y 19,448

Maturities of debt securities classified as available for sale, regardless of their classification on the consolidated

Amortized
Cost
DUE WILHIN ONE YRAT......eeiiiireiirieecie e s bt ea e e e e bbb nnaracns $ 23,771
Due after one year through five Years..........cccovvirieiiniic i, 12,231
Due after five years through ten YEars ....c.ocecovvvmieciiiiicieecceeins et b 1,707
DUE AIEET T8N YEAIS ... v iteirivrei vttt e et s s s ee s ce e see et s bbb bbb bbb et be st 26,942
b_64.,651
Maturities of debt securities classified as held to maturity were as follows at December 31, 2007:
Amortized Estimated
Cost Fair Value
DUE WITHIN ONE YEAL ...ttt et s st s en s e vans g nmn e $ 16,594 16,630
Due after one year through five Years.......coovveinnivirnimiicisee e s 9,898 10,060
Due after five years through ten YEars ..ot st — —
DHUE ATET LOM YEATS ooeeviireiriveee e s e saemce e e st ad s b b s e abab e s et e 207 207
$.26,609 _2689]

Gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position,

v

Less Than More Than
12 Months 12 Months Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value Losses Value
U.S. Treasury
SECUrities...ovuiiverreenne, 5 — — — —_ — —
Municipal bonds ............ 7 1,306 — — 7 1,306
Government agencies .... — — 1 500 1 500
Corporate debt
SECUTTLIES 1uevveeree e 4 744 i 499 5 1,243
Total.coeieeecceeeceeee 3 ] 2,050 2 999 13 3,049
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Gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by
investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position,
at December 31, 2006, were as follows;

Less Than More Than ) :
12 Months 12 Months Total
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Yalue Losses Value
U.S. Treasury
SECUTILES ..viverreresreensieens 3 2 493 1 148 3 641
Municipal bonds ............ 32 2,294 107 10,853 139 13,147
Government agencies .... 1 5,489 5 5,902 6 11,391
Corporate debt
SECUNLIES ...eeveerri v 3 1,103 10 1.190 13 2,293
TOtal. oo eeecreereeneen $ 38 9,379 123 18,093 __161 27,472

U.S. Treasury Securities, Municipal Bonds and Government Agencies: The unrealized gains/losses on
investments in U.S. Treasury securities, municipal bonds and government agencies were caused by interest rate
changes. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price less
than the amortized cost of the investment. Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments
until a market price recovery or maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

Corporate Debt Securities: The unrealized losses on corporate debt securities were caused by interest rate
changes. The contractual terms of the bonds do not allow the issuer to settle the securities as a price less than the
face value of the bonds. Because the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit
quality, and the Company has the intent and ability to hold these investments until a market price recovery or
maturity, these investments are not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

(6) Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2607 2008
Fumiture and equiPmeni.. ..o ccsrrcrecrrnsssnnrsese s senmnnnnnennenes 9 8,316 8 6,442
Computer hardware and soﬁware 19,536 15,094
Leasehold IMProvemenLS ..........ccocoieinnie et sas st vess st s s ess s emn s eennes 13.078 220

40,930 21,756
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ... e rceeeoeeee e sesnssscerarenns (16.814) _ {12,925)

Depreciation expense on property and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006, the ten months
ended December 31, 2005, and the two months ended February 28, 2005 was 36,175, $2,626, $1,963, and $263,
respectively.

{7) Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Changes to goodwill during 2007 are as follows:

Balance at December 31, 20606... . e e 9 341,019
Purchase of LMC Health Plans (See Note 2) ......................................................................................... 246,163
Other... . v eetereeteeet et e e e teraeeeneeebeeasteeabeereeeinrs bt ebne e bnesaea e e it nan 219

Balance at December 3 I 2007 OO OO PPTPUURPOPPPOUROUUR S 1. 3.4 ]|
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.Balance at December 31, 2006 ... st ebesssssasrstessssiesnssstenssnesrenensnnee B 81,175
Acquisition of LMC Health P]ans (See Nole 2) 169,300
Amortization expense .. (10,045)
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A breakdown of the identifiable intangible assets, their assigned value and accumulated amortization at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006
Accumulated Accumulated
—Cost___ _Amortization ___Cost _ _Amortization
Trade name .. ettt ee et ae et eeserentneemeneteneernrentessaesneeeene & 24,500 — $ 24,500 —
Noncompete agreements ........................................................... 800 453 800 293
Provider NEIWOIKS. ..o viiei i es e e rnarssabena e 133,800 3,453 7,100 868
Medicare member networks 92,128 13,028 49,528 7,488
Commercial customer relatlonshlps.......................................... 1,011 707 10,300 3,803
Management contract right........cooeeencnnvnn e 1,554 259 1,554 155

$.253,793  17.900 § 93,782 12,607

Changes to the carrying value of identifiable intangible assets during 2007 are as follows:

Write-down of customer relauonshlps in connccnon w1Lh |mpa|nnem charge (4,537
Balance at December 31, 2007 ........oooooiimeiiiiicieiesie e res s rssss e esc b st s e s ens shen see e ersbaseas s s e smnebessntan $§ 235893

The weighted-average amortization periods of the acquired intangible assets are as follow:

Weighed-Average
Amortization
Period {(In Years)
Trade name indefinite
INON-COMPELE ABTERITIENES ...oiecvvsirerirasistesis et renestene s eneseenese et e st seesesbeneseeassee st se e brs s st casansasanannsnes 5
Provider networks... eeiereeisresresiaesseressreeateseatesenteaetaare o tstanteseeeeetesanteeseeesseeeseeansesseieteetabeainens 15
Medicare member nctworks 18.4
Commercial customer relatlonshlp 03
Management CONTACE TIZHT .....co.vceercreieoeirrc e e e een st s _15
TOtal INEANEIBIES ..ot ssbe e s s b e et 16.3

At December 31, 2007, all intangible assets are amortized using a straight-line method except for member |
network intangible assets which are amortized using an accelerated method. Also see Note 1(f). ‘ !

Amortization expense on identifiable intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2007, 2006, the ten
months ended December 31, 2005, and the two months ended February 28, 2005, was $10,045, $7,528, $5,027, and
$52, respectively. In addition, the Company recorded a $4.5 million charge during the 2007 second quarter for the
impairment of intangible assets associated with commercial customer relationships in the Company’s Tennessee
health plan. This charge was the result of the Company’s expectation that significant declines in commercial
membership will occur as a result of its decision in the second quarter of 2007 to implement premium increases
upon renewal for large group plans. The carrying value of the related intangible asset was $0.3 million at
December 31, 2007 and is being amortized through March 2008.

Amortization expense expected to be recognized during fiscal years subsequent to December 31, 2007 is as
follows:

1L OSSOSO UU VO PrUPPOPPTOOTIO 15,776
T 2 e ettt b et b et b s At b4t At hs 1A b e Ee e R s R e NS ea s S he iR S aaReeRsenRenRRedeesbe s s e trreeereenrenrenrhentrare e 15,189
TS S = OO O USSP 127,584

TOLAL evvevverenieamrr e st seans st s st na s sns s nn s bessssssanssnsseresinesenennnens B 211,393
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{8) Restricted Investments

Restricted investments at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized as follows;

Gross Unrealized
Holding

Amortized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
December 31, 2007
. Certificates of deposit. ... $ 4,334 — — 4,334
Money market funds ..o 1,500 — — 1,500
U.S. governmental SecUrities .o i 4,261 87 — 4,348
TOAL ...ttt et et n e $10,095 87 — 10,182
December 31, 2006
Certificates of depoSit ..o cveienireeee e $ 3,087 — — 3,087
U.S. governmental SECUTILIES ......c..vvvverrrrirrivnerenrenrerenessrsseseseseesaens 4,108 — (1 4.091
TOtAl oot § 7,195 — (17 7,178

The unrealized losses at December 31, 2006, on investments in government securities were caused by interest
rate changes. The contractual terms of these investments do not permit the issuer to settle the securities at a price
less than the amortized cost of the investment. Because the Company has the ability and intent to hold these
investments until a market price recovery or maturity, the impairment of these held to maturity investments is not

considered other-than-temporary.

(9) Stockholders’ Equity

On February 8, 2006, the Company completed an initial public offering, or IPO, of its common stock. In |
connection with the IPO, the Company sold 10.6 million shares of common stock at a price of $19.50 per share.
Total proceeds to the Company were approximately $188,400, net of $18,300 of offering costs, From the proceeds
of the offering and available cash, the Company repaid all of its tong-term debt and accrued interest, including a
31,100 prepayment penalty, totaling $189,900. Additionally, the Company issued approximately 12,600,000 shares
of common stock in exchange for all of the outstanding preferred stock, including cumulative dividends.

In connection with the IPO, the Company also issued approximately 2.0 million shares of common stock in
exchange for all the minority interest in the membership units of its Texas HMO subsidiary. The total value of the
purchase of the minority interest was approximately $39,800, which resulted in additional goodwill of $26,562 and

identifiable intangible assets of $1,028.

On October 10, 2006, the Company completed a secondary public offering of its commen stock. In connection
with the secondary offering, certain stockholders of the Company, including funds affiliated with GTCR Golder
Rauner, LLC, sold 11,600,000 shares of common stock at a price of $18.98 per share. The Company did not receive
any proceeds from the sale of the shares in the secondary offering. The Company incurred and expensed offering-

related expenses of approximately $800 related to this secondary public offering.
{10) Stock Based Compensation

Stock Options

The Company has options outstanding under its 2006 Equity Incentive Plan and its 2005 Stock Option Plan.

The Company adopted the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, or 2006 Plan, effective as of February 2, 2006. A total of
6,250,000 shares of common stock were authorized for issuance under the 2006 Plan, in the form of stock options,
restricted stock, restricted stock units or other share-based awards. The outstanding options vest and become
exercisable based on time, generally over a four-year period, and expire ten years from their grant dates. Upon

exercise, options are settled with authorized but unissued Company stock.
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The weighted average fair value of options granted in 2007 and 2006 is provided below. The fair value for all
options as determined on the date of grant was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following assumptions:

2007 2006
Weighted average fair value at grant date: .

2006 Equily [NCENLVE PIAN.....c..vievercernrseiserese ettt setsssssse s sians $ 942 §% 8.86
Expected dividend yield .......ooovormioiocciei s e 0.0% 0.0%
Expected vOlatility ..o e 34.7-45.0% 45.0%
Expected term ..o YOOV PYOUPRUTOT 5 years 5 years
RiSk-free INEIESL TALES ... . ereiieeeieee ettt s an e v as 393-477% 4.54-5.08%

Because the Company did not have publicly traded common stock prior to the completion of the 1PO, the
expected volatility over the term of the respective option used for 2006 option grants was based on industry peer
information. During 2007 the Company estimated a blended rate for volatility based on the Company’s actual
volatility rates experienced and the volatility rates of its peer group. Additionally, because the Company had no
outstanding stock options until March 2003, the expected term assumption was also based on industry peer
information. The risk-free interest rate was-based on a traded zero-coupon U.S. Treasury bond with a term
substantially equal to the option’s expected term. The Company recognized a deferred income tax benefit of
approximately $3,001 and §2,242 in the year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, related to the share-
based compensation expense. The actual tax benefit realized from stock options exercised during 2007 and 2006 was
%2 and $30, respectively. There was no capitalized stock-based compensation expense in 2007 or 2006.

Nonqualified options to purchase an aggregate of 155,792 shares of common stock were outstanding under the
2005 Stock Option Plan at December 31, 2007, These options vest and become exercisable generally over a five-
year period from the date of grant. The options expire ten years from the grant date. In the event of a change in
contro! of the Company, these options will immediately vest and become exercisable in full. No additional options
may be granted under the 2005 plan.

An analysis of stock option activity for the year ended December 31, 2007 under the Company’s stock incentive
plans is as follows:

Weighted
Average

Options Exercise Price

2006 Equity Incentive Plan:

Outstanding at December 31, 2006.........c.ccooiiiiiiiii e 3,211,000 £ 1940
GTANTEA .ottt e s b e s s e e e s nressabbea s sra e e s psnsanseane e e amneaeataeeeaneeneane 461,000 21.48
EXEICISEA 1.eviiveriensrerieresserseanseeeeesecereestae e aoesees s aeenee e e s s emeerrasto s b aabas bbb sbsss st s e b e e s s s b (54,375) 18.43
FOTTRILEM. ...ttt se s e et n st sren s ran e s b e e e s (346.625) 18.61
Qutstanding at December 31, 2007 ... 3,271,000 5 19.82
2005 Stock Option Plan
Qutstanding at December 31, 2006........ccoiiviivinninennnininei e rerrreranarrresrerans 169.’500 $ 2.50
GPANEEA 1o es e e en b ns e eeeeresane s ees et essnsss s s seeems e s b basras b — —
EXEICISC ...oooeiiiiiiiii i e e s s s ta et (8,166) 2.50
L =1 1= OO OOUSP OO OTRTR - (5.542) 2.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2007 ..ot 155,792 3 250
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Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Shares Under Average Exercise Remaining Intrinsic Value Intrinsic Value

Option Price Contractnal Term Per Share (1) 18]
2006 Equity Incentive Plan : .
Options exercisable at '
December 31, 2007........... 761,875 S 19.60 8.3 Years 5  (0.55) $ 98
Options vested and
expected to vest at

December 31, 2007(2)...... 3,058,385 19.82 8.5 Years (0.77) 478
2005 Stock Option Plan:
Options exercisable at

December 31, 2007 ........... 70,291 h 2.50 7.7 Years § 16355 5 1,163

Options vested and
expected to vest at )
December 31, 2007(2)...... 148,837 2.50 7.7 Years 16.55 2,463

{1} Computed per share amounts are based upon the amount by which the fair market value of the Company’s
common stock at December 31, 2007 of $19.05 per share exceeded the weighted average exercise price while
the aggregate value amounts are calculated using the actual exercise prices of options exercisable at the end of
the period.

(2) The Company began estimating forfeitures under SFAS 123R upon adoption on January 1, 2006.

The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during 2007 and 2006 was 3412 and $84, respectively. Cash
received from stock option exercises for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 totaled $1,023 and $12,
respectively. Total compensation expenses related to nonvested options not yet recognized was $16,899 a
December 31, 2007, The Company expects to recognize this compensation expense over a weighted average period
of 2.5 years.

Restricted Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company scld 1,838,750 shares of restricted common stock to
certain employees at a price of $0.20 per share. Each employee’s shares of restricted common stock are subject to
the terms and conditions of a restricted stock purchase agreement. The restrictions on these shares lapse based on
time and in the event of certain changes in control. All the outstanding shares of restricted stock have the same
voting and dividend rights as the underlying shares of common stock. Pursuant to the restricted stock purchase
agreements, the Company has the right but not the obligation to purchase all or any portion of an employee’s
restricted stock if his or her employment is terminated. The purchase price for securities purchased pursuant to this
repurchase option will be: :

* in the case of shares where the restrictions have not lapsed, the lesser of the original cost and the fair market
value of such shares; and

* in the case of shares where the restrictions have lapsed, the fair market value of such shares; provided that, if
employment is terminated with cause, then the purchase price shall be the lesser of the original cost and the
fair market value of such shares.

Based on a valuation completed shortly after the recapitalization, the Company determined that the fair market
value of the common stock on the dates of purchase of the restricted stock was $1.58 per share. The difference
between the $0.20 per share purchase price and the $1.58 per share fair market value is amortized as compensation
expense over a period of four to five years (the period over which the restrictions lapse), as applicable.

Restricted stock awards in 2006 and 2007 were granted with a fair value equal to the market price of the
Company’s common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense related to the restricted stock awards is
based on the market price of the underlying common stock on the grant date and is recorded straight-line over the
vesting period, generally five years from the date of grant. The weighted average grant date fair value of our
restricted stock awards was $21.66 and $19.51 for the years ended December 3t, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company granted 27,245 shares of restricted stock to non-
employee directors, pursuant to the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, all of which were outstanding at December 31,
2007. The restrictions relating to the restricted stock awards made in 2007 generally lapse on the one year
anniversary of the grant date. Activity of restricted stock awards was as follows for the year ended December 31,
2007:

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Shares Value
Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2006............oovevvemveeimenreeerceenineeeeeenee 1,002,629 § 239
L] v 11 (=11 OO OSSOSO TR REP VO TP TURPTO 27,245 21.66
VESIEM eovvoovevooeose oo s oo sessesses e e e seeeeeseees et esnasesesesssesesrenar s esseresees (331,681) 3.09
Purchased by the Company..........cccoiii s {57.701) 1.58
Nonvested restricted stock at December 31, 2007 ... 640,492 8§ 292

The fair value of shares vested during the years ended December 31, 2007, and 2006 was $1,025 and $1,128,
respectively. Total compensation expense related to nonvested restricted stock awards not yet recognized was
$1,356 at December 31, 2007. The Company expects to recognize this compensation expense over a weighted
average period of approximately 1.7 years. There are no other contractual terms covering restricted stock awards
under the 2006 Plan once the vesting restrictions have lapsed.

Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation is included in selling, general and administrative expense. Stock-based compensation

for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005 consisted
of the following (in millions):

Total
Compensation Expense Related To: Compensation
Restricted Stock Stock Options __ Expense
Year ended December 31, 2007...c.ccvvivevivieiiiiiiiene § 15 § 71 § 86
Year ended December 31, 2006........ccoveviverinecrincernnns 1.0 4.7 57
Ten months ended December 31, 2005 (combined}..... 0.4 - 04

There was no stock compensation expense incurred during the Predecessor’s two-month period ended February
28, 2005.

Stock Repurchase Program

In June 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized a stock repurchase program to buy back up to $50.0
million of the Company’s common stock over the subsequent 12 months. The program is intended to be
implemented through purchases made from time to time in either the open market or through private transactions, in
accordance with SEC and other applicable legal requirements. The timing, prices, and sizes of purchases will depend
upon prevailing stock prices, general economic and market conditions, and other considerations. Funds for the
repurchase of shares are expected to come primarily from unrestricted cash on hand and unrestricted cash generated
from operations. The repurchase program does not obligate the Company to acquire any particular amount of
common stock and the repurchase program may be suspended at any time at the Company’s discretion. As of
December 31, 2007, the Company had not repurchased any common stock under the program.
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(11) Net Income Per Common Share

The following table presents the calculation of the Company’s net income per common share available to
common stockholders — basic and diluted. The Predecessor did not have any potentiatly dilutive units outstanding
during the two months ended February 28, 2005.

Ten-Month
Year Ended Year Ended Period Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Numerator:

Net income available to common stockholders..........coocceveivveveenriae, h 86,460 § 78,815 § 10,943

Denominator:

Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic........ovrnee 57,249,252 34,617,744 32,173,707
Dilutive effect of stock oplions..........ccooeeieiieccciececce e 92,625 96,360 41,581
Dilutive effect of unvested director Shares ........ocovcvevevncovernvenennn, 6,319 6.269 —

Weighted average common shares outstanding — diluted......ocoeeeee.. 57,348,196 _ 54,720,373 32,215,288

Net income per common share available to common stockholders:

BASIC .ottt ittititesieeteeteee e eeeseeeeeeer e s e estesestae e sressnrenarntentssrtentenren ) S1 3 144 3 0.34
DHIULEA oottt s s ea e nesene e b Sl § L 144 3 0.34

Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if stock options or other share-based awards were
exercised or converted into common stock. The dilutive effect is computed using the treasury stock method, which
assumes alt share-based awards are exercised and the hypothetical proceeds from exercise are used by the Company
to purchase common stock at the average market price during the period. The incremental shares (difference
between shares assumed to be issued versus purchased), to the extent they would have been dilutive, are included in
the denominator of the diluted EPS calculation. Options on 3.3 miliion shares and 2.7 million shares were
antidilutive and therefore excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

(12) Related Party Transactions
Renaissance Physician Organization

Renaissance Physician Organization (RPO) is a Texas non-profit corporation the members of which are
GulfQuest L.P., one of the Company’s wholly owned HMO management subsidiaries, and 13 affiliated independent
physician associations, comprised of over 1,000 physicians, providing medical services primarily in and around
counties surrounding and including the Houston, Texas metropolitan area. Texas HealthSpring, LLC, the
Company’s Texas HMO, has contracted with RPO to provide professional medical and covered medical services
and procedures to members of its Medicare Advantage plans. Pursuant to that agreement, RPO shares risk relating to
the provision of such services, both upside and downside, with the Company on a 50%/50% allocation. Another
agreement the Company has with RPO delegates responsibility to GulfQuest L.P. for medical management, claims
processing, provider relations, credentialing, finance, and reporting services for RPO’s Medicare and commercial
members. Pursuant to that agreement, GulfQuest L.P. receives a management fee, calculated as a percentage of
Medicare premiums, plus a dollar amount per member per month for RPQ’s commercial members. In addition, RPQ
pays GulfQuest, L..P. 25% of the profits from RPO’s operations. Both agreements have ten year terms that expire on
December 31, 2014 and automatically renew for additional one to three year terms thereafter, unless notice of non-
renewal is given by either party at least 180 days prior to the end of the then-current term. The agreements also
contain certain restrictions on the Company’s ability to enter into agreements with delegated physician networks in
certain counties where RPO provides services. Likewise, RPO is subject to restrictions regarding providing coverage
to plans competitive with Texas HealthSpring, LLC’s Medicare Advantage plan.

For the vears ended December 31, 2007, and 2006, the ten months ended December 31, 2005, and the two
months ended February 28, 2005. GulfQuest L.P. earmed management and other fees from RPO of approximately
816,313, $15,630, $11,395, and $2,023, respectively. These amounts are reflected in management and other fee
income in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
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Texas HealthSpring, LLC incurred medical expense to RPO of approximately $109,489, $99.459, $67,368, and
$11,400 for the vears ended December 31, 2007, and 2006 for the ten months ended December 31, 2005, and for the
two months ended February 28, 2005, respectively, related to medical services provided to its members by RPO.
The 50%/50% risk sharing mechanism with respect to the common membership pool of RPO and Texas
HealthSpring, LLC resulted in the Company accruing for amounts to {from) RPO of approximately $4,204, $5,910,
$391, and $(375) for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, for the ten months ended December 31, 2005,
and for the two months ended February 28, 2003, respectively. GulfQuest, L.P.’s 23% share of RPO’s profits were
approximately $10,285, $10,494, $6,891, and $1,103 for those same respective periods. These amounts are reflected
as components of medical expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Transaction Involving Herbert A. Fritch

In December 2007, Herbert A. Fritch, the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and Chief
Executive Officer, acquired a 15.8% membership interest in Predators Holdings, LLC (“Predators Holdings”}, the
owner of the Nashville Predators National Hockey League team. In addition, in December 2007 Mr. Fritch loaned
Predators Holdings $2,000. Mr. Fritch is also a member of the executive committee of Predators Holdings. A
subsidiary of Predators Holdings manages the Sommet Center where the hockey team plays its home games. The
Company is a party 1o a suite license agreement with another subsidiary of Predators Holdings pursuant to which the
company leases a suite for Predators games and other functions. [n 2007, the Company paid $130 under the license
agreement for the use of the suite (including 16 tickets, but not food and beverage concessions), for Predators’ home
games during the 2007-2008 hockey scason.

Transactions Involving Benjamin Leon, Jr.

On October 1, 2007, the Company completed the acquisition of all the outstanding capital stock of LMC Health
Plans (see Note 2- Acquisition of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans). Prior to the closing, Benjamin Leen, Jr., who
was subsequently elected as a director of the Company, owned a majority of LMC Health Plans’ outstanding capital
stock.

Medical Services Agreement

On October 1, 2007, LMC Health Plans entered into a Medical Services Agreement with LMC (the “Medical
Services Agreement”™) pursuant to which LMC provides or arranges for the provision of certain medical services to
LMC Health Plan’s members. The Medical Services Agreement is for an initial term of approximately ten years
with an additional five-year renewal term at LMC Health Plan’s option. Mr. Leon is the majority owner, chairman of
the board of directors, and chief executive officer of LMC.

Payments for medical services under the Medical Services Agreement are based on agreed upon rates for each
service, multiplied by the number of plan members as of the first day of each month. Payments for pharmaceuticals
{other than injectables, which, in general, will be provided by LMC Health Plans) under the Medical Services
Agreement are 105% of the actual cost incurred by LMC. Pavments made to LMC by the Company for medical
services from October 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007 were $28,985. There is also a sharing arrangement with regard
to LMC Health Plan’s annual medical loss ratio (*MLR”) whereby the parties share equally any surplus or deficit of
up to 5% with regard 1o agreed-upon MLR benchmarks. The initial target for the annual MLR is 80.0%, which
increases to 81.0% during the term of the agreement. At December 31, 2007 the Company had accrued $787 for
amounts due from EMC under MLR sharing arrangements.

Office Space Agreement
On October 1, 2007, LMC Health Plans entered into an Office Space Agreement with LMC whereby LMC
Health Plans reimburses LMC for the use of certain space currently occupied by LMC Health Plans. The term of the

Office Space Agreement is one year, with an extension of 180 days at LMC Health Plan’s option. LMC Health Plans
is responsible for its pro rata share of lease and equipment expenses, which are estimated to totat $530 annually.
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Other

At December 31, 2007 the Company had liabilities of $5,047 on its consolidated balance sheets for amounts
owed to the sellers of LMC Health Plans under working capital settlement provisions included in the purchase
agreement.

GTCR

Under a professional services agreement, dated March 1, 2005, between the Company and GTCR Golder Rauner
I, LLC (*GTCR"}, the Company engaged GTCR as a financial and management consultant, One of the Company’s
directors is a principal of GTCR. During the term of its engagement, GTCR agreed to consult on business and
financial matters, including corporate strategy, budgeting of future corporate investments, acquisition and divestiture
strategies, and debt and equity financings for an annual management fee of $500, payable in equal monthly
installments, and reimbursement for certain related expenses. GTCR was paid approximately $375 under this
agreement through December 31, 2005. Additionally, GTCR was paid a placement fee of approximately $1,341
under the professional services agreement in connection with the sale of the Company’s securities in the
recapitalization, The placement fee was included in capitalized transaction expenses in connection with the
recapitalization. The professional services agreement was terminated in connection with the IPO in February 2006.

(13) Lease Obligations

The Company leases certain facilities and equipment under noncancelable operating lease arrangements with
varying terms, The facility leases generally contain renewal options of five years, For the years ended December 31,
2007, and 2006, the ten months ended December 31, 2003, and the two months ended February 28, 2005, the
Company recorded lease expense of $6,371, $5,108, $3,274, and $501, respectively.

Future non-cancellable payments under these lease obligations as of December 31, 2007 were as follows:

TRETEATIET ...ttt ettt rr ettt et s e e e e et e s eessesabeeseasassssasaseb s A b batasomnsbbnessensrmtmtmesssaesasassesenansssnsassessararns 8.899
$ 33,658

(14) Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

2007 2006
Senior SECUTEA LRI LOAI 1ivii ittt iviittte e eeee oot e e eee e e e et ae s e e e eaeeses b aas 48 4 d st s bbeeeramemneeereamnmmeennen $ 296,250 % —
Less: current portion of long-term debt ... (18,750) —
Long-term debt, 1658 CUITENt POMION......c.oocuimiciicccrecrcnereresisssssesieeressecnmcsesiersneneereeenenees 920,000 8 —

In connection with funding the acquisition of LMC Health Plans, on October 1, 2007, the Company entered into
a $400.0 million, five-year credit agreement (the “New Credit Agreement™) which, subject to the terms and
conditions set forth therein, provides for $300.0 million in term loans and a $100.0 million revolving credit facility.
The New Credit Agreement replaced the Prior Credit Agreement (as defined below).

Proceeds from the $300.0 million in term loans, together with the Company’s available cash on hand were used
te fund the acquisition of LMC Health Plans and transaction expenses related thereto, The $100.0 million revolving
credit facility, which is available for working capital and general corporate purposes including capital expenditures
and permitted acquisitions, was undrawn as of the date of this report.
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Borrowings under the New Credit Agreement accrue interest on the basis of either a base rate or a LIBOR rate
plus, in each case, an applicable margin (initially 250 basis points for LIBOR advances) depending on the
Company’s debt-to-EBITDA leverage ratio. The LIBOR rate plus margin as of December 31, 2007 was 7.78%. The
Company also will pay commitment fees on the unfunded portion of the lenders’ commitments under the revolving
credit facility, the amounts of which will also depend on the Company’s leverage ratio. The New Credit Agreement
matures, the commitments thereunder terminate, and all amounts then outstanding thereunder are payable on
October t, 2012.

The term loans are payable in quarterly principal installments. Maturities of long-term debt under the New Credit
Agreement are as follows:

3 296,250

The net proceeds from certain asset sales, casualty/condemnation events, and incurrences of indebtedness
(subject, in the cases of asset sales and casualty/condemnation events, to certain reinvestment rights), and a portion
of the net proceeds from equity issuances and the Company’s excess cash flow, are required to be used to make
prepayments in respect of loans outstanding under the New Credit Agreement.

Loans under the New Credit Agreement are secured by a first priority lien on substantially all assets of the
Company and its non-HMO subsidiaries, including a pledge by the Company and its non-HMO subsidiaries of all of
the equity interests in each of their domestic subsidiaries.

The New Credit Agreement contains conditions precedent to extensions of credit and representations, warranties,
and covenants, including financial covenants, customary for transactions of this type. Financial covenants include (i)
a maximum leverage ratio comparing total indebtedness to consolidated adjusted EBITDA, (ii) minimum net worth
requirements for each HMO subsidiary calculated with reference to applicable regulatory requirements, and (iii)
maximum capital expenditures.

The New Credit Agreement also contains customary events of default as well as restrictions on undertaking
certain specified corporate actions including, among others, asset dispositions, acquisitions and other investments,
dividends and stock repurchases, changes in control, issuance of capital stock, fundamental corporate changes such
as mergers and consolidations, incurrence of additional indebtedness, creation of liens, transactions with affiliates,
and certain subsidiary regulatory restrictions. If an event of defauit occurs that is not otherwise waived or cured, the
lenders may terminate their obligations to make loans and other extensions of credit under the New Credit
Agreement and the obligations of the issuing banks to issue letters of credit and may declare the loans outstanding
" under the New Credit Agreement to be due and payable.

In connection with entering into the New Credit Agreement, the Company incurred financing costs of
approximately $10.6 million which were recorded in the fourth quarter of 2007. These costs have been deferred and
are being amortized over the term of the debt agreement using the interest method. The unamortized balance of such
costs at December 31, 2007 totaled $10.0 million, and is included in other assets on the accompanying consolidated:
balance sheet. ‘

On April 21, 2006, HealthSpring, Inc. and certain of its non-HMO subsidiaries as guarantors entered into a $75.0
million, five-year senior secured revolving credit agreement (the “Prior Credit Agreement™) with UBS Securities
LLC, Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and the lenders party thereto. The Prior Credit Agreement provided up to a
maximum aggregate principal amount outstanding of $75.0 million, including a $2.5 million swingline subfacility
and a maximum of $5.0 millien in outstanding letters of credit. In connection with terminating the Prior Credit
Agreement in the fourth quarter of 2007, unamortized debt issuance costs of $0.7 million were charged to earnings.
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(15) Medical Claims Liability

The Company’s medical liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

. 2007 2006
Medicare Medical HaBIIIES .oiii ittt ittt e eteeee e ere st s erevansseesarassrsesssenees $ 116,048 § 83,561
Commercial medical labilities ... v i st s e 3,415 11,690
Pharmacy accounts payable!! 35,047 271,527
Total ... e s $ 154510 § 122,778

(1) Pharmacy accounts payabie at December 31, 2007 and 2006 included $0.3 million and $7.1 million,
respectively, for claims payable to other health plans for drug costs under CMS’s Plan to Plan and State to Plan
reconciliation processes.

Medical claims liability represents the liability for services that have been performed by providers for the
Company’s Medicare Advantage and commercial HMO members. The liability includes medical claims reported to
the plans as well as an actuarially determined estimate of claims that have been incurred but not yet reported to the
plans, or IBNR. The IBNR component is based on our historical claims data, current enrollment, health service
utilization statistics, and other related information.

The following table presents the components of the medical claims liability as of the dates indicated:

December 31,

2007 2006
Incurred but not reported (IBNR) ..o it ettt e ee et ee e $ 97237 § 85731
Reported Claimis ...t ettt 57.273 37,047
Total medical claims HaBility ..o e S 154510 § 122,778

The Company develops its estimate for IBNR by using standard actuarial developmental methodologies,
including the completion factor method. This method estimates liabilities for claims based upon the historical lag
between the month when services are rendered and the month claims are paid and takes into consideration factors
such as expected medical cost inflation, seasonality patterns, product mix, and membership changes. The completion
factor is a measure of how complete the claims paid to date are relative to the estimate of the total claims for
services rendered for a given reporting period. Although the completion factors are generally reliable for older
service periods, they are more volatile, and hence less reliable, for more recent periods given that the typical billing
lag for services can range from a week to as much as 90 days from the date of service. As a result, for the most
recent two to four months, the estimate for incurred claims is developed from a trend factor analysis based on per
member per month claims trends experienced in the preceding months. The liability includes estimates of premium
deficiencies. At December 31, 2607 and 2006, the Company had estimated premium deficiency liabilities of $ -0-
and approximately $700, respectively.

On a monthly basis, the Company re-examines the previously established medical claims liability estimates
based on actual claim submissions and other relevant changes in facts and circumstances. As the liability estimates
recorded in prior periods become more exact, the Company increases or decreases the amount of the estimates, and
includes the changes in medical expenses in the peried in which the change is identified. [n every reporting period,
the Company’s operating results include the effects of more completely developed medical claims liability estimates
associated with prior periods.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of changes in the medical claims liability for the Company for.the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the ten-month period ended December 31, 2005 and the Predecessor for
the two-month period ended February 28, 2005:

Predecessor

Ten month Two month
Year ended Year ended period ended period ended
December 31,  December 31,  December 31,  February 28,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Balance at beginning of period .........ccovnvviceriicivcccnn. 3 122,778 § 82,645 — 53,187
Acquisition of LMC Health Plans ..., 16,588 — — o
Acquisition of NewQuest, LLC.........ccocorviivnniinncne. — — 59,016 . —
Incurred related to: ' .
Current Period.........ccoeiieemvecinnniee s 1,245,271 1,017,100 576,180 97,843
PrIOE PETIOQ. . cecerceiie ettt remene e e ne (19,278) (8,574) {6.843) (7,000)
Total INCUITEd.........covrererrrenerresrvasrnere e seemr e 1,225.993 1,008,526 569,337 90,843
Paid related to:
Current Period..........ocoeveiereneeimeeisinen e 1,108,949 894,684 493,901 44 397
Prior period.....ceoe e 101,900 73,709 51,807 40,617
Total Pald .......cocoviveirrrerccrei s 1,210,849 968,393 545,708 85014

Balance at the end of the period ... 5 154510 § 22,778 § 82645 $ 59,016

(16) Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the following for the periods presented:

Current Deferred Total

Year ended December 31, 2007:
U.S. Federal .. rereerenetatbentasemtesemtasontearerensersenrstssseessrassssaereseereramnereneneens 8 48,2320 (2,860) 45,372
State and local 2.617 306 2.923

3 50849 (2,554) 48,295

Year ended December 31, 2006:
ULS. FEARTAL ...oeovircreeereeereeeseseseestssenssnsnssnesssnsanonsensnssrenssnensrernsasenmameneeeieneneenenes 8 39,836 1,337 41,173
S1AtE AN LOCAL ..ottt e ects et et s ba b an e s e e s 3,179 {541) _2.638

343,015

23
:

Ten-month penod ended December 31, 2005:
U.S. Federal .. st st b sttt enseraess s ssrnsneresenersenssneerecreenenineeee 9 1 1,390 (1,127) 16,269

State and local 808 67 875
$ 18204 (1.060) 17,144

Predecessor:
Two-month perlod ended F ebruary 28, 2005:
U.S. Federal ... cererenens eereenesrenssesnssssnessiessesasessnesesnsrarsssnnnrnernees 8 2,108 122 2,230
SHQLE A LOCAL...orrsoeroooreesoeesees oot eeesssseeeseseseeseessereeseseeresssresessseeseseeseeesrereesn 427 (29) 398
§ 2535 _ 93 _2608
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A reconciliation of the U.S. federal statutory rate to the effective tax rate is as follows for the periods presented:

_Predegessar |
Ten Two

Month Month
Period Period
Year Ended Year Ended ended ended

December December December February

31, 2007 31, 2006 31,2005 28, 2005
U.S. Federal statutory rate on income before income taxes....... $ 47,164 43,626 15,293 1,867

Income not subject to federal income tax due to partnership : '

status.. —_ — — 423
State income taxes net of federal tax effect .............................. - 2,103 1,525 569 259
OHBET oot st et s st s s ro e _(972) (1,340} 1,282 79
Income tax expense........oocovvenrnenn. U $ 48295 43,811 17,144 2,628

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant pomons of the deferred tax assets and
| liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

| 2007 2006
' Deferred tax assets: ‘
Medical claims liabilities, principally due to medlcal loss liability discounted for tax .
DUTDOSES .nn e eresesressessasessassaassssanssssesseastsraebaeenssesnseeenseasssensentesssesenseesnres seenbstosnesrns 5 1,018 1,248
Property and eqUipmEnt ..o b s et 451 1,599
Accrued compensation, including share-based compensation ........oeoeeveiviesccssesirnenins 4,631 1,695
Allowance for doUBH UL ACCOUNLS ...t et er s raesresssrasesnsaensensesnes 498 1,295
Federal net operating 108S CAITYOVET ......ccooviiiiciiriicrii it seeee e teee et e reneseenees 1,906 1,954
State net operating loSS CATYOVET .....vccvvirivevrserrcesreresene e sessssssesssssessssssseasssseseassssesesens . 995 1,340
Other liabilities and ACCTUAIS........covcovireiercrers et s s re e s s st sresse b et aasssnotesassasaes 631 1,692
Total gross deferred tax assets ......... et s ee et eee et ne ettt r e s e enn o 10,130 10,823
Less valuation lloWaNCe..........ivmcvimimsemimsemimmsrsr s s ettt sssssnens (327) (606)
DEfEITE LAX BSSEES .......oceeceeeeeet et et s se e e e e e e s eeae st eereameemeeeeesesenssaeneansennsenensraseeraeans 9,803 10,217
Deferred tax liabilities: ‘
INEANEIDIE ASSEIS...vvivieiriiicrreceserr e rest e esr et saesbetsses e s b esssaesreee s seteessmennsreensenssmnnsan (98,060) (33,888)
Prepaid contract Cost......ooooveeervvicecenccnnnn. PO PP SOPTOUUUOTRUOTION —  _{1,129)
Total net deferred tax Habilities ..o s $ (88257) (24,800)

The above amounts are classified as current or long-term in the consolidated balance sheets in accordance with
the asset or liability to which they relate or, when applicable, based on the expected timing of the reversal. Current
deferred tax assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $2,295 and $3,644, respectively. Non-current deferred tax
liabilities at December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $90,552 and $28,444, respectively.

The Company records a valuation allowance to reduce its net deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely
than not to be realized. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Company carried a valuation allowance against -
deferred tax assets of $327 and $606, respectively. To the extent the valuation allowance is reduced that was
previously recorded as a resuit of business combinations, the offsetting credit will be recognized first as a reduction
1o goodwill, then to other intangible assets, and lastly as a reduction in the current period’s income tax provision. A
portion of the valuation allowance release related to the 2005 recapitalization transaction, therefore; goodwill was
reduced by $150. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $327 of valuation allowance remammg from the
2005 recapitalization which could potenually result in future reductions to goodwill.

The Company currently benefits from federal and state net operating loss carryforwards. The Company’s
consolidated federal net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce future tax income are approximately $5.4
million and $5.6 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These net operating loss carryforwards, if not
used to offset future taxable income, will expire from 2009 through 2022. State net operating loss carryforwards at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are approximately $23.6 million and $31.7 million, respectively. These net operating
loss carryforwards, if not used to offset future taxable income, will expire from 2012 through 2021. In addition, the
Company has alternative minimum tax credits which do not have an expiration date.
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Overall, the Company’s utilization of these various tax attributes, at both the federal and state level, may be limited
due to the ownership changes that resulted from the recapitalization transaction, as well as previous acquisitions. This
limitation is incorporated in the above table by the valuation allowance recorded against a portion of the deferred tax
assets. The Company also recognized goodwil! resulting from the recapitalization transaction that is reflected in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheets. A portion of this goodwill is deductible for federal and state income tax
purposes.

Income taxes payable of $4,904 and $2,519 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are included in other
current liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48™) on January 1, 2007. The
adoption of FIN 48 did not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of
operations.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Unrecognized tax benefits balance at January 1, 2007 ... e s § 740
Increases in 1ax POSItioNS fOr PriOr YEATS ..o i ettt e 12
Decreases in tax positions for Prior YEArs ... e s (80)

Increases in tax POSIIONS fOr CUITENT YEAT ....ocooi ettt e e et s s et n s
SEILIEIMENLS oottt st s e sn e sa b sa b s e e s b s e s —

Lapse of Statute Of THTILALIONS. ......cc. ittt et e ks e bbb st {357)
Unrecognized tax benefits balance at December 31, 2007 ... 3 405

The Company’s continuing accounting policy is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax
matters as a component of tax expense in the condensed consolidated statements of income. Accrued interest and
penalties were approximately $0.1 miltion as of January 1, 2007 and December 31, 2007. The Company had net
unrecognized tax benefits of $0.6 million and $0.3 million as of the FIN 48 adoption date and December 31, 2007,
respectively, all of which, if recognized, would favorably affect the Company’s effective income tax rate.

In many cases the Company’s uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to examination
by the relevant taxing authorities. The Company files U.S. federal income tax returns as well as income 1ax returns
in various state jurisdictions. The Company may be subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”)
for calendar years 2004 through 2006. Additionally, any net operating losses that were generated in prior years and
utilized in these years may also be subject to examination by the IRS. Generally, for state tax purposes, the
Company’s 2003 through 2006 tax years remain open for examination by the tax authorities under a four year statute
of limitations. There are currently no federal or state audits in process.

(17) Retirement Plan

The cost of the Company’s defined contribution plans during the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the
ten months ended December 31, 2005, and the two months ended February 28, 2005 was $1,666, $1,118, $898, and
$111, respectively. Amounts for the year ended December 31, 2007 include the costs for contributions made by
LMC Health Plans since October 1, 2007, the date the Company acquired the LMC Health Plans. Employees are
always 100% vested in their contributions and vest in employer contributions at a rate of 50% after the first two
years of service and 100% after the third year of service.

{18) Statutory Capital Requirements

The HMOs are required to maintain satisfactory minimum net worth requirements established by their respective
state departments of insurance. At December 31, 2007, the statutory minimum net worth requirements and actual
statutory net worth were $14,823 and $59,407 for the Tennessee HMQ; $1,112 and $36,691 for the Alabama HMO;
$6,771 and $16,040 for the Florida HMO; and $8,912 and $42,491 for the Texas HMO, respectively. Each of these
subsidiaries were in compliance with applicable statutory requirements as of December 31, 2007. The HMOs are
restricted from making dividend payments to the Company without appropriate regulatory notifications and
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approvals or to the extent such dividends would put them out of compliance with statutory capital requitements, At
December 31, 2007, $389.3 million of the Company’s $425.5 million of cash, cash equivalents, investment
securities and restricted investments were held by the Company’s HMO subsidiaries and subject to these dividend
restrictions.

{19) Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings

The Company is from time to time involved in routine legal matters and other claims incidental to its business,
including employment-reiated claims, claims relating to our relationships with providers and members, and claims
relating to marketing practices of sales agents that are émployed by, or independent contractors to, the Company.
When it appears probable in management’s judgment that the Company will incur monetary damages in connection
with any claims or proceedings, and such costs can be reasonably estimated, liabilities are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements and charges are recorded against earnings. Although there can be no assurances,
the Company does not believe that the resolution of such routine matters and other incidental claims, taking into
account accruals and insurance, will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position
or results of operations.

(20) Concentrations of Business and Credit Risks

The Company’s primary lines of business, operating health maintenance organizations and managing
independent physician associations, are significantly impacted by healthcare cost trends.

The healthcare industry is impacted by health trends as well as being significantly impacted by government
regulations. Changes in government regulations may significantly affect management’s medical claims estimates
and the Company’s performance.

Approximately 97.0% and 90.5% of the Company’s premium revenue in 2007 and 2006, respectively, was
derived from a limited number of contracts with CMS, which are renewable annually and are terminable by CMS in
the event of material breach or a violation of relevant laws or regulations. In additon, substantially all of the
Company’s membership in its stand-alone PDP results from automatic enrollment by CMS of members in CMS
regions where the Company’s Part D premium bid is below the retevant benchmark. If future Part D premium bids
are not below the benchmark, or the Company violates relevant laws, regulations or program requirements relating
to Part D, CMS may not assign additional PDP members to the Company and may reassign PDP members
previously assigned to the Company.

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of
investment securities and receivables generated in the ordinary course of business. Investment securities are
managed by professional investment managers within guidelines established by the Company that, as a matter of
policy, limit the amounts that may be invested in any one issuer. Receivables include premium receivables from
CMS for estimated retroactive risk adjustment payments, premium receivables from individual and commercial
customers, rebate receivables from pharmaceutical manufacturers, receivables related to prepayment of claims on
behalf of members under the Medicare program and receivables owed to the Company from providers under risk-
sharing arrangements. The Company had no significant concentrations of credit risk at December 31, 2007.

(21) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s 2007 and 2006 consolidated balance sheets include the following financial instruments: cash
and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, investment securities, restricted investments, accounts payable, medical
claims liabilities, and long-term debt. The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, accounts payable and medical
claims liabilities approximate their fair value because of the relatively short period of time between the origination
of these instruments and their expected realization. The fair value of the investment securities and restricted
investments as determined generally by quoted market prices are presented at Notes 5 and 8. The carrying value of
the long-term debt is estimated by management to approximate fair value based upon the terms and nature of the
obligations.
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{22) Recapitalization
The Recapitalization

HealthSpring, Inc. was formed in October 2004 in connection with a recapitalization transaction, which was
accounted for using the purchase method, involving our predecessor, NewQuest, LLC, its members, the GTCR
Funds, and éertain other investors and lenders. The recapitalization was completed on March 1, 2005,

Prior to the recapitalization, approximately 15% of the ownership interests in two of our Tennessee management
subsidiaries and approximately 27% of the membership interests of our Texas HMO subsidiary, Texas
HealthSpring, LLC, were owned by outside investors. Contemporaneously with the recapitalization, we purchased
all of the minority interests in our Tennessee subsidiaries and a portion of the membership interests held by the
minority investors in Texas HealthSpring, LLC. Following the purchase, the outside investors in Texas '
HealthSpring, LLC owned an approximately 9% ownership interest. Following a private placement in June 2005,
and as of December 31, 2003, the outside investors owned an approximately 15.9% interest in Texas HealthSpring,
LLC, which interest was automatically exchanged, without additienal consideration, for 2,040,194 shares of our
common stock immediately prior to the [PO.

The recapitalization was accounted for using the purchase method. The aggregate transaction value for the
recapitalization was $438,576, which was substantially in excess of NewQuest, LLC’s book value. The transaction
value included $5,295 of capitalized acquisition related costs and $6,366 of deferred financing costs. In addition,
NewQuest, LLC incurred $6,941 of transaction costs which were expensed during the two-month period ended
February 28, 2005 and the Company incurred $4,000 of transaction costs which were expensed during the ten-month
period ended December 31, 2005.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the net assets acquired:

71| JOUR OO TP U OO U $ 75,441
ORET CUITEIT BSSEES 1oriiiiviiiiititieitisiiie s i erra st b essas aesssabeasassssasrsaas s tasessssas s rereaasnsansssneessmneeemsnesamneseebasesasseess 38,704
Property and EqUIPITIETIE. ..ot e snse st sser s rens s sae s on s s sa e a s ssseesms e sanse s s easesensesensbetas 3,249
[TIVESIITIENT SECUIITIES .uvviieveirierrisiseniessrressnrenisanssnrssrasssnnssssssammsesassnsassaamnssemeereeasieesseas sobasassbassremnnsssannssarnes 31,782
T BSS LS. seeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeteeeteeemseeeneeeteaeeesenessetesreeesreasatese st s be et esateabae st ee At e batanbesntaabnsarbeasbearanessberen 2,293
[dentifiable INtANZIBIE A5SELS....ccii ittt s e bbb s 91,200
GOOAWIIL ..ottt ee et e et e st e bet s e e st em e e e b s s bt s s et s e b et essasae b e e bt sae s e s e s e senaearaeeesaeansreeararearesn 315.057

—

TOTAL ASSELS .ottt et sber b aaR s Sb b b S b S b SRS E RS E e R bR AR RSO R RS PR AR SRR F SR e R R st 557,726

Current liabilities assumed ..o PPV
Long-term liabilities assumed .
TOtA] HADIITIES ...oceev et e et st eaerae e e st ebea b st s sbet s s s sbbe i e s

INEL ASSELS ACQUITE ... eececiet e e sttt s s ers e e an e e saene e s s e e e b et e saebn st e b ben e s

A breakdown of the identifiable intangible assets, their assigned value and expected lives is as follows:

Expected Life

Assigned Value {Years)
THAGR NMAINIE ... oee vt tee et eet oo e e e s e seensssemssaenbe st s saetansensontsamasesresnseasnseabesbensstssans i 24,500 indefinite
NONCOMPELE AZIEEIMIENILS. ... viteeieretreeeseaiirsctesaesbesttsieasesessesnss st s st abessasensrsessnssnssansse 300 5
Provider NEIWOIK .......coocee ettt ceree s eee s saee e e e e s ree s b sms e nne 7,100 15
Medicare Member NEIWOTK .. .v.ioviiiiriiiiiii it i e s s ensensaerssnressrrmnsrarees 48,500 120
Commercial customer relationships. ..o 10,300 2010
Total amount of identified intangible asSets .......vccivivieiniiii s b 91,200

(1) - See Note 1(f).
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(23) Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)
Quarterly financial results may not be comparable as a result of many variables, including non-recurring items

and changes in estimates for medical claims liabilities, risk adjustment payments from CMS, and certain amounts
related to the Part D program. .

Selected unaudited quarterly financial data in 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

For the Three Month Period Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31, ‘
2007 2007 2007 2007 !
TOLAL TEVENUES .vvvvvrvevsoreeverssseesossssnensesassnsesnssssnrsssenns $ 356,317 383,633 366,342 468,476
Income before iNCOME tAXES ....cvcivereireeererrereereeresrernoresone 22,074 36,764 34,936 40,978
NEtINCOME....oviininrri ittt raesstee e U 14,090 23,802 22,365 26,203
Income per share — basic ......ccovceiveeinccmnnncesne e by 0.25 0.42 0.39 0.46
Income per share — diluted.......cconvciiciniiincncccceee. § 0.25 0.42 0.39 0.46
For the Three Month Period Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, - December 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006
TOtal TEVENUES wevvvvevervesmrsseasssssssssmmssssessssssssoss $ 306,622 322,803 343,861 3356709
Income before INCOME tAXES .....c.occvveveerrirenn e vncresreseeenns 13,661 33,507 47,016 30,463
Net income available to common stockholders .............. 6,552 21,109 31,053 20,101
Income per share — basic ......cocovverenireiniecirie e ) 0.14 0.37 0.54 035
Income per share — diluted.......cc.cooocverinesiiniieinss by 0.14 0.37 0.54 0.35

(1) Revenue for the quarter ended June 30, 2007 includes $15.5 million for the Final CMS Settlement associated
. with the 2006 Medicare plan year for which the Company received notification from CMS of such amounts in
the second quarter of 2007. Revenue for the quarter ended December 31, 2007 includes the accrual of $23.0
million for estimated Final CMS Settlement for the 2007 Medicare plan year.

(2) Revenue for the quarter ended September 30, 2006 includes $15.5 million for the Initial CMS Settlement
associated with the 2006 Medicare plan vear received in the third quarter of 2006. Revenue for the quarter ended
December 31, 2006 includes $5.7 million for the Final CMS Settlement associated with the 2005 Medicare plan
year received in the fourth quarter of 2006.
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BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2007 and 2006
(in thousands)

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents ..o
Prepaid expenses and other CUTTENE SSELS .....covvreveereeseees e e rms e sneeenas T
DEferTed tAX ASSEES . oo oot emr s e emr s ene b en b e ean
Total CUITENL ASSELS voviviiiieniieee it st s s
Investment in SUBSIAIATIES. ......ccrvereirre ettt '

TOTAL BSSELS ..eeeviieieei ettt e et st s sae e s s e e e sas e ae st e s e ma e tesensasme e saan

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other...........ooooooiiiiiiiinen
Current portion of long-term debt..........c...oc.o...e. et et ne e e eaen
Other current Habilities .. ..o e

Deferred TENL.........oi it b st beab s sttt se s seee s sne s rensran e aaes
Other long-term Habilities. ..o e es e s
Long-term debt, less current pOTtion.........ueiverrsersrisises e iesessesesees
TOtal HHABILIES 1oovveeireeiiieie ittt et e st ee s s e e e s e seaenan

Stockholders’ equity:

Common SEOCK ... e e s
Additional paid in CApHAl........ocooioiiiee e e
Retained Garmings ...t sttt
Treasury SOCK ..ot
Total stockholders” eqUIEY ..ot
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ....coocecvieveinccinisicee

2007 2006

§ 23,159 § 58151
641 771

95 115

23,895 59,037
922,571 334310

11,471 4,552
347 507
9,992 802
3,758 2,914

5832 _ 181,638
$ 977,866 § 583,800

§ 5185 § 8289

18,750 —
3.940 —
27,875 8,289
732 229

404 —
277,500 —
306,511 8,518
576 575

494,626 485,002
176,218 89,758

(65) (33)
671355 _ 575282
$ 977,866 § 583.800

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands)

Revenue:

Investment income..
Total revenue ........c...cocvivininnnien.
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits ........oveerveecreernrcrerececncenenees
Administrative eXpenses ...
Depreciation and amortization.........cceeeervcnrenescns
Interest expense .. et e s e
Total operating expenses
Loss before equny in sub51d|anes earnmgs and
income taxes.. et see s
Equity in sub51d|anes eammgs
Income before income taxes
Income tax benefit (expense) ......................................
Net income...
Preferred d1v1dends e .
Net income avallable to common stockholders
and MEMDBETS .....eervrverrecr e es

Predecessor
Ten months Two months
Year ended Year ended ended ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, February 28,
2007 2006 2005 2005
$ — — —_ 122
125 478 — 16
1,725 478 — 138
15,249 13,401 3N 1,261
12,237 9,026 6,577 5,760
3,480 746 — —
7.465 330 — 30
38,431 23.503 6,954 7,051
(36,706) (23,025) (6,954) (6,913)
108.897 93,591 31.070 9.623
72,191 70,566 24,116 2,710
14,269 10,270 2,434 (4)
86,460 80,836 26,550 2,706
— (2021} (15.607) —
3 86460 3 78815 3 10943 | 3 2706

See accompanying report of independent registered public-accounting firm.
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CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEL INCOME oot
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense and amortization ..............
Equity in subsidiaries’ eamings..........c.ccooceveeenee.
Distributions and advances from/(to)
SUbSIAIATIES, MEL..uiieeiiiiie et sb s
Share-based compensation..........ccvvviiciiinnnes
Deferred taxes........cvvvvvenivmreinnsiess s,
Amortization of deferred financing cost .............
Write-off of deferred financing cost ...................
Increase (decrease) due to change in:
Accounts receivable ...
Interest receivable ..o,
Prepatd expenses and other current assets.......
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and
other current liabilities ...........cooreiereiincnnes
Other long-term Habilities. .....o.o.ccvovenrerierercnanns
Net cash provided by (used in) operating
ACTIVITIES ot
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property and equipment.......................
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired ...
Net cash (used in}-provided by investing
ACHIVILIES .ot
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments on notes payable to members .................
Proceeds from issuance of debl .......o.cocooieiieee,
Payments ondebt......ocooovnciie e
Proceeds from issuance of commeon and preferred
stock...
Deferred ﬁnancmg cosls .........................................
Purchase of treasury stock .......ccovnvinincinicnnin
Proceeds from stock options exercised.........cooevre,
Tax benefit from stock options exercised .. v
Net cash provided by (used in) ﬁnancmg
ACHVILIES ..eo v v raesne e vre e e
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
QUIVAIENIS ..oe e rer e
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period......
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period ...............

Predeccessor
Ten months Two months
Year ended Year ended ended ended
December 31, Decernber 31, December 31, February 28,
2007 2006 2005 2008
$ B6460 § 80,836 26,550 2,706
3,480 745 189 —
(108,897) (93,591) (31,070) (9,623)
18,613 (124,311) 89,459 10,254
4,236 5,650 377 —
(824) (4,294) 609 —
752 130 — —
651 —_ — —
— — — (1)
— — _ 2
147 1,793 (1,908) (178)
828 4,953 3,336 8,335
907 229 — —
6,353 (127,860) 87,542 (11,495)
(10,199) (4,950) (420) —
{317,799} — (219.958) —
{327,998) (4.950) (220,378) —
— —_— (3,958) (83)
300,000 — _ —
(3,750) — _— —
— 188,611 140,087 —
(10,610) (932) - —_
(12) (13) (40) —
1,023 12 — —
2 30 — —
286,653 187,708 136,089 (83)
(34,992) 54,898 3,253 11,412
58,151 3.253 — 10,827
§.. 23,159 §_ 58151 % 3253 (& 22,239

See accompanying report of independent registered public accounting firm.
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Item 9, Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None. ‘
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our senior management carried out an evaluation required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended (the “Exchange Act”), under the supervision and with the participation of our President and Chief Executive |
Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO™), of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as !
defined in Rule 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act (“Disclosure Controls™). Based on the evaluation, our senior
management, including our CEO and CFO, concluded that, as of December 31, 2007, our Disclosure Controls are
effective in timely alerting them to material information required to be included in our reports filed with the SEC.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation
that occurred during the quarter ended December 31, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Repart on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company’s internal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
The Company’s internal control over financial reporting included those policies and procedures that:

(i} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(i1) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(ti1) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized-acquisition, use or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007. In conducting the Company’s assessment of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting, the
Company has excluded the acquisition of the Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. (LMC Health Plans) which was
completed by the Company on October 1, 2007. Total revenue of $83.8 million and total assets of $451.8 million for LMC
Health Plans are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2007, Further information conceming the acquisition of the LMC Health Plans appears in Note 2, Acquisition of Leon
Medicat Centers Health Plans, to the accompanying audited consolidated financial statements. In making this assessment,
we used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment and those criteria, we determined that the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal contrel over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited
by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report set forth in the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm in Part 11, Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ltem 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART III
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance ' :

Information with respect o the directors of the Company, set forth in the Company’s definitive proxy statement,
to be filed with the SEC on or before April 29, 2008 for the Company’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held on or about May 20, 2008 (the “Proxy Statement™), under the caption “Proposal | — Election of Directors,” is
incorporated herein by reference. Pursuant to General Instruction G(3), information concerning executive officers of
the Company is included in [tem 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K under the caption “Executive Officers of the
Company.”

Information with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, set forth in
the Proxy Statement under the caption *Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” is incorporated
herein by reference,

Information with respect to our code of ethics, set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Corporate
Govemnance — Code of Business Conduct and Ethics,” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this item, set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Executive and Director
Compensation,” is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management and related
stockholder matters and our equity compensation plans, set forth in the Proxy Statement under the captions
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Executive and Director Compensation,”
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

[nformation with respect to certain relationships and related transactions and director independence, set forth in
the Proxy Statement under the captions “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” “Security Ownership of
Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Corporate Governance,” is incorporated herein by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

[nformation with respect to the fees paid to and services provided by our independent registered public
accounting firm, set forth in the Proxy Statement under the caption “Fees Billed to Us by KPMG LLP During 2007
and 2006" is incorporated herein by reference.

[nformation with respect to our audit committee and audit committee financial expert set forth in the proxy

statement under the caption “Corporate Governance-Board Committee Composition” is incorporated hereby
reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules

(1} All financial statements filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements
on page 63 of this report.

(2) All financial statement schedules required to be filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to Financial
Statements on page 63 of this report.

(3) Exhibits — See Index of Exhibits at end of this report, which is incorporated herein by reference.
{b) Exhibits
See the Index of Exhibits at end of this report, which is incorporated herein by reference.
{c) Financial Statements

We are filing as part of this report the financial schedule listed on the index immediately preceding the financial
statements in ltem & of this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. '

HEALTHSPRING, INC.

Date: February 28, 2008 By: /s/ Kevin M. McNamara

Name: Kevin M. McNamara
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatare Title Date
/s/ Herbert A, Fritch Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and
Herbert A. Fritch Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)
s/ Kevin M. McNamara Executive Vice President and Chief Financial February 28, 2008
Kevin M. McNamara Officer (Principal Financial and Accounting
Officer)
{s/ Bruce M. Fried Director February 28, 2008
Bruce M. Fried
February 28, 2008
/s/ Robert Z. Hensley Director
Robert Z. Hensley February 28, 2008
/s/ Benjamin Leon, Jr. Director
Benjamin Leon, Jr. February 28, 2008
/s/ Sharad Mansukani.M.D. Director
Sharad Mansukani, M.D. February 28, 2008
/s/ Russell K. Maverfeld Director
Russell K. Mayerfeld : February 28, 2008
/s/ Joseph P. Nolan Director
Joseph P. Nolan February 28, 2008
/s/ Martin S, Rash Director

Martin S. Rash February 28, 2008



INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Description

Form of Aménded and Restéted Certificate of Incorporation of HealthSpring, inc. (1)

Registration Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2005, by and among HealthSpring, Inc., GTCR Fund
VI, L.P., GTCR Fund VIII/B, L.P., GTCR Co-Invest 1], L.P., and each of the other stockholders of
HealthSpring, Inc. whose names appear on the schedules thereto or on the signature pages or joinders

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2007, by and among HealthSpring, Inc. and the

Purchase and Exchange Agreement, dated as of November 10, 2004, by and among NewQuest, LLC,
HealthSpring, Inc., NewQuest, Inc., the stockholders representative and each of the other stockholders
of HealthSpring, Inc. whose names appear on the schedules or signature pages thereto, as amended (1)

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2005, by and among GTCR Fund VIII, L.P., GTCR
Fund VIII/B, L.P., GTCR Co-Invest 11, L.P., and each of the other stockholders party thereto (1)

Form of HealthSpring, Inc. Amended and Restated Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement® (1)

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Employées and Officers) (Equity Incentive Plan)* (4)
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (Directors) (Equity Incentive Plan)* (4)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Registrant and Herbert A. Fritch* (1)

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Registrant and Kevin M. McNamara* (1)

Form of Indemnification Agreement (1) ‘

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated August 9, 2007, by and among Leon Medical Centers Health Plans,
Inc., the stockholders of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc., as sellers, NewQuest, LLC, as buyer,

Medical Services Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2007, by and between Leon Medical Centers, Inc.

Credit and Guaranty Agreement, dated as of October 1, 2007, by and among HealthSpring, Inc., as
borrower, certain subsidiaries of HealthSpring, Inc., as guarantors, the lenders party thereto from time
to time, and Goldman Sachs Credit Partners L.P., as administrative agent, lead arranger and collateral

Contract H4454 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Tennessee,

Exhibits
3.1
3.2 Form of Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of HealthSpring, Inc. (1)
4.1 Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2
4.2 Specimen of Common Stock Certificate (1)
43
to the Registration Rights Agreement (1)
44
former stockholders of Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. (2)
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4 HealthSpring, Inc. 2005 Stock Option Plan* (1)
10.5 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Option Plan)* (1)
10.6 HealthSpring, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended* (3)
10.7 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (Equity Incentive Plany* (4)
10.8 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (Equity Incentive Plan)* (4)
10.9
10.10
10.11  Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy* (5)
10.12
10.13
10.14 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Gerald V. Coil* (6)
10.15
10.16
and HealthSpring, Inc. (7)
10.17
and Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc. (2)
10.18
agent (2)
10.19
Inc. (renewed effective as of January 1, 2008) (1)
10.20

Contract H4513 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and Texas HealthSpring [, LLC
(renewed effective as of January 1, 2008) (1)




Exhibits Description
'10.21 Contract HO150 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Alabama,
Inc. (renewed effective as of January 1, 2008) (1)

10.22 Contract H1415 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Illinois
(renewed effective as of January 1, 2008) (1)

10.23 Contract H4407 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Tennessee,
Inc. (d/b/a HealthSpring of Mississippi) (renewed effective as of Januaryl, 2008) (1)

10.24 Contract H5410 between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of Florida, Inc.
(f/k/a Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc.) (renewed effective as of January 1, 2008)

10.25 Amended and Restated IPA Services Agreement dated March 1, 2003_ by and between Texas
HealthSpring, LLC and Renaissance Physician Organization, as amended (1)

10.26 Full-Service Management Agreement dated April 16, 2001 by and between GuifQuest, L.P. and
Renaissance Physician Organization, as amended (1)

10.27 Agreement dated May 28,1993 between the Baptist Hospital and DST Health Solutions, Inc. (fk/a
CSC Healthcare Systems, Inc.), as amended (1)

10.28 Master Service Agreement dated June 13, 2003 between QAO HealthCare Solutions, Inc. and
TexQuest, LLC, on behalf of GulfQuest, L.P. (1)

10.29 Stand-Alone PDP Contract between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring, Inc.
and HealthSpring of Alabama, Inc. (renewed effective as of January 1, 2008) (8)

1030 Novation Agreement for Change of Ownership of a Medicare Prescription Drug Plan Line of Business,
dated as of December 12, 2007, by and among Texas HealthSpring I, LLC, HealthSpring of Tennessee,
Inc., and the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

10.31 Stand-Alone PDP Contract between Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services and HealthSpring of
Florida, Inc. (f/k/a Leon Medical Centers Health Plans, Inc.) (renewed effective as of January 1, 2008)

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registfant
23.1 Consent of KPMG LLP
24.1 Power of attorney (included on the signature page)

311 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

312 Certification Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002

322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

* Indicates management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.

(1) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-128939),
filed October 11, 2005, as amended.)

(2) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Repoert on Form 8-K, filed October 4, 2007.)

{3) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed May 14, 2007.}

{4) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed November 2, 2007.)
(5) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, filed August 14, 2007.)
(6) {Previously filed as an Exhibit 10 the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed December 27, 2006.)
(7) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed August 14, 2007.)

(8) (Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed March 31, 2006.)




EXHIBIT 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and stockholders
HealthSpring, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in registration statement No. 333-131654 on Form 8-8 of
HealthSpring, Inc. of our reports dated February 27, 2008, with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of
HealthSpring, Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
income, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows for the years then ended and for the ten-
month period from March 1, 2005 (inception) to December 31, 2005; and the consolidated statements of income,
members’ equity and comprehensive income, and cash flows of NewQuest, LLC and subsidiaries for the two
months ended February 28, 20035, the related financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, which reports appear in the December 31, 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K of HealthSpring, Inc. As discussed in Notes | and 10 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006
the Company changed its method of accounting for share - based payments.

Our report dated February 27, 2008 on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting of
HealthSpring, Inc. contains an explanatory paragraph that states that HealthSpring, Inc. acquired Leon Medical
Centers Health Plans, Inc. (Leon) on October 1, 2007. Management excluded Leon’s internal control over financial
reporting from its assessment of HealthSpring, Inc.’s internal conirol over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007. Qur audit report on internal control over financial reporting of HealthSpring, Inc. also excluded an evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting of Leon.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee
February 27, 2008




EXHIBIT 31.1
SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

1, Herbert A. Fritch, Chief Executive Officer of HealthSpring, [nc., certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of HealthSpring, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial siatements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly

present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls

and procedures {as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-13(¢) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure conirols and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure contrels and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

{a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and .

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

February 28, 2008

/s/ Herbert A, Fritch

Herbert A. Fritch

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President, and
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

I, Kevin M. McNamara, Chief Financial Officer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of HealthSpring, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of,
and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, o ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period
in which this report is being prepared; '

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report
our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual
report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of
directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,

summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role
in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

February 28, 2008

/s/ Kevin M. McNamara

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION BY CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Kevin M. McNamara
Executive Vice President and Chief Financiat Officer




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.5.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT-OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSpring, Inc. on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2007
(the “Report™), 1, Herbert A. Fritch, Chief Executive Officer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. .
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that;

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a)} or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

/s/ Herbert A. Fritch

Herbert A. Fritch

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and Chief Executive Officer -

February 28, 2008 s




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of HealthSpring, Inc. on Form 10-K for the period ending December 31, 2007
(the “Report™), I, Kevin M. McNamara, Chief Financial Officer of HealthSpring, Inc., certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and :

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results
of operations of the Company.

/s/ Kevin M. McNamara

Kevin M, McNamara

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
February 28, 2008




CORPORATE DATA

CORPORATE OFFICES
HealthSpring, Inc.

9009 Carothers Parkway, Suite 501
Franklin, Tennessee 37067

(615) 291-7000

TRANSFER AGENT AND

STOCKHOLDER ACCOUNT ASSISTANCE
American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn, New York 11219

Phone: (718) 921-8208 Fax: {718) 921-8335

For address changes, registration changes,
lost stock certificates, or if you are receiv-
ing duplicate copies of the Annual Report,
please contact American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company at the address or number
listed above.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
KPMG LLP

Nashville, Tennessee

ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
HealthSpring will hold its annual meeting
of stockholders on May 20, 2008, at

10:00 a.m. local time, at the Company's
headquarters, 9009 Carothers Parkway,
Franklin, Tennessee 37067. Stockholders
of record as of April 2, 2008, are invited to
attend this meeting.

FORM 10-K / INVESTQR CONTACT

A copy of HealthSpring's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2007, as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, may be obtained
from the Company at no charge. Requests
for the Annual Report on Form 10-K and
other investor information should be
directed to Investor Relations at the
Company's corporate office in Franklin,

or visit www.healthspring.com.

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements

(ali statements other than those made solely with
raspect to historical fact) within the meaning of
Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
and Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933. These
forward-locking statements are subject to known
and unknown risks and uncertainties {(some of which
are beyond the Company's ¢control) that couid cause
actual results to differ materially and adversely from
those anticipated in the forward-looking statements.
See the Company's 10-K filing for more detailed
disclosure regarding forward-looking statements
and associated risks and uncertainties.

The Company has submitted an unqualified
Section 12(a) CEO Certification to the NYSE in 2007,
pursuant to Section 303A.12 of the NYSE Listed
Company Manual.

The Company has included as Exhibit 31 to its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007, as filed with the Securities

and Exchange Commission, a certificate of its Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as to
the quality of the Company's public disclosures,
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